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I. IMPORTANT NOTICE

1.

(1

The board of directors (the “Board”), supervisory committee,
and the directors, supervisors and senior management officers of
the Company confirmed that there are no false representations,
misleading statements or material omissions in this interim
report and accept joint and several responsibilities for the
truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the contents of
the report.

Save as Ms. Li Dongru, independent non-executive director and
Mr. Wang Sheng, non-executive director who were unable to
attend the meeting in person due to official duties, where Mr.
Chen Ying, independent non-executive director and Mr. Gao
Minghui, chairman were appointed to attend the meeting and
vote on their behalf at the meeting respectively, all Directors
attended the board meeting.

The financial statements of the interim report of the Company
were unaudited, but were reviewed by the Audit Committee
of the Board of the Company.

No funds were appropriated by the controlling shareholders of
the Company and their respective associates for non-operating
purposes.

No external guarantee was provided by the Company that was
against the decision-making procedures as required.

Mr. Gao Minghui, chairman of the Company, Mr. Pi Jianguo,
chief financial officer, and Ms. Zhao Qiongfen, accounting
supervisor, have declared that they assured for the truthfulness
and completeness of the financial statements contained in this
interim report.

OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY

COMPANY INFORMATION

1. Name of the Company (Chinese):
S ERAMKRNBRA R

Abbreviated Name of the Company (Chinese):
EBAHIR

Name of the Company (English):
SHENJI GROUP KUNMING MACHINE
TOOL COMPANY LIMITED

Abbreviated Name of the Company (English):
kmtcl

2. Place of A Shares Listing:
Shanghai Stock Exchange

Short name of the Company’s A Shares:

B AR R

Stock Code of A Shares:
600806

Place of H Shares Listing:
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

___E
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86-871-6166612

BE -
86-871-6166288

E-mail :
luotao@kmtcl.com.cn
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Fﬁﬁ‘ét TIRIB 2357

AREBEHE
T

B -
86-871-6166623

BE
86-871-6166288

E-mail :
wangbh@kmtcl.com.cn
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Short name of the Company’s H Shares:

Kunming Machine

Stock Code of H Shares:
0300

Company Registered Address:
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City,
Yunnan Province, the PRC

Company Business Address:
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City,
Yunnan Province, the PRC

Postal Code:
650203

Company’s internet website:
www.kmtcl.com.cn

Company’s email address:
dsh@kmtcl.com.cn

Company’s Legal Representative:
Mr. Gao Minghui

Secretary to the Board:
Mr. Luo Tao

Telephone:
86-871-6166612

Facsimile:
86-871-6166288

E-mail:
luotao@kmtcl.com.cn

Address:
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City,
Yunnan Province, the PRC

Securities Affairs Representative:
Ms. Wang Bihui

Telephone:
86-871-6166623

Facsimile:
86-871-6166288

E-mail:
wangbh@kmtcl.com.cn

Address:
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City,
Yunnan Province, the PRC
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Company’s designated newspaper for publishing:
China Securities Daily, Shanghai Securities Daily,
and Securities Times.

CSRC's designated internet websites for publishing the
Company’s interim report in the PRC and Hong Kong:
http://www.sse.com.cn, http://www.hkex.com.hk

and http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

Interim report available at:

Office building, 23 Ciba Road, Kunming City,
Yunnan Province, the PRC

Other Relevant Information

Date of Incorporation:
19th October, 1993

Place of Registration:
Yunnan Commercial and Industrial Administrative Bureau

Date of First Change of Registration:
29th March, 2002

Date of Second Change of Registration:
1st December, 2007

Place of First Change of Registration:
Yunnan Commercial and Industrial Administrative Bureau

Place of Second Change of Registration:
Yunnan Commercial and Industrial Administrative Bureau

Business Registration Number:
BT 500068255

Tax Registration Number:
530111622602196

Organization code:
62260219-6

Appointed Auditors of the Company

Appointed Auditors in the PRC:
Zonzun Accounting Office Limited

Address:

4/F, Guoxing Building, 22 Capital Road South,
Haiding District, Beijing, the PRC

Appointed Auditors outside the PRC:
KPMG (Hong Kong CPA)
Address:

8/F, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road Central,
Hong Kong

I
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(Z) 2 BBBENER

1.

TEEHHEBNUEES

(2) PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

1. Major Accounting
Indicators

Information and Financial

By BE:ARK

Unit: RMB
AFEHRLL
RHEHAR LEEHR LEEHREH%)
As at As at
30th June 31st December
HH Items 2009 2008 Change (%)
BEE Total assets 2,000,306,229.25 1,911,770,243.53 4.63
EERER (FREER) Total shareholders’ equity 1,117,187,308.22  1,041,230,512.25 7.29
BRFEE(T) Net assets per share (RMB) 2.63 2.45 7.29
BEH RREHLL
(1-6A) LERE ELFERBER%)
For the six For the six
months ended months ended
BH Items 30th June 2009  30th June 2008 Change (%)
EERH Operating profit 110,677,461.34  154,381,972.39 (28.31)
HB#eE Total profit 128,656,857.32 179,494,603.23 (28.32)
FNE(BESLAAMES) Net profit attributable to
the shareholdersof the parent 116,106,525.94 148,071,729.27 (21.59)
MRFFE B BRENFFE Net profit after excluding
non-recurring items 97,925,492.51 122,781,950.05 (20.24)
EXgREET) Basic earnings per share (RMB) 0.2733 0.3485 (21.58)
ML IEIEEEN Basic earnings per share excluding
ERERKEGT) non-recurring items (RMB) 0.2305 0.289 (20.24)
Wiwy() Diluted earnings per share (RMB) 0.2733 0.3485 (21.58)
FEEREE(% Return on net assets (%) 10.39 15.85 HASA6EENH

i«‘%éiﬂ?‘@@fﬁ‘i\/ mEFE
BREERHEEN
Eﬁ@mui@‘%ﬁi

BHBEEE

ERAN(AFMBITH 2.
%Qjﬁﬁﬁ m A A D)FE IR
ERFTENFEERSREREBREK

Net cash flow from operating activities

Net cash flow per share from
operating activities

68,211,707.40

0.16

65,433,262.99

0.15

decreased by 5.46
percentage points
4.25

4.25

The Return on net assets and earnings per share
prepared in accordance with No. 9 of Rules for
the Compilation and Submission of Information

= Disclosure by Public Offering Companies issued
by China Securities Regulatory Commission are as
follows:
FEEREE(%) Sk (n)
Return of net assets (%) Earnings per share (RMB)
2E#E nEFY E#sRhUE REERUE
Fully Weighted Basic earningsDiluted earnings
WESBHAE Profit during the reporting period diluted average per share per share
FERDELTARBREAFENE  Net profit attributable to the
shareholders of the Company 10.39 10.56 0.2733 0.2733
B EE R EGRRE Net profit excluding non-recurring
P R E R AR B % items attributable to the
shareholder of the Company 8.77 8.91 0.2305 0.2305
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3. Non-recurring items and amount

By or BE ARK
Unit: RMB
FREREHHRER

For the six months ended

FREMBEEA Non-recurring items 30th June 2009
ERBDEEREER Loss on disposal of non-current assets (130,055.14)

HEEY  REEAMAEX
RBRUENTHBRE - BR
SIAEHBRORAREY  BE

RAEHRIAE -
EREARA-RETEATE
EX Lol USRI
AR RIEBERA
HAEREANTE

Tax refund, reduction or exemption with approval
exceeding authority or without official approval

17,172,846.19

Government grants included in the profit or loss for the period

(except for the grants which have closely related to

the Company’s business and have the standard amount or

quantities in accordance with the national standard.)
Other non-recurring items
Impact on income tax

311,200.00
625,404.93
201,637.45

&t Total 18,181,033.43
RIEEBETEA 4. Major Accounting Information and Financial
Indicators prepared in accordance with the Hong
Kong Accounting Standards
Bfy : For BE:ARK
Unit: RMB’000
RFEHRL
AHEHR TEEHR LFEEHRERN(%)
As at As at
30th June  31st December
TEEHEE Major accounting information 2009 2008 Change (%)
MEEE Current assets 1,348,826 1,318,557 230
Ak Current liabilities 777,508 793,061 (1.96)
BEE Total assets 1,968,902 1,909,520 3.1
BRER (T BREER) Shareholders’ equity
(excluding minority interest) 1,107,167 1,031,210 7.37
BRFEEE(T) Net assets per share (RMB) 2.606 2.427 7.37
AREHRE LS
AFREHR LFRH BEECACA)
For the six For the six
months ended months ended
TEEHEE Major accounting information ~ 30th June 2009  30th June 2008 Change (%)
N Net profits 116,107 147,940 (21.52)
FRYE(T) Earnings per share (RMB) 0.273 0.348 (21.52)
FEEKRRE(%) Return on net assets (%) 10.49 16.01  HP5.52EE 22
decreased by 5.52
percentage points
REETHEEMBLRETFE Net cash flow from operating activities 66,086 63,412 4.22

N
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Difference between PRC Accounting Standards and
Hong Kong Accounting Standards:

Efr: T BE:ARK
Unit: RMB*000

5. BRMEFENER 5.

=gy FEE
Net profit Net assets
KHY i} | BN BRY
For the six months ended As at As at
30th June 1st January 30th June
2009 2008 2009 2009
mhE g Ea Financial statements prepared
under the PRC Accounting Standards 116,107 148,072 1,041,231 1,117,187
REBGHENREN ltems and total amount adjusted in
PEREE : accordance with the Hong Kong
Accounting Standards:
REGELERNRERS  Gain on investment in jointly
controlled entities - - (8,869) (8,869)
ERKaRAE Adjustement on deferred gain - - 57 57
[ Amortization of goodwill - - (1,428) (1,428)
Hit Others - (132) 219 220
EREATHAHER Consolidated results prepared
under the Hong Kong Accounting Stanards 116,107 147,940 1,031,210 1,107,167
= - REASHRBREEBR Il. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
(- RGOEEBERK (1) CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL
By R
Unit: Share
ARE8H AREBEHE(+ -) LYY Eii
Befor the change Change during the period (+,-) After the change
¥R/
fE A% 2R MESER it it fE A%
Conversion
Proportion New Shares/ ~from capital Proportion
Amount (%) Bonus Shares reserve Others  Sub-total Amount (%)
- EREGRER . Shares subject to seling restrictions
1. BxEk 1. state-owned shares
2. BEEARR 2. state-owned legal person shares 153,596,550 36.15 - - - - 153,596,550 36.15
3. HHMERR 3. Other domestic shares 5,171,306 12 - - [5171,306)  (5,171,306) - -
A BREEREA Including: domestic non-state-owned
Fh legal person shares
B RARR Domestic natural person shares
4 EREK 4. foreign-owned shares
A ENE AR TR Including: shares owned by
foreign legal person
BIBRARR Shares owned by foreign natural person
ERERERD A Total number of selling restricted shares 158,767,856 3737 - - [(5171,306) (5171,306) 153,596,550 36.15
- ERERERERA Il Shares not subject to selling restrictions
1. AREERR 1. RMB ordinary shares 153,381,177 36.10 - - 571306 5171306 158,552,483 313
2. RALmONER 2. Domestic listed foreign shares
3. B mteER 3. Overseas lsted foreign shares 112,715,850 2653 - - - - 112,715,850 2653
4 Ef 4. Others
ERERARERD A Total number of selling
unrestricted shares 266,097,027 62.63 - - 5171306 5171306 271,268,333 63.85
= Rh&x Il Total number of shares 424,864,883 100 - - - - 424,864,383 100
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(Z)RERMEEZG ABR (2) SHAREHOLDERS AND BENEFICIAL HOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY
1 REREEMNZERER 1. Number of shareholders and their shareholdings
Unit: Share
REDRRRAEY 40,2597 (HHARA0,132F » HIR127F)
Total number of shareholders as at 30th June 2009
40,259 shareholders (including 40,132 A Shares holders and 127 H Share holders)
ATERRERER
Top ten shareholders
BEERE ERGRE
et BREME  BREA%) BRAY HREMAEE RERGEE NRGHE
Increase/ Number of
Total decrease selling
Nature of  Proportion number of  during the restricted Number of shares
Name of shareholders shareholders (%)  shares held period  shares held pledged or frozen
HKSCC Nominees Limited BINEA 25.55 108,563,779 - - KA
Foreign legal person Unknown
HEERR(EE)EREAAR EEEA 25.09 106,578,219 - 106,578,219 RA
Shenji Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. State-owned
legal person Unknown
ERE IERERREEBREMAT
(EE4EAEERLERELL ) BHEEA 11.07 47,018,331 - 47,018,331 23!
Yunnan Industrial Investment Holding State-owned Unknown
Group Co., Ltd. (formely known legal person
as Yunnan State-owned Assets
Operation Co., Ltd.)
REBRRIT-
FERLEERERTUESREL ) 473 20,096,147 - - K
China Construction Bank - Other Unknown
Yinhua Selected Core Value
Securities Investment Fund
EHRELF BRFREEA 458 19,456,480 - - KA
Kunming Jinghua Co. Domestic Unknown
non-state-owned
legal person
HEITERT-
RERUFERRRENESRELS Eth 0.99 4,207,207 - - KA
ICBC - Other Unknown
Jingshun Changcheng Emerging
Growth Equity Securities Investment Fund
RERFRT-
BRENELRANESRELS Eth 0.84 3,548,644 - - KA
Agriculture Bank of China - Other Unknown
Yiming Creative and Mixed Equity
Securities Investment Fund
RBRIT-
BETENRRELESRELS 40 0.57 2,436,376 - - Pl
Bank of Communications- Other Unknown
Boshi New Growth Equity
Securities Investment Fund
mEASRR(EE) AR -ER-LRREERD i 0.38 1,599,959 - - KA
China Life Insurance (Group) Company - Other Unknown
Traditional - Ordinary Insurance Product
Chan Kwok Tai Eddie i 0.21 890,000 - - KA
Other Unknown
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AT BEREREBRRIFRER

Top ten holders of shares not subject to selling
restrictions

BEERERYE
RERERB R EE RER
Number of
selling
unrestricted
Name of shareholders shares held Type of shares
HKSCC Nominees Limited 108,563,779 BN ETHINE RR
H Shares
PEEZFRIT-REZOEEBERZUZSFRELS 20,096,147 AR E B
China Construction Bank — A Shares
Yinhua Selected Core Value Securities Investment Fund
EBAEELNA 19,456,480 AR ERBRK
Kunming Jinghua Co. A Shares
PETEHRIT - RIERAFTEKRREAZTFRELS 4,207,207 AR T @R
ICBC — Jingshun Changcheng Emerging Growth A Shares
Equity Securities Investment Fund
FRRERIT-=mREFEZRSAZSFREES 3,548,644 AREEEBR
Agriculture Bank of China - A Shares
Yiming Creative and Mixed Equity Securities Investment Fund
REPIT-EFTAXNRRELISFREES 2,436,376 AR E B
Bank of Communications - A Shares

Boshi New Growth Equity Securities Investment Fund
TREASRR(EE) AR —En-EBREER 1,599,959
China Life Insurance (Group) Company —

Traditional — Ordinary Insurance Product

Chan Kwok Tai Eddie
Cai Qingshan
FETIHRIT-SFHEEENRESE

o

Az

890,000
867,045

FREES 800,200

ICBC — E Fund Value Growth Mixed Securities Investment Fund

st s R A B B R Bk — BT T B RO A

Explanation of the connected relationship or acting in concert
relationship among the above shareholders

B 1 22 42 PR & 5 14 7 4 A AR B FnSA AR AR There is no connected relationship among the top ten
REBERBRRZ2ETFEEBRER - A shareholders of selling unrestricted circulating shares, legal
AR ANt R R E R R R AR IR SR 2 E = person shareholders and state-owned legal person shareholders.
BEEABBERIBN ETARREEFESE The Company was not notified of any connected relationship
BB EEREETEIE)REN —BTH or acting in concert relationship regulated by “Information
A e BITOEIRERF - BRE KR BERR Disclosure Management Procedure to Changes of Shareholding
ReMEEBER AR TANESREE of List Company” among the top ten shareholders of selling
HRBRRRETEARRBRREETEER unrestricted circulating shares. Among the top ten shareholders,

TR 2 FREIFE BB RIER -

there is no connected relationship among shareholders of
selling restricted circulating shares. The Company was not
notified by its shareholders that there is any relationship
between the shareholders of selling restricted circulating shares
and the shareholders of public shares; and any relationship
among the shareholders of public shares.
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Br bl 558 2 F ERRE SN - R20094F6
F30H @ REPB(REHITERISGE
BEITIEGEOE R AR EITES
B RME B TR A EAE N E RS 255
(2005FEET )R E » HMBRE 258
BVAREIFTEREZHEMBEES
BEHEMBEENEINERE  AA
Bl EERE M AT HEANDQRE T
BEZR10% 8k LA EHERS -

BII0ZRESF » HHE QAR MDES% A
F(E5%) BB ERELE IR R
HEE(REBA)BRRAR - FTERHER
BIEINETINER  LEERIK(EE)
ERETRRAFRMDERNABREEA
B EEE TEREEREBARET
NE EROENABEBEAK B
RIEZEARIMFERHERN BZEAR - £
Mk ERRRE QRSB ORMI - &
BIREAMIFROREEES GH R
ERIEENBR -

/

et

1) BEERREEREA)BRAFM
FROEZRBEEFFR - RAAIRE
BEERRAAHRBREHB BB AR A
BIRAR10% M B B EHAR B R A
5% M HAR IR BN « DA
Chilton Investment Company,Inc.
R2009F7H278 # B & A "AIHK
% £10,069,7210% - {EHR B A &9
8.93% ' HBIRAR2.37% °

2) BMEXHEEEI EFALEESM
BEMAL(EFEZTHREZTRA
8 )AL A& S48 B R 17 7 B R
BRFAARMBEAREB(EFL
HIEHRDIDEXVERE2R3D B 2 R E
MARAEHRE  HREBEFE(GE
M HIEEO)E336IFRE - RIIA
FiisE 2 BERMz ERIRE °

3) A IF2009F3A8118 ARRIKEE
AEEAFTRNXS - THEARE
BB Em - ERAEE A A1 H200943
A11AR  AJELESEARSANEE
T HEEAR26,414,5500% & BAHL R
B (MG R AE L 91#96.22% ) ©

#H 1F2009%F7831HEMH B E QA K5t
HEEARRQARKMI0,943,9730% » (k42
A% A b {5 B92.58% ° % A Bl B A QA
15,470,577 B85 1 AN~ &) 4B IR AR B
3.64%

REEEKE LBEESFR M — (ARERL
MRBARRBERNTRIGEERREFERD
B E R BADH R E NS o

Other than the substantial shareholders disclosed above as
at 30th June 2009, there were no other shareholders whose
shareholdings exceeded the amount required to be disclosed
under Article 60 of “Administration of the Issuing and Trading
of Shares Provisional Regulations” of the PRC and Issue no. 2
of “The Content and Format of Disclosure of Information of
the Listed Companies” (amended in 2005) and the register of
substantial shareholders maintained under the requirement of
reporting; and under section 16(1) of the Securities and Future
Ordinance under the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited,
the Company was not notified of any interests representing
10% or more of the issued share capital of the Company.

Among the top ten shareholders, there are four shareholders
holding 5% or more of the Company’s shares. They are
HKSCC Nominees Limited, which holds the overseas listed
foreign shares; Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd., which
holds the state-owned legal person shares; Yunnan Industrial
Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd., which holds state-owned
shares; and Kunming Jinghua Co., Ltd., which holds legal
person shares. All of the shares held by these shareholders
are not pledged, frozen, mortgaged, nor designated except
the shares sold by Kunming Jinghua Co..

Notes:

1) HKSCC Nominees Limited holds shares on behalf of clients.
The Company did not receive any notification from HKSCC
Nominees Limited that any single H shareholder who held more
than 10% in total share capital of the Company. Holders of
H Shares who held more than 5% of total issued H Shares as
follows: on 27th July 2009, the Company received a notification
that Chilton Investment Company Inc. held 10,069,721 H
Shares of the Company, representing 8.93% of total issued H
Shares of the Company and 2.37% of total issued shares of
the Company.

2) Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not notified by any
person (who is not a Director or a chief executive officer) who
owns the interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company and shall be disclosed to the Company
in compliance with the requirements as stated in Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO"),
or the interest or short position that shall be included in the
prescribed register in accordance with section 336 of SFO.

3) On 11th March 2009, the 24 months selling restricted period
for trading the shares of the Company held by Kunming Jinghua
Co., a shareholder of the Company, was expired. From 11th
March 2009, 26,414,550 shares of the Company (representing
6.22% of the total issued capital) held by Kunming Jinghua
Co. were tradable on Shanghai Stock Exchange.

As at 31st July 2009, Kunming Jinghua Co. sold a total of 10,943,973
shares of the Company (representing 2.58% of the total issued
share capital). Such company was interested in 15,470,577 shares
of the Company, representing 3.64% of the total share capital of
the Company.

This issue was announced in according to the regulation — Notice
of Supervising the Shareholders of Listed Companies Implementing
the Rules on Lessening Terminated Selling Restricted Shareholding
issued by Shanghai Stock Exchange.

B
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ATEERERTERRERHEERRERK Number of shares held by the top ten shareholders of

#% selling restricted shares and the conditions of selling
restriction

B - iR

Unit: Share

ARERERBT LHRZHER

Trading of selling restricted shares

BENERE R LW
P BRERERREE HERGHE AEHREEE XZROBE PR & R
Number of
Number of additional Conditions
Name of shareholders of selling restricted shares to of selling
No. selling restricted shares shares held Date of trading the traded restriction
1. LIERK(EE)BEREEAT 106,578,219 2010124318 e 2 2E]
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. 106,578,219 31st December 2010 Committed to
hold as stated in
the agreement
2. EMEIRREARKREERREEAF 47,018,331 201012A31H HEEHEEA

(EEEREEEREAREMERR])
Yunnan Industrial Investment Holding
Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation
Co., Ltd.)

Committed to
hold as stated in
the agreement

47,018,331 31st December 2010

BRREEF-—REIASHEEFTROTE
FRARER

Description of agreed holding period of shares in respect
of strategic investors and general legal persons involved
in the placing of new shares

HNERF R R
Agreed holding

BREREEIN—REANERE

Name of strategic investors or general legal persons

period of shares

ISR (RBE)EREERT]
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd.

EHEIXRABREEEREEAF(ZEHEARAEELERREELT)

Yunnan Industrial Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd.

2010412 A31H
31st December 2010

201012 A31H
31st December 2010

(formerly known as Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd.)

Committed to hold until 31st December 2010 as stated in
the agreement.

#Hit - R AEIFTBE2010F12A318 - Note:

ERBRERERESASERR 2. Controlling shareholder and beneficial controller

R 25 8 P 8 R PR SR R A
RERERE o

There was no change in the controlling shareholders and
beneficial holders during the Reporting Period.
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(1

(2)

(1

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT OFFICERS

CHANGES OF SHAREHOLDING HELD BY DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
OFFICERS

During the Reporting Period, there was no change of
shareholding held by directors, supervisors and senior
management officers.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT OFFICERS

During the Reporting Period, there was no change in directors,
supervisors and senior management officers.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

During the Reporting Period, the Company recorded a turnover
of RMB662,304,000 and a net profit of RMB116,107,000,
down by 18.09% and 21.59% respectively as compared with
RMB808,588,000 and RMB 148,072,000 in the same period last
year under the PRC Accounting Standards. (During the Reporting
Period, the Company recorded a turnover of RMB641,556,000
and a net profit of RMB116,107,000, down by 18.69% and
21.52% respectively as compared with RMB789,082,000 and
RMB147,940,000 in the same period last year under the Hong
Kong Accounting Standards.)

For the first half of 2009, as the impacts of the global financial
crisis intensified, the domestic and overseas market demand
for machine tools continued to shrink with slumping exports.
The product sales revenue, total profits and gross industrial
output value continued to record negative growth. At the same
time, as the migration of product structure to large-scale and
heavy CNC machines accelerated, the Company faced fiercer
price competition. The overall macro-economic landscape
remained uncertain.

Amid such challenging and severe macro conditions, the
Company undertook a series of proactive, decisive and effective
corresponding measures through adopting proactive and
flexible marketing policies, enhancing its market expansion
efforts, expanding the horizontal and floor-type boring and
milling machine tools market; and maximizing the orders.
Meanwhile, the Company pushed ahead with the adjustment
of product structure, enhanced the R&D of CNC machine
tools and accelerated the production capacity. In April, the
Company successfully launched the brand new TK6926 CNC
floor-type boring and milling machine tools and delivered to
the customers. In May, the Company successfully launched the
XK2425 CNC gantry boring and milling machine tools, which

.
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established a sound foundation for its further expansion to
the gantry boring and milling machine tool area. The Company
persisted to improve the internal control management, enhanced
the corporate governance level and operational efficiency; in
addition to expanding income sources and reducing costs,
lowering production costs and management expenses. At the
same time, the Company reinforced the staff training and
enhanced their skills and capabilities. Its efforts were proved
to be effective. For the second quarter of 2009, the Company
manufactured 161 commercial machine tools, an increase of
62.23% over that in the first quarter; whereas the turnover,
new contract amount and inventory merchandise amount
amounted to RMB380 million, RMB311 million and RMB340
million respectively, up by 100%, 33% and 11% over those in
the first quarter. In particular, the inventory of horizontal boring
and milling machine tools decreased from 169 units in March
to 100 units. During the first half of the year, the total number
of completed CNC machine tools of the parent amounted to
130 units. The CNC production value was RMB568,156,000,
representing a period-on-period growth of 17.68%. Starting
from the second quarter, various figures and analyses have
indicated that the market is picking up gradually. However,
the Company’s major duties for the second half of the year
and thereafter are still securing more orders aggressively and
further reducing the inventory level.

Based on the market environment and the actual production
and operating conditions faced by the Company in the first
half of 2009, the Company was determined and united to
thoroughly analyse the general market conditions and adopt
crisis and contingency measures, meanwhile made better
adjustments and reinforced its foundation in commencing the
following key duties in a sound and effective manner:

1. Marketing: In focusing on securing contract orders and
minimize inventory merchandise, the Company strengthened
its marketing efforts and internal management assessment
system, adopted more flexible and effective marketing
policies, enhanced the development of its major sales
channels, and actively expanded the overseas sales markets
and the emerging markets of new source of energy,
railway development and automobile industry to extend
its customer base. In addition, the Company improved
the after-sales services to ensure customer satisfaction
through refining the after-sales services system and team
building.

2. Production: Due to the ever-changing market demand
and ongoing adjustment of the product structure, the
Company continued to push ahead with the transformation
of the production system; accelerated the technology
development of its production units, enhanced the
planned management level and operational efficiency
of production; increased the production units’ ability
to quickly respond to the market and customers; and
strengthened the production safety and security to ensure
that no major accidents occur throughout the year.
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Technology: With the aim to capture the opportunities
from developing into the national technology center and
the state’s high and new technology enterprise which
is engaged in the large-scale project of high-end CNC
machine tools, the Company strengthened the technology
innovation development of the Company, stepped up its
efforts in the development of new products including
gantry boring and milling machine tools, accelerated
the upgrade from traditional products; responded to
the new market demand and changes; stabilized and
expanded the market share; enhanced the integrated
competitiveness and ability to sustain the development
of the Company.

Quality control: The Company further reinforced the quality
control procedures, consolidated the quality standard
of the Company, pursued the performance excellence
model, and stabilized and enhanced the product quality.
Besides, through the upgrade of the quality management
system, the Company established and improved the work
standards and operation procedures for each department
and staff in order to increase the awareness of all staff
on quality and their sense of responsibility.

Technological renovation: Based on the actual conditions
and direction of strategic growth, the Company actively
and soundly accelerated the technological renovation of
the Company and launched the “6S” management model
to strengthen the on-site management.

Finance: In establishing the cost assessment system for
the products, the Company improved the cost control
and management, accelerated the development of the
internal control system, minimized and controlled the
business risks so as to enhance the management level
in all aspects.

Human resources management: The Company further
improved and established a more scientific, objective
and fair performance assessment and remuneration
management system; initiated the enthusiasm of the staff,
strengthened the system training of staff, and enhanced
the team building and talent pool of the Company in
terms management, technology and production.

N
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(D) AR EEEBRAKLERR (2) MAJOR OPERATION INFORMATION
1. FEERE>TE - ERBRE 1. Business segment or product information

Bfy T ME ARE

Unit: RMB
EERA BERA EEREE%
Operating
Operating Operating profit
DXL ER Business segment or product income expenses  margin (%)
BRERHERNIER Sales and processing of
machine tool products 555,876,363.35 352,495,947.26 36.59
B EEREE  RRRES Sales, installation and technical
services of highly efficient compressors 82,177,856.61 65,028,540.15 20.87
2. EEEXENITEEIALBER  EEZKA 2. Analysis on the changes of the market and the
B Y 2 b 18 R 1Y 5% BA operating costs of the major business
By T
Unit: RMB
LERE BRLHI% AE BREEA% BREE%
For the For the
six months ended Proportion six months ended Proportion Change
HH Items 30th June 2008 (%)  30th June 2009 (%) (%)
FRAR e 5 By Rt Raw materials and
ancillary materials 290,279,204.52 55.38 264,610,745.01 62.20 (8.84)
BEREAL Direct labor costs 32,523,106.40 6.20 30,152,022.18 7.09 (7.29)
FREHER Benefit expenses 12,087,741.63 2.31 16,081,018.78 3.78 33.04
IR Fuel 4,013,613.13 0.77 3,840,403.61 0.90 (4.32)
g1E Power 5,890,696.51 1.12 5,477,336.05 1.29 (7.02)
HEER Manufacturing costs 62,814,583.00 11.98 67,993,815.24 15.98 8.25
NBNIE Internal processing expenses 703,770.78 0.13 638,106.12 0.15 (9.33)
SNEMTE External processing expenses  115,928,081.15 22.11 36,610,633.60 8.61 (68.42)
Mt Sub-total 524,240,797.12  100.00  425,404,080.59 100.00 (18.85)
ARI|EB L ER AL FFR D During the Reporting Period, the operating costs decreased
98,837F jT ' B 1R A18.85% ' AL by RMB98,837,000 or 18.85% over that in the same period
NTERAEX TR TEEY last year, mainly attributable to the shrinking market demand
MBEGHE E2ERARD S BES as a result of the financial crisis. The operating income was
18.09% @ ANal&ERD MM - ER down by 18.09% due to the decrease in production and the
EBRMAEBRE FFREEMEIE - K decline in the price of raw materials such as steel and fuel
HEANE DN T ZEFEUR B FTEL - materials over the same period last year and the recovery of

a major portion of the external processing business.

Interim Report 2009 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited

s I




AREPRRGZEEENEKE35.77% @ R E
F[FHA34.88% FFH0.891EE HE - BN

1T

(1) SFBRARREER DRI RMEHE
& B 5% S BURM A 8 L F R R

25,668F It © RIS A8.84% °

(2) RREMGERE—FELEL BAASWH
MENA(E)RBIERREMNER
HHREMBEBRNLL O BSEA
RARZRNEAMEROHETS -

BATEME FFZERITA -

FERXBSITR  7EMBAE

During the Reporting Period, the consolidated gross profit
margin was 35.77 %, up by 0.89 percentage point as compared
to 34.88% over the same period last year. The details of the
analysis are as follows:

(1)

The raw materials decreased by RMB25,668,000 or 8.84%
over that in the same period last year due to the decrease
in the production of machine tools during the year and
the decline in the price of certain raw materials.

The Company further optimized the product structure and
increased the proportion of the production value of the
highly value-added large-scale/heavy CNC machine tool
products to the total production value of machine tool
products. However, the growth of the profit margin of
the Company was suppressed as a result of the prevailing
poor sales market

Turnover by business segment or product:

Notes:

Ef7 : ARBETT
Unit: RMB*000

2008F E¥F 20095 L¥E ERKHE W EFERH
£ 10N ERWA L l(%) Biw(%)
Proportion
Turnover Turnover of sales of
for the for the machine tools
first half first half to total
DTESIER Business segment or product of 2008 of 2009 sales (%)  Change (%)
7% Business segments
BAREREE General facilities production 279,711 179,860 31.29 (35.70)
ERREREE Specified facilities production 261,586 177,777 30.93 (32.04)
BEREW L EMEEE  Electric mechanical equipment production - 84,405 14.68 -
HpBiag Other production 109,128 132,782 23.10 21.68)
Em Products
EAT SR 88 IR Horizontal boring and milling machine tools 279,647 144,661 25.17 (48.27)
M S8R Floor-type boring and milling machine tools 274,528 406,649 70.74 48.13
e AR Table-type boring and milling machine tools 75,740 - - -
Hit Others 20,510 23,514 4.09 14.65
At Total 650,425 574,824 - (11.62)
Bt - Notes:

1. HSEBPHEHEAHEAREESR
WL OI(KRIBD)  HESHA
112,290 F o (hHE LB E
20.67% °

2. HISAEEEKBEAEAARE
BERLLG) - RESEAET 59,007
Foo o HIRBEELE29.14% ©

1.

The sales of top 5 customers to the total sales of the
Company (machine tools segment): Total sales amounted
to RMB112,290,000 and the proportion to total sales was
20.67%.

The purchases of top 5 suppliers to the total purchases of the
Company: Total purchases amounted to RMB59,007,000 and
the proportion to total purchases was 29.14%.

.
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BEMRAAEIEMBENBLELEE 4.

Material changes in major financials during the

K% B 19 5% BB Reporting Period over those in the same period
last year
By AR
Unit: RMB
BY
HRY (EFEEH) B BHIEE %
As at As at Increase/

HE Item 30th June 2009  30th June 2008 decrease Change (%)

BEE Total assets 2,000,306,229.25 1,911,770,243.53 88,535,985.72 4.63

EBEd Monetary assets 369,141,935.35  327,941,401.88 41,200,533.47 12.56

EREE Bills receivable 105,838,930.90 63,855,343.27 41,983,587.63 65.75

ERIR Construction in progress 57,753,764.73 29,926,270.49 27,827,494.24 92.99

ERZE Bills payable 19,794,425.00  14,226,445.60 5,567,979.40 39.14

JERTIRA Dividends payable 40,493,822.75 344,092.75  40,149,730.00 11,668.29

R B Taxes payable 19,010,099.06 (3,832,135.14) 22,842,234.20 596.07

RN Operating profit 110,677,461.34  154,381,972.39  (43,704,511.05) (28.31)

EXhe kAT Business tax and additions 386,392.28 725,562.11 (339,169.83) (46.75)

BEER Finance expenses 3,969,449.32 814,559.70 3,154,889.62 38731

2EIMIA Non-operating income 18,697,927.19  28,688,459.85 (9,990,532.66) (34.82)

Bt Non-operating expenses 718,531.21 3,575,829.01 (2,857,297.80) (79.91)

FHE Net profit 116,106,525.94 148,071,729.27 (31,965,203.33) (21.59)

BERBLEBMFENE  Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 41,200,533.47  34,379,618.42 6,820,915.05 19.84

A BEBFEINEEARFEI-6H A. The increase in total assets was due to the expansion
NAEELEEBRE TETH of the asset size as the production and operations of
RSB BEREE—FIFEL: the Company for the six months ended 30th June 2009
48 & EHN188,535,985.737C © & continued to maintain satisfactory growth. The total assets
& ) & B 1 Hn59,604,136.54 increased by RMB88,535,985.73 as the current assets
JC EETIEHEN27,827,494.24 increased by RMB59,604,136.54 and the construction
JURTEL in progress increased by RMB27,827,494.24;

B. BEEELEMNEERAIRIDE B. The increase in monetary assets was due to the decrease
5 WEKEEESITH in inventory and the recovery of a large amount of

capital;

C. FEREEENMEHNAHEEL C. Theincrease in bills receivable was due to the utilization of
BREEBTERIESAE a large amount of bank acceptance bills upon settlement

of sales during the period;

D. TEEIRBIEMIEARAE—FIE D. The increase in construction in progress was due to the
HEHEBE NXETEERE expansion of fixed asset investment in order to further
FTEL enhance the scale of production and sales;

EE. BENEEENRERTAAER E. The increase in bills payable was due to the utilization
NBAREFHREMNEZRETEE of a large amount of notes payable by Xi'an Ser, its
ey subsidiary, for settlement;

Foo OERERFIE N - £ FE #2008 F.  Theincrease in dividends payable allowed the withdrawal
FEFEOE ST EMK of dividends payable under the profit distribution proposal
A for 2008 implemented by the Company;

G. EXHEENEERLFRFE G. The increase in taxes payable was due to the pre-paid

BB REAREFEMNNER
B AFEARRAGERLR
REFEENBR SR IMATE

taxes as at the end of the prior year and a large amount
of deductible credits, as well as the tax settlement for
the year and the increase in the taxes incurred in the
course of normal operations;
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The decrease in operating profit was due to the decrease
in sales revenue as a result of the financial crisis;

The increase in finance expenses was due to the accrued
interests from the additional RMB50 million loans of the
Company;

The decrease in the non-operating income was due to the
decrease of the 50% value-added tax on CNC machine
tools paid and refunded during the Reporting Period of
RMB9,990,532.66 over that in the corresponding period
last year;

The decrease of non-operating expenses was due to
the decrease in the loss on disposal of fixed assets of
RMB1,441,195.68 and the decrease in the loss on debt
restructuring of RMB1,578,450 over those in the same
period last year;

The decrease in net profit was mainly due to the decrease
in the sales revenue;

The net increase in cash and cash equivalents was due
to the decrease in inventory and the recovery of a large
amount of capital.

5. FEEZRAARZSRATDNKEER 5. Review of operations and business analysis

MREEDN for major controlling companies and invested
companies
7 ARMTT
Unit: RMB’000
GES EEME FTEERBRE THEX BERE B
Nature of Registered
Name business Major products or services capital Total assets Net profit
ARRAZRUTNERBERECLR xR SRR T B 50,000 389,779 588
Xi'an Ser Turbo Machinery Manufacturing Energy saving compressor
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. and turbo machines
BREHLA T LagE 500 1,037 (105)
Kunji Transportation Co., Ltd. Transportation General cargo transportation
EARKERAEEREAAT HEZ BRREMMEE - RENEE 3,000 77,109 2,748
Kunming Kunji General Machine Manufacturing Development, design and sales of
Co., Ltd. machine tool products and accessories
REEHEBERERELARA HEE RE &5t £EA 5,000 8,270 (1)

Manufacturing 355 BERR R Em R
Development, design, production
and sales of self-produced machine
tool series products and accessories

Fujian Kunji Conventional
Machine Tool Co., Ltd.

ERRARBEIREERLT BiEX BRVBERBITANES 20,230 7,027 (3,405)
Winko Machines Co., Ltd. Manufacturing Intelligent color display computerized
embroidery machine and rotary table

AR ERERETIRHRAERAA REF REKLHEZRE 60,000 99,009 (408)
Xi'an Ruite Laser Prototyping Manufacturing Laser prototyping machine

Manufacturing & Engineering

Research Co., Ltd.

EREHRABRAR RiEX e Ret o LEN 5005 (EL) 147,617 12,358
HEBERA R ERREN
TOS Kunming Machine Tool Manufacturing Development, design, production 5 million (Euro)

and sales of self-produced machine
tool series products and accessories

Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
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(2)

Discussion and analysis of important issues relating
to the operations of the Company, including the
securing of purchase orders, product sales or
inventory turnover and changes in the profile of
key technicians

As at 30th June 2009, the amount of new contracts amounted
to RMB544 million and 77.03% was attributable to CNC
products. There was temporary inventory of certain horizontal
boring and milling machine tools but no change in the profile
of key technicians.

INVESTMENT OF THE COMPANY
Use of proceeds from raised fund

During the Reporting Period, there were no proceeds from
new raised funds, nor any proceeds from previous raised funds
being utilized for the period.

Use of proceeds from non-raised fund

During the Reporting Period, after approval from the Board
and based on its growth needs, the Company intended to
enter into a land acquisition agreement occupying an area of
634 acreages (where the actual measurements shall prevail)
in Yanglin Industrial Park with the Peoples’ Government in
Songming County under Kunming City at a total consideration
of RMB50.72 million (equivalent to RMB80,000 per acreage) for
the development of the heavy casting base of the Company.
Such base is mainly used for the construction and development
a production base that combines heavy casting, processing
and assembly procedures.

The entire project is expected to carry out in phases. In particular,
the planning and investment proposals will be adjusted based
on the economic changes and its own operating conditions.
The land acquisition project relates to the expansion project
of machine tools and is fully financed by internal funding.

The land acquisition matter is subject to the approval at the
latest general meeting of the Company. For details, please refer
to the announcement dated 27th June 2009. The Company
will issue a separate announcement for any development of
such matter.
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VI.

(1)

(2)

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The Company has complied with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules issued by the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as the code for securities
transactions by the directors. Having made all enquiries, all
directors and supervisors of the Company confirm that all
directors and supervisors of the Company are in compliance
with the Mode Code and its own code on the standards for
securities transactions by directors.

The Company has established the modern enterprise system,
continued to improve the corporate governance and regulated
the operation of the Company pursuant to Company Law of the
PRC, Securities Law of the PRC and other relevant regulations
issued by the CSRC and Shanghai Stock Exchange. The systems
of the Company are substantially in compliance with the
requirements under the Standard of Corporate Governance
for PRC Listed Companies jointly issued by CSRC and National
Development and Reform Commission.

IMPLEMENTATION OF PROFIT DISTRIBUTION
PROPOSAL FOR THE REPORTING PERIOD

As proposed at the seventh meeting of the sixth session of the
Board, the profit distribution proposal for 2008 was approved
at the 2008 annual general meeting held on 19th June 2009.
In accordance with the PRC Accounting Standards, in 2008, the
Company recorded a net profit of RMB276,564,900. Pursuant
to the requirements of the Articles of Association, the net
profit realized by the Company shall be first transferred to the
surplus reserves as to RMB26,695,850, resulting in the profit
available for distribution of RMB414,246,950. In particular, the
parent company recorded a net profit of RMB266,958,510 and
an accumulated undistributed profit of RMB351,364,820. In
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
the Company recorded a net profit of RMB276,565,000.
After transferring RMB26,696,000 to the surplus reserves,
the profit available for distribution is RMB412,598,000. The
profit available for distribution in accordance with the PRC
accounting standards amounted to RMB351,364,820.

Proposed distribution of profit for the year 2008: cash bonus
dividend of RMB0.943 (tax inclusive) would be distributed for
every 10 shares held based on the existing total share capital
of 424,864,883 shares, totaling RMB40,064,760 in cash.

-
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(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

On 13th July 2009, the Company paid the cash bonus dividend
to the holders of A Shares of the Company whose names
appeared on the register of holders of A Shares of the Company
on the record date (i.e. 3rd July 2009). The Company directly
paid the cash bonus dividend to the holders of selling restricted
circulating A Shares and appointed China Securities Depositories
& Clearing Corporation Limited, Shanghai Branch to pay the
cash bonus dividend to the holders of selling unrestricted
circulating A Shares.

On 30th July 2009, the Company paid the cash bonus dividend
to the holders of H Shares whose names appeared on the
register of holders of H Shares of the Company on the record
date (i.e. 19th May 2009). The cash bonus dividend paid to the
holders of H Shares were declared in RMB and paid in Hong
Kong dollars. The exchange rate was HK$100 to RMB88.153,
which was calculated in accordance with the exchange rate
for Hong Kong dollar to Renminbi as announced by the
People’s Bank of China on the day prior to the date of the
announcement of the dividend (i.e. 19th June 2009). The final
dividend for each H Share was HK$0.10697 (tax inclusive). The
Company appointed ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited as the
receiving agent (“Receiving Agent”) in Hong Kong to receive
the dividends on behalf of the holders of H Shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Since there was no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, the Company did not have
any arrangement for the pre-emptive rights scheme during
the Reporting Period.

WARRANTS AND OTHERS

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries issued any warrants,
convertible securities, options or other securities with similar
rights, nor did any person exercise any rights as stated
above.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any securities issued by the Company during
Reporting Period.

BANK LOANS,
BORROWINGS

OVERDRAFT AND OTHER

Details of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings as
at 30th June 2009 are set out in the Notes to the financial
statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30th June 2009, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.
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(8) MAIJOR LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATIONS

There was no major litigation or arbitration in the Reporting
Period.

(9) SHAREHOLDINGS IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES
AND INVESTED COMPANIES

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not have
any shareholding in other listed companies and invested
companies.

(10) PURCHASE AND DISPOSAL OF ASSETS OR MERGER
AND ACQUISITION ACTIVITIES DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD

During the Reporting Period, there was no purchase and
disposal of assets or merger and acquisition activities.

(11) MAJOR CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD

During the Reporting Period, there was no major connected
transaction.

(12) TRUST

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not enter into
any trust arrangement.

(13) SUBCONTRACTING CONTRACTS

There was no subcontracting contract during the Reporting
Period.

(14) LEASE ARRANGEMENT

There was no lease arrangement during the Reporting
Period.

(15) GUARANTEE

Xi'an Ser, a subsidiary of the Company, provided guarantee
for its wholly-owned subsidiary, Changsha Ser in respect of a
bank loan with a line of credit amounting to RMB60 million
comprising RMB40 million short-term working capital and
RMB20 million bank acceptance bills. The guarantee provides
for the maximum joint and several liabilities with the duration
of the guarantee as stipulated in the contract. As the Company
holds 45% equity interests in Xi‘an Ser, the Company is liable
to RMB27 million of the guarantee.

The resolution was passed at the third meeting of the fourth
session of the Board of Xi‘an Ser held on 23rd March 2009,
which was then proposed at the seventh meeting of the sixth
session of the Board of the Company for approval where the
resolution was approval by 12 directors of the Company on a
poll. On 19th June 2009, the above resolution was passed at
the general meeting for 2008 of the Company.

.
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Save as the above guarantee with a line of credit of RMB27 million
provided by its subsidiary, Xi'an Ser based on its shareholdings,
the Company did not have any other guarantee.

(16) ENTRUSTED INVESTMENT

There was no entrusted investment in the Reporting Period.

(17) OTHER MAJOR CONTRACTS

There was no other major contract during the Reporting
Period.

(18) COMMITMENTS

1.

Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. and Yunnan
State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd. undertook that
the shares held by them would not be sold through the
stock exchange for trading from listing to 31st December
2010. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the shares
held by the above shareholders were not tradable.

Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. and Yunnan
State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd. undertook that
the resolution on the transfer of capital reserves to new
shares be proposed and approved at the general meeting
within one year after the completion of share reform on
the basis of no less than five new shares for every 10
shares held. Such resolution was approved at the general
meeting and relevant class meetings for 2006 held on
29th June 2007 and the transfer was completed.

Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. and Yunnan
State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd. undertook that
the resolution on the distribution of profits of no less
than 50% of profits in the form of cash bonus dividend
be proposed and approved at the general meeting if the
performance of the Company in 2006 or 2007 fulfils the
conditions for distribution of profits to shareholders. Such
distribution of profits was completed in July 2008.

Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. undertook that
it would provide full support to the business development
of the Company in terms of technology, corporate
management and resources and would consolidate the
relevant resources and markets leverage on its own unique
strengths based on the principles and models favorable
to accelerating the growth of the Company within two
years after the share transfer and share reform with a
view to develop Kunming Machine Tool as the important
platform for technological upgrade, business expansion
and sector growth to provide comprehensive support and
facilitate the sustainable and healthy development of
the Company. Currently, Shenyang Machine Tool (Group)
Co., Ltd. has introduced production management officers
to the Company in order to facilitate the increase in
the production management capabilities and provide
convenience for the exports of the Company in terms
of market expansion.
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(19) APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF AUDITORS

AN T R Domestic auditor
hESTHMEBAMER AR Zonzun Accounting Office Limited
SN G ET BN P TR Foreign auditor
EHEEsHETT KPMG
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SIRERER
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(20) PENALTIES ON THE COMPANY, ITS DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OFFICERS,
SHAREHOLDERS AND BENEFICIAL CONTROLLER OF
THE COMPANY, AND RECTIFICATION ISSUES

Nil

CH-HMEASERERENBRL R
#97 #r 5 B3

AN A FA20094F6 A U B B Bk 5F 5 &=
HEVBEREENEETENTH
FE B R[2009]795% X H — MIZE
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(21) OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS, THEIR EFFECTS AND
RESOLUTIONS

The Company received a Written Reply Regarding the Application
for Value-added Tax Return from the Yunnan Provincial Financial
Supervision Office under the Ministry of Finance in June 2009
(file no.:BA BF EEZ3R[2009]79%%) which approved to return 50%
of the paid value-added tax of the Company for the year ended
31st December 2008 in the amount of RMB17,172,846.19 to
the Company.

) ERREEC (22) INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

ESe] HENBET EBRIRE SRR HENEBARURBRERRT
Event Publishing newspaper Publishing Date Website
BREGRERFRFRORRE (PEZEHR) (LEEHFR) 200942 A 18H http://www.sse.com.cn

N

Indicative announcement on
the disposal of selling
restricted shares

BREGHOTBR ERAS

Announcement on the
trading of selling restricted
circulating shares

EHmE
Regular report

ENEEEEELRERARLRE

Announcement on the results of
the seveth meeting of the sixth
session of the Board

(BHER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(hEESFR) (LEEFHR)
(BHER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(FEZESF®R) (LBBEFR)
(BHER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(hEESFR) (LEEFHR)
(BHER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

18th February 2009

200963A7H
7th March 2009

20094 H23H
23rd April 2009

200944 H23H
23rd April 2009

http://www.hkex.com.hk *
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn »
http://www.hkex.com.hk -
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn »
http://www.hkex.com.hk
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn »
http://www.hkex.com.hk
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn
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ES

Event

FIMBHT BB RIRE

Publishing newspaper

Sk
Publishing Date

BN EBBRURRREZ
Website

EREEZEE_RNRERSE
Announcement on the results of
the second meeting of the

sixth session of the
Supervisory Committee

TEHmE
Regular report

2008 ERR R EGMmA
Notice of 2008 AGM

20095 8 — KRR R K & 3 A
Notice of the 1st
EGM for 2009

B 2008 FREIRE A R IFE M
BRAARE

Supplemental announcement
on the 2008 annual report
management expenses
and inventory

R RMREIRINEERIEA2008
FERSMEHERNATF

Announcement on the withholding
tax levied on the dividends to
overseas non-resident legal
persons for 2008

N

Announcement from the Board

2008FEREERELE
Announcement on the results of
2008 AGM

(hEZEFR) (LBZEZH)
(EHEER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(FEBEHH) (LBEEHH)
(BHER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(hEIEZ®R)  (LBEFR)
(FEHER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(hEZEFR) (LEEHFHR)
(EBHER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(hEZEF®R) (LBEZEFR)
(EHER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(FEZESFR) (LEEHFHR)
(BEHFR)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(PEBEF®R)  (LBEFR)
(BHER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

200944 H23H
23rd April 2009

200954 H24H
24th April 2009

2009%F4A30H
30th April 2009

200944 H30AH
30th April 2009

2009454 7H
7th May 2009

2009%5A12A
12th May 2009

200946 H20A
20th June 2009

20096 A20H
20th June 2009

http://www.sse.com.cn »
http://www.hkex.com.hk
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn *
http://www.hkex.com.hk
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn »
http://www.hkex.com.hk
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn »
http://www.hkex.com.hk »
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn »
http://www.hkex.com.hk
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn »
http://www.hkex.com.hk
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn »
http://www.hkex.com.hk
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

Interim Report 2009 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited

2 I




ESE

Event

FIBME BT BB R IRE

Publishing newspaper
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Publishing Date

HEWEHARUERRREE
Website

20094 8 — IR RR ARG
nE

Announcement on the results of
the 1st EGM for 2009

EETWEA AL
Announcemnt on the purchase of
land project

2008FARA B R ER DS

Announcement on the
implementation of profit
distribution of A Shares for 2008

2008 FHIRAEA LB A S

Announcement on the
implementation of profit
distribution of H Shares for 2008

(hEZESFHR) (LBFFH)
(EHER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(FEZEFR) (LEEFKR)
(BHER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

(hEZEZ®R) (LBEFR)
(FBHER)

China Securities Daily,
Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Times

200946 H20H
20th June 2009

2009%6 H27H
27th June 2009

2009F6A30H
30th June 2009

200947 A8H
8th July 2009

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk *
http://www.kmtcl.com.cn

http://www.sse.com.cn *
http://www.hkex.com.hk *
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http://www.hkex.com.hk *
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VII. FINANCIAL REPORT

A. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

(1) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BALANCE SHEET

As at 30th June 2009

By: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.

By T BB ARK

Unit: RMB

MaE HiREREE FIEREE

As at As at

30th June 31st December

Items EH Notes 2009 2008
ﬂﬁibﬁ& : CURRENT ASSETS:

BEBES Monetary assets 369,141,935.35 327,941,401.88
zikkﬁﬁi Settlement reserves - -
FHES Loans to other banks - -
ReEMEHMEE Trading financial assets - -
e = Bills receivable 105,838,930.90 63,855,343.27
FEUAR R Accounts receivable 196,944,966.26 185,708,633.74
TEF FRIE Prepayments 64,897,910.04 50,945,269.94
JEURIR & Premiums receivable - -
UL D IR BR TR Reinsurance accounts receivable - -
RS REREERES Reinsurance contract

reserve receivable - -
B U FI B, Interests receivable - -
JrE U B ) Dividends receivable - -
L & YR Other receivables 19,393,084.71 15,790,025.36

BEARESREE

e
—FRNEHNERBEE

HiREEE
RBEEST

FHRBEE :
BB R MR
AHHESREE
ﬁﬁ%J%&é
= HAJE U 3
RERERE
WEMEME
BT EE
ERIR
TEME
BT EELE
HEWEYERE
SHAAE
m A E
FEE S H
EES
BB A
RIEFTS T E BE
HiIERsEE

FRBEES
BEEAG

Purchase and sell-back of

financial assets
Inventories
Non-current assets due

within one year
Other current assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Loans and advances granted
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity investment

Long-term receivables

Long-term equity investment
Real estate held for investment

Fixed assets

Construction in progress

Project materials
Disposal of fixed assets

Productive biological assets

Oil assets
Intangible assets
Development cost
Goodwill

Long-term deferred expenditures
Deferred income tax assets
Other non-current assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

610,924,340.62

663,296,357.16

1,367,141,167.88

1,307,537,031.35

49,753,468.83

440,544,888.55
57,753,764.73

36,223,565.84

7,296,277.20
247,325.90
41,345,770.32

53,205,605.05

442,941,475.00
29,926,270.49

33,273,841.17

7,296,277.00
328,967.70
37,260,775.74

633,165,061.37

604,233,212.15

2,000,306,229.25

1,911,770,243.50
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EHEERER(E)

BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

200946 A30H As at 30th June 2009
MREN - LB ZHERR T BERA A By: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
By T KE - ARE
5 Unit: RMB
Mzt HRERER FHERE
As at As at
30th June 31st December
Items EH Notes 2009 2008
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES:
SR Short-term loans 70,000,000.00 70,000,000.00
[ RERITIER Borrowings from central bank - -
WU TR R ZEGF R Deposits from customers and
. deposits from banks received = =
FABS Loans from other banks = =
REMEHEIE Trading financial liabilities - -
JEN 2’ Bills payable 19,794,425.00 14,226,445.60
FEATBR SR Accounts payable 182,068,863.63 206,953,402.63
TadRIE Advance from customers 407,677,305.97 433,644,514.95
BEHEEESREER Gain on disposal of
B repurchased financial assets - -
ENFEERER Fees and commissions payable - -
JFE A<T B8 L %5 B Accrued salary 30,884,640.83 36,753,791.91
BB Taxes payable 19,010,099.06 (3,832,135.14)
JFEAST 7 2, Interests payable - -
JE AT R Dividends payable 40,493,822.75 344,092.75
Hh JE T 3R Other payables 13,274,406.26 12,724,709.38
JE 3 IR BR K Reinsurance accounts payables - -
RiesREERSD Insurance contract reserve payable - -
REEFFHSFK Agency securities trading - -
RIBEGHE 77K Agency securities underwriting - -
—FREEHNIEREEME  Non-current liabilities due
within one year - -
HEtishafE Other current liabilities - -
REBEESE TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 783,203,563.50 770,814,822.08
FREBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
RHIER Long-term borrowings - -
JERES Bonds payable - -
RHIERR Long-term payables 2,836,197.20 2,771,717.30
HIRFE K Specific payables 8,100,000.00 8,100,000.00
HEi e Contingent liabilities 13,756,318.40 13,803,999.97
BREMTSHREE Deferred income tax liabilities - -
HinIERBaE Other non-current liabilities 10,466,253.41 10,568,903.51
FREBEEST TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 35,158,769.01 35,244,620.78
BEEF TOTAL LIABILITIES 818,362,332.51 806,059,442.86
IRERBE = Shareholders’ equity:
[N Share capital 424,864,883.00 424,864,883.00
BRRDIE Capital reserve 133,519,541.72 133,519,541.72
o BERR Less: treasury shares - -
BER AR Surplus reserve 68,599,140.08 68,599,140.08
—RRE R Common risk provision - -
AOBME Undistributed profits 490,203,743.42 414,246,947 .45
INEESRRITE AR Foreign currency translation
) difference - -
BENSRBIME Total equity attributable to
ErEmAaET the holders of the parent company 1,117,187,308.22 1,041,230,512.25
DER R R Minority interests 64,756,588.52 64,480,288.39
RREZEF TOTAL EQUITY 1,181,943,896.74 1,105,710,800.64
EENRRERET TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2,000,306,229.25 1,911,770,243.50
NaVEERREKA : = AR Legal representative of the Company:  Mr. Gao Minghui,
FEe:HTIEEF A : ER Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo,
SIHEAT A B Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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200946 A30H

HRREN  THEEEFEAERR D AR A

BALANCE SHEET OF THE PARENT COMPANY
As at 30th June 2009

By: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.

Bfy T ME ARE

Unit: RMB

HfaF HRERER FYHE

As at As at

30th June 31st December

EH Items Notes 2009 2008
REEE : CURRENT ASSETS:

BE¥ER Monetary assets 315,510,979.28 279,084,078.67

RPMEHMEE Trading financial assets = =

R EE Bills receivable 89,586,908.10 44,172,517.90

FEUER R Accounts receivable 141,589,924.87 156,220,714.18

TETFRIE Prepayments 17,252,108.60 21,710,636.73

FEURFI B, Interests receivable - -

JE S 3% ) Dividends receivable 11,000,000.00 11,000,000.00

L WK Other receivables 14,031,252.38 42,864,973.59

FE Inventories 406,065,122.71 439,415,513.71

—FRIHNERBEE

Non-current assets due
within one year

BErsEE Other current assets - -
RBEEAST TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 995,036,295.94 994,468,434.78
FIRBEE : NON-CURRENT ASSETS:

AHHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets - -

BFEZIHPKRE

Held-to-maturity investment

£ HA e W Long-term receivables - -
REARERE Long-term equity investment 77,446,734.89 80,898,870.90
HEEEE Real estate held for investment - -
EE & E Fixed assets 382,094,647.95 381,727,586.57
EETR Construction in progress 57,753,764.73 29,926,270.49
IEME Project materials - -
EFEESE Disposal of fixed assets - -
EEEEMEE Productive biological assets - -
HMREE Oil assets - _
mEAE Intangible assets 23,398,575.29 20,294,842.49
FEZ W Development cost - -
EES Goodwill - _
RHAFEER Long-term deferred expenditures 150,000.00 206,250.00
BIEFTRTREE Deferred income tax assets 42,432,728.04 39,011,311.24
HEMIERBEE Other non-current assets - -

IRBEESF TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 583,276,450.90 552,065,131.69

BEMAG TOTAL ASSETS 1,578,312,746.84 1,546,533,566.47
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BAREERER(E)
200946 A30H

MRRE  THEBER PR BERLA]

BALANCE SHEET OF THE PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

As at 30th June 2009

By: Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.

By T KR ARK

Unit: RMB

HREREE FHEREE

As at As at

30th June 31st December

EHH Items 2009 2008

REEE: CURRENT LIABILITIES:

EHIE Short-term loans 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00

REMEMARE Trading financial liabilities = =

B EE Bills payable = =

FE AT BR X Accounts payable 107,063,602.34 153,246,174.66

T FRIE Advance from customers 243,226,523.72 264,430,731.01

JE A< B T %7 M Accrued salary 29,332,231.96 35,004,475.78

ERE Taxes payable 19,335,691.74 5,180,393.38

FEAT )2 Interests payable - -
JE A~ % Dividends payable 40,149,730.00

E fth JE AT 3R Other payables 8,900,507.93 33,352,954.85

—FRIPNERB AR

Non-current liabilities due
within one year

HEimEaE Other current liabilities - -
REBAESE TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 498,008,287.69 541,214,729.68
FREBEE : NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:

RAEIE R Long-term borrowings - -

e ES Bonds payable

RHEA R Long-term payables 2,836,197.20 2,771,717.30

HIAFENRR Specific payables - -

iCEIN=NE Contingent liabilities 13,220,999.89 13,629,831.05

RIEFMEHEE Deferred income tax liabilities - -

HidEReBE Other non-current liabilities 10,466,253.41 10,568,903.51
ERBEEEE TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 26,523,450.50 26,970,451.86
B8EE% TOTAL LIABILITIES 524,531,738.19 568,185,181.54
RERMER - Shareholders’ equity:

f&% A Share capital 424,864,883.00 424,864,883.00

BARRE Capital reserve 133,519,541.72 133,519,541.72

B R Less: treasury shares - -

BHAE Surplus reserve 68,599,140.08 68,599,140.08

R BL A Undistributed profits 426,797,443.85 351,364,820.13

INERKRITE E Foreign currency translation

difference - -
BREREZS TOTAL EQUITY 1,053,781,008.65 978,348,384.93
EENREERET TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1,578,312,746.84 1,546,533,566.47
NaVEERREKA : SRR Legal representative of the Company: Mr. Gao Minghui,
FEEFTIEEEA FZ 3 B Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo,
FIWBEEA HIEH Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen

R
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BHfFER

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

200941 — 67 For the six months ended 30th June 2009
By o KE:AREK
Unit: RMB
iz AHEHE THEE

For the six months ended 30th June
EH Items Notes 2009 2008
—EEHWA 1. Total operating income = =
Hep: 82KA Including: Operating income 662,304,061.26 808,588,142.53
BRI ON Interest income - =
ERRE Premium earned = -
FEELESRA Fee and commission income = =
ToEEARK 2. Total operating costs = =
Hep - SR Including: Operating costs 425,404,080.59 524,240,797.12
FlEZ Interest expense - -
FEBRESIN Fee and commission expenses - -
RIRE Premium refunded - -
BT 35 Net compensation expenses - -
RORBARERSFE Net insurance contract

reserve withdrawn - -
REAAZ Premium honus expenses - -
NREM Reinsurance expenses - -
BERS RKM Business tax and additions 386,392.28 725,562.11
HEER Selling expenses 33,127,359.55 36,671,351.96
EEBH Administrative expenses 80,267,587.98 79,761,081.28
MBER Finance expenses 3,969,449.32 814,559.70
BERERK Losses on impairment of assets 14,519,594.19 19,011,194.91

e RAEEZDRE
(BRI T—] SEF)
REWE (BRI -] FET)
A HBRLEN
RELENRENE

B (BRI T SEF)

CEENRE BRI - J5RE5)
i ERINRA
B BRI
A FRDEEREFER

=

] RIBRAE(BRAEA - 5RE5)
o REHER

=1}

BRRBCFEBRA - 15RE5)
FERERAMBENFNE

PERFEER
N BRRE

(=) EAEE
(DB

N

RAPEERRA ¢ = AR Legal representative of the Company:
IFEEFIEESA 2R Chief Financial Officer:
FEHEEEA HHIB 2 Prepared by:

Add: Gain on fair value change
("=" for loss)
Investment income (“=" for loss)
Including: Investment income
from associates
and joint ventures
Exchange gain ("-" for loss)

3. Operating profits (“-" for loss)
Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses
Including: Net loss on disposal
of non-current assets

4. Total profits ("-" for loss)
Less: Income tax expenses

5. Net profits (“-" for loss)
Net profit attributable to the
equity holders’ of the parent company
Minority interests

6. Earnings per share
(1) Basic EPS
(2) Diluted EPS

6,047,863.99

7,018,376.94
3,258

110,677,461.34
18,697,927.19
718,531.21

154,381,972.39
28,688,459.85
3,575,829.01

128,656,857.32
12,274,031.25

179,494,603.23
25,923,362.52

116,382,826.07 153,571,240.71
116,106,525.94 148,071,729.27
276,300.13 5,499,511.44
0.2733 0.3485

0.2733 0.3485

Mr. Gao Minghui,

Mr. Pi Jianguo,
Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT OF THE PARENT
COMPANY

FRFFBER

200941 — 6 A For the six months ended 30th June 2009
By o KE:ARK
Unit: RMB
5H ik AEEE LHsHE

For the six months ended 30th June

Items Notes 2009 2008
—EERA Operating income 543,322,717.51 607,759,092.54
B EERA Less: Operating costs 326,307,342.79 366,807,424.87
SER S RIT Business tax and additions . -
HEER Selling expenses 28,093,155.54 28,991,076.97
ERER Administrative expenses 67,144,115.23 69,291,710.65
BB Finance expenses 2,516,216.37 253,331.46
BERBEEX Losses on impairment of assets 15,650,040.53 21,544,684.89

m: RaBEEHREBXRIA -] FE)

BENE (BRI T SEF)
Ao HBEOEMA2ERNRE R

ZoEENBOSRMI - RED)
s EEINEA
B BRI
A FRBDEEREFER

FRAE(BRAEN - RED)
B S RER

=

BRI RBRMN - I5RE5)

Add: Gain on fair value change
(=" for loss)
Investment income (“=" for loss)
Including:Investment income
from associates and
joint ventures

Operating profits (“-" for loss)

Add: Non-operating income

Less: Non-operating expenses

Including:Net loss on disposal of
non-current assets

. Total profits ("-" for loss)

Less: Income tax expenses

Net profits (“-" for loss)

6,047,863.99

12,411,881.08

- 3,258
109,659,711.04 133,282,744.78
18,427,847.19 26,900,614.02
632,005.63 1,839,771.64

127,455,552.60
11,873,198.91

158,343,587.16
19,593,364.62

115,582,353.69

138,750,222.54

NALEEREA ¢ = B e Legal representative of the Company: Mr. Gao Minghui,
TESHIEAEA J5g=4E1 Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo,
FEHEEEA IE Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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EHRERER CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

200941 — 6 7 For the six months ended 30th June 2009
By o KE:AREK
Unit: RMB
fiat AHEHE LHSHE
For the six months ended 30th June
R Items Notes 2009 2008
- REEBELMNALRE 1. Cash flows from operating activities:
HERm  RESHKINER S Cash received from sale of goods or
rendering of services 510,429,591.99 835,151,402.68
EPERNREFRFEFENE Net increase in deposits from customers
and deposits from other banks - -
R A R AT (B0 I Net increase in borrowings from central bank = =
Wﬁﬁt?mﬂ%*ﬁ?ﬁ/\ B FHEmNE Net increase in loans from other financial institutions = =
W RRBRARRERENRS Cash premiums received from existing insurance contracts = =
WEBRBEBREFE Net cash received from reinsurance business = =
RPHE RRETFEME Net increase in deposit and investment from the insured - -
REQSUSRAETHENE Net increase on disposal of trading financial assets - -
YmAE  FEBERESNRS Cash from interest, fee and commission received - -
FABSFEME Net increase in loans from other banks - -
EEXHESFENE Net increase in loans of repurchased business - -
WENHERE Refund of tax received 17,172,846.19 26,983,058.82
WEEpECEEHEENRE Other cash received relating to operating activities 2,167,410.08 (12,187,169.01)
BEEBRERANG Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 529,769,848.26 849,947,292.49
BERM  BEXYEINNRE Cash paid for purchase of goods and services 266,713,256.98 596,626,513.01

REERRBTFE N Net increase in customer loans and advances - -
ﬁﬁi??&?ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂ% JIE RS Net increase in deposits with central bank and other banks - -
IRRRBARBNTENRS Cash compensations paid for existing insurance contracts - -
SRS FEERERNRS Cash paid for interest, fee and commission - -
TRREAFERS Cash paid for premium bonus - -
IHABTUR BRI ARES Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 103,628,001.90 104,225,683.29
SNMBERE Taxed paid 17,396,128.43 65,273,771.90
IREMEELEHEENES Other cash paid relating to operating activities 73,820,753.55 18,388,061.29
QEFYRLML/ NG Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 461,558,140.86 784,514,029.49
RERPEENRLREFE Net cash flows from operating activities 68,211,707.40 65,433,262.99

T RETBELNRERE 2. Cash flows from investing activities:
”&@T Eelpka Cash received from recovery of investment - 145,000,000.00
NERERREKENR Cash received from return on investment 9,500,000.00 3,453,205.48
J&EEESE B EEA Net cash received from disposal of
A RBEENENALTE fixed assets, intangible assets and
other long-term assets 71,102.00 1,651,046.60
RETARREMEEEN Net cash received from disposal of

BENREFE subsidiaries and other business units - 150,104,252.08
WEHEREREEDEENR Other cash received relating to investing activities
RERBREMANG Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 9,571,102.00 150,104,252.08
ERETEE  BREEAN Cash paid to acquire fixed assets,

HhREEEYRANBSE intangible assets and long-term assets 34,010,510.35 45,538,991.31
RAXRNRS Cash paid for investment - 145,500,000.00
ETWM@@HD%E Net increase in pledged loans - -
REFREREMEREN Net cash paid to acquire subsidiaries

iﬁﬁ’\]fﬁﬁ‘}%ﬁ and other business units - -
XREMEREEDEENR Other cash paid relating to investing activities - 9,900.00
REEHHES ML NG Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 34,010,510.35 191,048,891.31
REGHEENRRNETE Net cash flows from investing activities (24,439,408.35) (40,944,639.23)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

200941 — 6H For the six months ended 30th June 2009
By r KE:AREK
Unit: RMB
Hizt N ] THSHE
For the six months ended 30th June
EHH Items Notes 2009 2008
= BETBHELNBEERE 3. Cash flows from financing activities:
Rz BWEIRRE Cash received from capital contribution = 2,500,000.00
B FRARKIERR Including: Cash received from investment of
REWEMRES minority shareholders of subsidiaries = =
REERLINRS Cash from borrowings 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
?Xfﬂ,ﬁ%@m’ﬁﬁi Cash received from bond issuance = -
WEEHESRTDERN RS Other cash received relating to financing activities = 157,479.27
ELEHRSTANGT Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 20,000,000.00 22,657,479.27
BEERLNNERS Cash repayments for amounts borrowed 20,000,000.00
AEER - FIERERHE Cash paid for distribution of dividends,
IRNRS profits or repayment of interest expenses 1,868,507.00 11,576,658.53
B FRAXNRVERE Including: Dividends and profits paid
BRF - FIE by subsidiaries to minority shareholders - -
IREMEEEEDERENRS Other cash paid relating to financing activities - 15,804.01
BEEDRST G Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities 21,868,507.00 11,592,462.54
BEEDEANBEREFE Net cash flows from financing activities (1,868,507.00) 11,065,016.73
CEXZBHRLR 4. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
BEZENNY on cash and cash equivalents (703,258.58) (1,174,022.07)
I BeRALSENTFENE 5. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 41,200,533.47 34,379,618.42
NEVEERREA : SRR Legal representative of the Company: Mr. Gao Minghui,
EQJI{’EE,J\ 7 32 Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo,
@tERE A B Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen

K&
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BATIRERER CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE PARENT COMPANY

200941 — 6 H For the six months ended 30th June 2009
Bfy :p KEE:ARK
‘ Unit: RMB
i3 S E tHeE
For the six months ended 30th June
R Items Notes 2009 2008
- REEDELNRLRE 1. Cash flows from operating activities:
HERD  RESHKINRS Cash received from sale of goods or
} rendering of services 383,265,328.88 621,501,973.75
WENHBRE Tax refund received 17,172,846.19 26,293,607.79
WEEpESEESERNRE Other cash received relating to operating activities 1,018,866.73 4,472,363.52
BEEHRSTANGT Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 401,457,041.80 652,267,945.06

BEAR ZXLBXANRE Cash paid for purchase of goods and services 217,465,615.23 463,647,521.33
SAEBINRABIXNHES Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 87,755,775.06 83,708,937.73
SNMBERE Taxes paid 13,920,580.45 31,725,078.44
IREpACEERHERNERS Other cash paid relating to operating activities 19,824,717.82 16,274,114.75
BEEHBESTL T Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 338,966,688.56 595,355,652.25
BRRREENREREFE Net cash flows from operating activities 62,490,353.24 56,912,292.81
Z REETBELNRENRE: Cash flows from investing activities:
WEREREIRE Cash received from recovery of investment - 145,000,000.00
NERERZWIINE 2 Cash received from return on investment 9,500,000.00 3,453,205.48
REETEE BVEEN Net cash received from disposal of
EhRHEENENRSFE fixed assets, intangible assets and
other long-term assets 71,102.00 658,458.31
BEFREREMELREN Net cash received from disposal of
KEMERE 58 subsidiaries and other business units - -
WEEMEREEBEBNR S Other cash received relating to investing activities - -
BRERBRSTANG Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 9,571,102.00 149,111,663.79
BERETEE BFEEAN Cash paid to acquire fixed assets,
HhREEEY AR intangible assets and other long-term assets 33,661,846.05 42,698,605.53
REZNHNRE Cash paid for investment - 147,500,000.00

DEFAARAMEREMSH
M3 & FE
SREGERAEHEENR S

Net cash paid to acquire subsidiaries
and other business units
Other cash paid relating to investing activities

REEHHES ML T Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 33,661,846.05 190,198,605.53
REEHELNRETEFE Net cash flows from investing activities (24,090,744.05) (41,086,941.74)
= BEEBELNRERE: Cash flows from financing activities:
e ok Cash received from capital contribution - -
REEFRIENRS Cash from borrowings - -
A RRERHERNES Other cash received relating to financing activities - -
EERBASMANG Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities - -
BEEBIINERS Cash repayment paid for amount borrowed - -
PEEFR - FIBRERFESZFOES  Cash paid for distribution of dividends,
profits or repayment of interest expenses 1,269,450.00 462,248.48
IHEMEZEEDERNTAS Other cash paid relating to financing activities - -
LEEHRL R Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities 1,269,450.00 462,248.48
LETHELNTIERERE Net cash flows from financing activities (1,269,450.00) (462,248.48)
CEXSHHRERRLSENNYE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents (703,258.58) (1,174,022.07)
I RERBESEMELENE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 36,426,900.61 14,189,080.52

AFEEREA : BHE
EERHTHARA : KRE
BHBBARA : HES

Legal representative of the Company:
Chief Financial Officer:
Prepared by:

Mr. Gao Minghui,
Mr. Pi Jianguo,
Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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EOAERSZEB R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

200941 — 6 A For the six months ended 30th June 2009
BT BE:ARK
Unit: RMB
KHeE
For the six months ended 30th June 2009
BERENRIEERR
Attributable to the equity holders of the parent company
R& EA0R  BERR BSOR  -RERER  APEAE B JURFEE FAERER:
Total
Less: Surplus Common  Undistributed Minority ~ shareholders’
58 Items Share capital Capital reserve ~treasury shares reserve sk reserve profit Others interest equity
- LEERRE 1. Closing balance of prior year 424,864,883.00 133,519,541.72 - 68,599,140.08 - 414,246,947.45 - 64,480,288.39 1,105,710,800.64
- B-BatbgalEr Add: Retrospective adjustment arising fiom
HERRE consolidation of jointly controlled entities - - - - - = = = =
SHHRER Changes in accounting polcies 3 . - - - - _ 3 -
HABERET Prior period acjustment - - - - - - - - -
it Others - - - - - - - - .
2 REETHE 2. Opening balance of current year 424,864,883.00 133,519,541.72 - 68,599,140.08 - 414,206,947.45 - 64,480,288.39 1,105,710,800.64
= KEHRBBEE(RON - [£B5) 3. Changes during the period (" for decrease) - - - - - 75,956,795.97 - 2630013 76,233,096.10
( B 1) Net profits - - - - - 116,106,525.94 - 276,300.13  116,382,826.07
(Z)ERTABEEBROUENER () Gain or loss diectly recognized in
shareholders' equity
1. THHESHARLAE {i) et changes in fair value of
5 avallable-for-sale financial assets - - - - - - - - -
(i) Effect of changes in other shareholders'
equity of invested companies
under equity method - - - - - - - - -
(il)Income tax implication on items
recognized in shareholders' equity - - - - - - - - -
(iv) Others - - - - - - . . -
( i Sub-total of (1) and (2) - - - - - - - - -
(Z)FEERATE AR (3) Capial contribution and reduction
by equity holders - - - - - - - - -
I FEARARR (i) Capital contribution by equity holders - - - - - - - - -
1. Rigfn\AEEER (i} Share-based payments recognized - - - - - - - - -
Heg in shareholders' equity
3 ik (i) Others - - - - - - - - -
() HERE (4] Proft distribution - - - - - (40,149,730.00) - - (40,149,730.00)
I REBRNE (i) Transfer to surplus reserve - - - - - - - - -
1 RI-RERER (i} Transfer to common ris reserve - - - - - - - - -
3. HiEAGERR)NAR (i) Transfer to equity holders or shareholders) - - - - - (40,149,730.00) - - (40,149,730.00)
4 i (i) Others - - - - - - - - -
(R)iE%ERATRE (5} Shareholders' equity internally carried forward - - - - - - - - -
1. BRNEELEA(ERT) (i) Transfer from capital reserve to
increase share capital - - - - - - - - -
2. BROEBSEA(IRE) () Transfr from surplus reserve to
increse share capital - - - - - - - - -
3. BROERRER (i) Losses offset by surplus resemve - - - - - - - - -
4 Ef (i) Others - - - - - - - - -
I k8raE 4. Closing balance of current period 424,864,883.00 133,519,541.72 - 68,599,140.08 - 490,203, 743.42 - 64,756,588.52 1,181,943,896.74
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EOMAERERBR(E)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Continued)
200941 — 64 For the six months ended 30th June 2009
BT BE:ARK
Unit: RMB
LERRLE
For the six months ended 30th June 2008
GRNSLANERRE
Attributable to the equity holders of the parent company
B LN i EER BBNE  -RERER FARAE B VERREE FAEEERAT
Total
Less: Surplus ~ Common risk  Undistributed Minority  shareholders’
ER Items Share capital  Capital reserve treasury shares reserve reserve profit Others interest equity
- LEERHE 1. Closing balance of prioryear DASAIBA 13351954172 - nImma - 8T . BRI RIES
A-EHTAFARELMEEAT  Add Retrospective adjustment arising from
consolidation of jointly controlled entities - - - - - - - L -
LHLbE Changes in accounting policies - - - - - - - - -
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ Prior period adjustment - - - - - - - - -
it Others - - - - - - - - -
o REEYRE 2. Opening balance of current year 424,864,883.00  133,519,541.72 000 41,903,289.47 - 219,091,413.76 - - §19379,121.95
= KEERRBLB(HON - [RES) 3. Changes during the period ("' for decrease) - - - - - 18,071,720.27 - - 8T
( (1) Net profits = = = = - 180 9. - - 14801, 729.07
(2) Gain or loss directly recognized
in shareholders' equity
(il Net changes in fair value of
avallable-for-sale financial assets - - - - - - - - -
(i) Effect of changes in other
shareholders' equity of invested
companies under equity method - - - - - - - - -
3 B \MEZERAEAE (i) Income tax implication on tems
HiRRpE recognized in shareholders' equity - - - - - - - _ -
4 Ef () Others
h Sub-total of (1) and (2) - - - - - 18807,29.07 - - 1480m 9.7
(=) FEERANESBE (3) Capital contribution and reduction by equity holders
fig% (i) Capital contribution by equity holders - - - - - - - - -
1 B TEEERNAE (i) Share-based payments recognized
in shareholders' equity - - - - - - - - -
3 i i) Others - - - - - - - . .
(B) HASE (#) Profit dstribution - - - - - 11471352000 - - 11471352000
1. RRESL (i) Transfer to surolus reserve - - - - - - - - -
1 RO-HEBEE (i} Transfer to common rik reserve - - - - - - - -
3 HAEEERE)AE (i) Transfer to equity holders (or shareholders) - - - - - 11471352000 - - 11471352000
4 i (i) Others - - - - - - - -
(1) FEZERRYLE (5) Shareholders' equity internally carried forward
1. BRLERERL(ER (i) Transfer from capital reserve to
increase share capital - - - - - - - - -
1 BEDEBERL(IRY) (i) Transfer from surplus reserve to
increase share capital - - - - - - - R R
3 BRDERREE (i) Losses offset by surplus resenve - - - - - - - - -
4 Ef (i) Others - - - - - - - - -
N RESRHE 4. Closing balance of current period 424,864,883.00  133,519,541.72 000 41,903,289.47 - 312,449,623.03 - - M
NELEEREA - =R Legal representative of the Company: Mr. Gao Minghui,
TEEIEREA: g = Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo,
STREAEA HIEZR Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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BRAMAERZEHR

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF THE PARENT

COMPANY
200941 — 6 A For the six months ended 30th June 2009
By THE: ARK
Unit: RMB
KELE
For the six months ended 30th June 2009
B LN | W EER BRI FARAE K¢ FRRREAH
Total
Less: Surplus Undistributed shareholders’
L Items Share capital ~ Capital reserve ~treasury shares reserve profit Others equity
- LEERRE 1. Closing balance of prior year 424,864,883.00 133,519,541.72 2 68,599,140.08 351,364,820.13 - 978,348,384.93
0 HRREE Add: Changes in accounting policies
HBZEEL Prior period adjustment
-4 Others - 2 = = = = =
I KEERE 2. Opening balance of current year 02486488300 133519,541.72 - 68,599,140.08  351,364,820.13 - 978,348,384.93
E‘Nﬁf"ﬂéﬁiﬁ HU[-E5) 3. Changes during the period (* for decrease) - - - - - 15.432,63.1 15.432,623.72
1) Net profits - - - - 115,582,353.69 - 115,582,353.69
(2)Gain or loss directly recognized in Sharefolders’ equity
(i) Net changes in fair value of
avallable-for-sale finandial assets - - - - - - -
(i) Effect of changes in other shareholders' equity of
invested companies under equity method - - - - - - -
(i) Income tax implication on items recognized
in shareholders' equity - - - - - - -
.k (iv) Others - - - - - - -
B=JRCIH Sub-otal of (1) and (2) - - - - - - -
(=) FRERANE) R (3) Capital contribution and reduction by equity holders
1. FEERAER {iy Capital contibution by equity holders - - - - - - -
1 RAXREAGEAERNLE (i) Share-based payments recognized
in shareholders' equity - - - - - - -
(i) Others - - - - - - -
(4) Profit distribution = = - - (40,149,730.00) - (40,149,730.00)
(i) Transfer to surplus reserve - - - - - - -
(i) Transfer to equity holders (or shareholders) - - - - (40,149,730.00) - (40149,730.00)
(i) Others - - - - - - -
(5) Shareholders' equity internally carried forward
(i) Transfer from capital reserve to increase share capital - - - - - - -
(i) Transfer from surplus reserve to increase share capital - - - - - - -
(i) Losses offset by surplus reserve - - - - - - -
(iv) Others - - - - - - -
B AEHFRE 4. Closing balance of current period 424,864,883.00 133,519,541.12 - 68,599,140.08 426,197,443.85 - 1,053,781,008.65

.
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AfEERRBER(E)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF THE PARENT
COMPANY (Continued)

20091 — 6 A For the six months ended 30th June 2009
Bz Tl B ARKE
Unit: RMB
LERHEE
For the six months ended 30th June 2008
it LN | BERR BYNE FARAE B FEERESH
Total
Less: Surplus Undistributed shareholders’
ER Items Share capital ~ Capital reserve  treasury shares reserve profit Others equity
- [EERBE 1. Closing balance of prior year 424,864,883.00 133,519,541.72 - 41,903,289.47 225,815,684.63 - 826,103,398.82
0n: EHHREE Add: Changes in accounting policies - - R 000
HBZERE Prior period adjustment = = - - - - 000
it Others - = - , - . B}
o REEYRE 2. Opening balance of current year 0486488300 133519,541.72 000 4190328047 22581568463 - 826,103,398.8
= KEERRBLB(EON - [RES) 3. Changes during the period ("' for decrease) - - - - 1387502253 o 13875022253
(-) BB (1) Net profis - - - BN NEhaEs S IR0
| BB ARREERNTIGRAR (2) Gain or loss directy recognized in shareholders'equity - - - - -
1. M‘fﬁiﬁéi&f BE (i) Net changes in fair vlue of
avalable-for-sale finandial assets - - - - - - R
1 i&mﬂ&&éfﬁﬂ (i) Effect of changes in other shareholders'
equity of invested companies under equity method - - - - - - -
(if]Income tax implication on items recognized
in shareholders' equity - - - - - - R
() Others - - - - - - R
Hi(=)R(2)0 Subvtotal of (1) and (2) - - - - - - N
(=) FEERANESBE (3] Capita contribution and reduction by equity holders
Fﬁﬁ%ﬁk’ (i) Capital contribution by equity holders - - - . R R _
1 BAERRAS (i) Share-based payments recognized
in shareholders' equity - - - - - - R
3 i (] Others - - - - - - N
(m) HEAR (4 Profit disribution - - - - 1471352000 o 1471352000
1. RRERLNE (i) Transfer to surplus reserve
5% (kR NAE (i) Transfer to equity holders (or shareholders) - - - S 471352000 o 1471352000
‘ (i) Others - - . R R - _
(5) Shareholders' equity internally carried forward
1. ERREEERA(IRE) (i) Transfer from capita resenve to increase share capital - - - - - - -
1. BHNESEER(IKE) (i) Transfer from surplus reserve to increase share capital - - - - - - R
3. BYDERAEE () Losses offset by surplus reserve - - - - - , ,
4 A () Others - - . - R R _
B AEHRHE 4. Closing balance of current period 424,864,883.00 133,519,541.72 0.00 41,903,289.47 249,852,387.16 - 850,140,101.35

AFEEREA : BHE

FREA  MEH
BEA #BES

EERHT
wtima

Legal representative

Prepared by:

of the Company:
Chief Financial Officer:

Mr. Gao Minghui,
Mr. Pi Jianguo,
Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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(2) CORPORATE INFORMATION

Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd. (“the Company”)
was formerly known as Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Company
Limited. The matter of the change of the Company’s name
from Jiaoda Kunji High-tech Co., Ltd. to Shenji Group Kunming
Machine Tool Co., Ltd. was approved by the shareholders at
the 2006 annual general meeting held on 29th June 2007.
The Company received its new business license from Yunnan
Commercial and Industrial Administrative Bureau on 10th
September 2007 and has carried out the necessary filing
procedures with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong.
The Certificate of Registration of Change of Name of Overseas
Company was issued in October 2007. In October 2007, the
Company made an announcement on the change of the name
of the Company and the short name of H Shares.

Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Kunming
Machine Tool Co., Ltd.) was established in the People’s Republic
of China as a Sino-foreign joint stock limited company as part
of the reorganization of a State-owned enterprise known
as Kunming Machine Tool Plant (“KMTP"). Pursuant to the
reorganization, the operations, assets and liabilities of KMTP
were divided between the Company and Kunming Kunji
Group Company (“Kunji Group Company”). The Company was
established on 19th October 1993. The Company's A shares
and H shares have been listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
in Shanghai and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in
Hong Kong respectively. The Company is engaged principally
in the development, design, production and sales of machine
tool products and accessories, computer and information
products, highly efficient compressors, electromechanical
integration products; development of high-tech products, and
its own technology transfer, technology service and technology
consultancy business.

On 25th December 2000, Xian Jiaotong University Industrial
(Group) Incorporation (”Jiaotong Group”) entered into an
agreement with Yunnan Provincial People’s Government
(“Yunnan Government”), the Company’s former controlling
shareholder whereby Yunnan Government would transfer
a 29% interest of 71,052,146 state-owned shares in the
Company to Jiaotong Group. The Ministry of Finance granted
the approval of state-owned shares transfer of Jiaoda Kunji
High-tech Company Limited (Cai Qi [2001] No. 283), and
approved the share transfer. Upon completion of the share
transfer procedures on 5th June 2001, Jiaotong Group became
the largest shareholder of the Company.

B
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Pursuant to extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 31st December 2001. After the assets restructuring, the
Company changed from a traditional machinery manufacturing
company focusing on the production of machine tools to a
high-tech and diversified production technology company.

After obtaining the approval from State Industry and Commerce
Administration Bureau, with effective from 29th March 2002
on which the Company completed the industry and commerce
procedures on the change of name with Yunnan Commercial
and Industrial Administrative Bureau, the Company uses the
new name “Jiaoda Kunji High Tech Company Limited”.

On 15th September 2005, Xian Jiaotong University Industrial
(Group) Incorporation and Shenyang Machine Tool (Group)
Company Limited entered into an agreement regarding transfer
of shares. Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Company Limited
agreed to purchase 71,052,146 shares of Jiaoda High-tech
Company Limited from Xi'an Jiaotong University Industrial
(Group) Incorporation, representing 29% of the total share
capital of the Company. The share transfer was passed by the
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Committee
under the State Council in the “Written Reply regarding the
Transfer of State-owned Shares of Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech
Company Limited” (Guo Zhi Chan Quan [2006] No.628) and
approved by the CSRC in the Opinions on the Information
Disclosure of the Acquisition of Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Company
Limited by Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Company Limited
(Zheng Jian Gong Si Zi [2006] No.255). On 1st December 2006,
the register of transfer was completed and Shenyang Group
became the largest shareholder of the Company in place of
Jiaotong Group.

On 4th April 2006, based on the “Written Reply regarding the
Share Transfer of Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Company Limited”
issued by the Yunnan Government and the “Written Reply
regarding the Grant of Rights to Yunnan State-owned Assets
Operation Company Limited to Exercise the Shareholders’
Rights of Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Company Limited” issued
by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Committee, the 31,345,600 state-owned shares held by the
Yunnan Government (representing 12.79% of the total issued
shares of the Company) were transferred to Yunnan State-
owned Assets Operation Company Limited at nil consideration
on the transfer date of 31st December 2005. The share
transfer was approved by the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Committee under the State Council in the
“Written Reply regarding the Transfer of Part of the State-
owned Shares of Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Company Limited”
(Guo Zhi Chan Quan [2006] No0.1412). The transfer was
completed on 19th January 2007.
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(3)

On 25th January 2007, the share reform proposal of the
Company was approved by the Ministry of Commerce in
the “Written Reply regarding the Share Transfer and Share
Capital Increase of Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd.” (Shang
Zhi Pi [2007] No.133). The Company increased shares to
all shareholders whose names appeared on the Company’'s
register of members on the 26th February 2007 by transferring
the capital reserve on the basis of 1.5606 shares for every
existing 10 shares. The total increased share capital was
38,235,855 shares, of which 28,091,955 shares were A Shares
and 10,143,900 shares were H Shares. On 5th March 2007,
the holders of non-circulating shares of the Company used
their 18,728,355 shares as consideration to pay the holders
of circulating A Shares on the basis of 2.7 shares for every 10
shares. The new A Shares were listed on 7th March 2007. Of
18,728,355 shares, 11,088,398 shares, 4,891,787 shares and
2,748,170 shares were paid by Shenyang Machine Tool (Group)
Company Limited, Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation
Company Limited and Jinghua Company respectively to the
holders of circulating A Shares. After the completion of the
consideration arrangement, the non-circulating shares held by
the holders of non-circulating shares of the Company became
tradable and listed.

In April 2007, two shareholders of the Company, Shenyang
Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. and Yunnan State-owned
Assets Operation Co., Ltd. jointly proposed the share capital
increase proposal (the “Share Capital Increase”) (where new
shares were issued to all shareholders of the Company by
transferring capital reserve on the basis of five new shares
for every 10 shares held assuming that the total share capital
was comprised of 283,243,255 shares). The Share Capital
Increase was considered at the 21st meeting of the fifth
session of the board meeting held on 18th April 2007 and
the resolution was submitted to the 2006 AGM and relevant
class meetings held on 29th June 2007 for consideration and
approval respectively.

On 15th August 2007, pursuant to the Written Reply regarding
the Change of Company Name and Increase of Share Capital of
Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Company Limited (Shang Zhi Pi [2007]
No0.1390) issued by the Ministry of Commerce, the increase
in the share capital of the Company by transferring capital
reserve was approved pursuant to which the total share capital
of the Company was increased from 283,243,255 shares to
424,864,883 shares. The registered capital was increased from
RMB283,243,255 to RMB424,864,883.

The place of registration of the Company is 23 Ciba
Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province; registered capital is
RMB424,864,883 and the business registration number is
530000400000458.

BASIS OF
STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of the
recognition and measurement of the transactions and matters
incurred in accordance with the “Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises” since 1st January 2007.

PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL

N
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(4) STATE OF COMPLIANCE

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity
with the requirements of China Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprise, truly and fully reflecting the Company’s
financial condition, operating results, cash flows and related
information during the period.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES OF THE COMPANY

Accounting year

The accounting year of the Company commences on 1st January
and ends on 31st December each year.

Reporting currency

The reporting currency of the Company is Renminbi
("RMB").

Accounting principles and basis of measurement

Recognition, measurement and reporting are based upon
accrual system. The Company should generally apply the
historical cost as measurement basis in preparing financial
statements. If other measurement bases are applied such as
replacement cost, net realizable value, present value, fair value,
the Company is required to demonstrate that the accounting
elements can be measured reliably in those bases.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are defined as short-term (with maturity
of generally three months from the date of purchase) highly
liquid investments that readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated by “mid
exchange rate” on the transaction date upon initial recognition.
As at the end of the period, items in foreign currencies are
translated into RMB at the mid exchange rate on the balance
sheet date. Exchange differences arising from differences
between the mid exchange rate on the balance sheet date
and that upon initial recognition date are recognized as
finance expenses in profit and loss for the current period. Non-
momentary items in foreign currencies carried at historical cost
are still measured at amount of recording currency translated
at the spot exchange rate on the date which the transaction
takes place. Non-monetary items in foreign currencies carried
at fair value are translated at spot exchange rate on the date
which the fair value is determined. Differences between the
amount of recording currency after translation and that before
translation are accounted as changes in fair value (inclusive
of changes on exchange rate) and included in profit and loss
of the current period. Differences between foreign currency
borrowings related with the acquisition and production of
assets eligible for capitalization are recognized in accordance
with the principle of borrowing cost.
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6.

Financial instruments measurement

(1)

(2)

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

At initial recognition, all financial assets are classified
into four categories:

1)

financial assets recognized at fair value with changes
recognized through profit or loss include trading
financial assets and financial assets which are
designated by the Group upon recognition at fair
value and their changes recognized through profit
or loss;

held-to-maturity assets;
accounts receivable;

available-for-sale financial assets.

At initial recognition, all financial liabilities are classified
into two categories:

1

2)

financial liabilities recognized at fair value with
changes recognized through profit or loss include
trading financial liabilities and financial liabilities
which are designated by the Group upon recognition
at fair value and their changes recognized through
profit or loss;

other financial liabilities.

Recognition and measurement

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized,
when and only when, the Group, as appropriate, becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

At initial recognition, all financial assets are measured
at fair value. After initial recognition, the four financial
assets are measured in different ways.

1

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized at fair value at initial recognition,
related transaction costs are considered as profit
or loss. During holding financial assets, interest or
cash bonus are considered as investment revenue.
Accounts in balance sheet are measured in fair value.
Gain or loss from change of fair value is measured
as profit or loss. When disposal of financial assets,
the balance between fair value and initial recognition
are considered as investment revenue, and adjust
profit or loss with change of fair value;
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2) available-for-sale financial assets are measured at
fair value plus transaction cost that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the finance
asset. The accounts in balance sheet are measure
at fair value. Gain or loss from change of fair value
shall be classified as capital reserves. The difference
between carrying value and book value shall be
classified as investment revenue, and the amount
of capital reverse previously which is gain or loss
from change of fair value transfer into investment
revenue;

3)  receivables from good sales or service are recognized
in agreement or quota price. When receiving or
disposing the receivable, the difference between
carrying value and book value shall be recognized
as profit or loss;

4)  the investments which will be held to their maturity
are measured at fair value of the investment
and transaction cost at initial recognition. The
investments shall be measured on the basis of
the post-amortization costs by adopting the actual
interest rate method in subsequent measurement;
The balance between the carrying amount and the
fair value shall be computed into the investment
revenue when investment is disposed.

For the financial liabilities measured at their fair values
and of which the variation is recorded into the profits
and losses of the current period, they shall be measured
at their fair values, and the transaction cost may be
recorded into the profits and losses of the current period;
in subsequent measurement, they shall be measured at
fair value.

(3) Fair value measurement of financial assets and
liabilities
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is based
on their quoted market price in an active market at the
valuation date. If a quoted market price is not available,
the fair value of the financial assets is established
using valuation techniques. The fair value of initial or
original financial assets, or bearing financial liabilities,
is determined by market transaction price.
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4)

(5)

Impairment test of provision on financial assets

An enterprise shall carry out an inspection, on the balance
sheet day, on the carrying amount of the financial assets
other than those measured at their fair values and of which
the variation is recorded into the profits and losses of
the current period. Where there is any objective evidence
proving that such financial asset has been impaired, an
impairment provision shall be made. An impairment test
shall be made on the financial assets with significant
single amounts. With regard to the financial assets with
insignificant single amounts, an independent impairment
test may be carried out, or they may be included in a
combination of financial assets with similar credit risk
features so as to carry out an impairment-related test.

For loans and receivables, held-to-maturities investments,
difference between current value of the predicted future
cash flow and book value should make provision on
impairment loss. If there is any objective evidence proving
that the value of the said financial asset has been restored,
the recognized impairment loss should be reversed and
be recorded into the profits and losses of the current
period.

Where a available-for-sale financial asset is impaired,
even if the recognition of the financial asset has not
been terminated, the accumulative losses arising from
the decrease of the fair value of the owner’s equity
which was directly included shall be transferred out and
recorded into the profits and losses of the current period.
As for the available-for-sale debt instruments whose
impairment-related losses have been recognized, if, within
the accounting period thereafter, the fair value has risen
and are objectively related to the subsequent events that
occur after the originally impairment-related losses were
recognized, the originally recognized impairment-related
losses shall be reversed and be recorded into the profits
and losses of the current period. The impairment-related
losses incurred to available-for-sale equity instrument
investment shall not be reversed through profits and
losses.

Financial assets transfer and recognition

If the group transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the group
shall derecognize the financial asset. If the group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the group shall continue to recognize the
financial asset. The Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, if the group has not retained control,
it shall derecognized the financial asset; if the entity has
retained control, it shall continue to recognize the financial
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the
financial asset, and corresponsive financial liabilities.

I
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On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received (including any new
asset obtained less any new liability assumed); and any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized directly
in equity shall be recognized in profit or loss. If the
transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the
part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety,
the previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset
shall be allocated between the part that continues to be
recognized and the part that is derecognized, based on
the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the
transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part derecognized and the sum of the
consideration received for the part; and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognized
directly in equity; shall be recognized in profit or loss.

7. Provision for bad debt on receivables

(1)

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted on
an active market, including bills receivable, accounts
receivable, prepayments, other receivables, and long-term
receivables.

Measurement: An impairment test shall be made on the
receivable account with significant single amounts. Where
there is any objective evidence proving that such financial
asset has been impaired, an impairment provision shall be
made. The carrying amount of receivable shall be written
down to the current value of the predicted future cash
flow, and the amount as written down shall be recognized
as loss of the impairment of the receivable. For the single
non significant receivables and tested non impairment
receivables, the provision of bad debts is measured on
the provision method based on aging analysis.

Recognition criteria for bad debt: the irrecoverable amount
of a debtor who has gone bankrupt or has died and has
insufficient asset or estate to repay; the irrecoverable
amount, demonstrated by sufficient evidence, of a debtor
who does not comply with his/her repayment obligation
over three years.

Interim Report 2009 Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited

47




(4) ZEERBROREDEL  RREEER

BRI RITR  FHREA -

HERSEEANERFREBET
MERH  METEERRAECH
ERE REERKASRERE
EREREEENEZRE  BRRER
X BERIREERER  EEAIER
BEREMNEUGANEMERS R
FEANBUWHIAE—E  BREER
AR BRBIKBRRATHERRER -
REREHNF R

SRR sHR LB
T AR 5%
1224 50%
29 A E 100%

(5) EEMBERREREZE  OFEBKA
WESET  UEBREMEREER
EBRNE\EXWENRIE  QEEBHA
BERETEERHEB=F HA
EREBBER\ERIREOZE - £
A BEW B R EUGRIE - RE AR E
EEHER - TR -

(6) BT RRERNEYRIARERIZE

O ZHZrEEkEER(ERE
) IEEABEST0ETT

© EBeEREREFEEAR(HM
FEMR) - IREREEI508 T

Q@ EAERERFOR (AR

o) IREREZI08TT -

8. HBEREFRE
(1) FEE: RVMH - EE®R - ¥ X
mcERm BEZRER B8KY

Accounting basis of bad debt losses: allowance
method

Allowance and applicable rate:

An impairment test shall be made on the receivable
account with significant single amounts. Where there
is any objective evidence proving that such asset has
been impaired, an impairment provision shall be made.
The carrying amount of receivable shall be written down
to the current value of the predicted future cash flow,
and the amount as written down shall be recognized as
loss of the impairment of the receivable. For the single
non significant receivables and tested non impairment
receivables, the provision of bad debts is measured on
the provision method based on amount in the balance
sheet and account’s aging analysis.

Accounts aged Applicable rate
Within 1 year 5%
1-2 years 50%
Over 2 years 100%

Derecognition in bad debt on receivables: The Company
should derecognize bad debt on receivable when: (1) the
irrecoverable amount of debtor who has gone bankrupt
or has died and has insufficient asset to repay; (2)
the irrecoverable amount, demonstrated by sufficient
evidence, of a debtor who does not comply with his/
her repayment obligation over three years. Save above
irrecoverable receivables should be derecognized with
approval of the Board.

Recognition criteria on significant single accounts
receivable

1)  Trade receivables (accounts receivable) category:
standard amount is RMB7 million per transaction;

2)  Cash flows receivables (other receivables): standard
amount is RMB3.5 million per transaction;

3) Individual receivables (other receivables): standard
amount is RMB100,000 per transaction.

8. Accounting for Inventories

(1)

Inventory category: Inventories include raw materials,
work-in-progress products, semi-finished products,
finished goods, low-value consumables, and packaging
materials.
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Valuation method of inventories: Purchase of raw materials,
packaging materials and low-value consumables are stated
at cost incurred. Inventory issued and inventory shipped
are recorded based on the weighted average cost method.
Low value consumables are fully charged to cost when
they are issued. Work-in-progress products are recorded
based on quota cost method.

Measurement: Inventories are measured initially at cost.
At the balance sheet date, inventories are stated at the
lower of cost and net realizable value.

The following ways are to measure the net realizable
value on different inventories:

The inventories such as merchandise, finished product,
available for sales materials, the net realizable value
represents the estimated selling price less the estimated
expenses of sales and tax. The inventories such as
processing materials, the net realizable value represents
the estimated selling price of finished product less the
estimated cost of process completion, estimated expense
of sales and tax.

Provision for impairment of inventories: provisions for
impairment of inventories are made by single items. For
inventories of low value and many items, provisions for
impairment of inventories are made by classification of
inventories.

At the balance sheet date, inventories are stated at the
lower of cost and net realizable value. Whenever the
net realizable value is lower than cost, provision is made
for impairment of each inventory to the profit and loss
account in the period.

A perpetual inventory system is adopted for the calculation
of inventory volume.
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9. Accounting for long-term equity Investment

(1) Long-term equity investments are recorded at initial
investment cost on acquisition

1)

For combinations of entities under common control in
which a company pays cash, transfers non-cash assets
or bear debts as consideration of combinations, the
initial investment cost of long-term equity investment
is the share with reference to the book value of the
shareholders’ equity of the party to be combined on
the date of combinations. Capital reserve account is
adjusted by differences between initial investment
cost of long-term equity investment and the book
value of the cash paid, non-cash assets transferred
as well as liabilities assumed. Amounts that cannot
be sufficiently released by capital reserve account
serve the purpose of adjusting retained earnings. For
companies offering consideration of combinations
by issuing equity securities, initial investment cost
of long-term equity investment refers to the share
with reference to the book value of the shareholders’
equity of the party to be combined on the date
of combinations; this becomes share capital with
reference to the nominal value of shares in issue.
Capital reserve account is adjusted by differences
between initial investment costs of long-term equity
investment and the aggregate nominal value of
shares in issue. Amounts that cannot be sufficiently
released by capital reserve account serve the purpose
of adjusting retained earnings.

For combinations of entities without common
control, initial investment cost of long-term equity
investment refers to the assets paid, liabilities
incurred or assumed as well as the fair value of
equity securities in issue by the company in exchange
for control of the acquiree on the date of acquisition.
If the fair value of acquisition cost is bigger then
the fair value of acquiree’s realizable net assets,
the differences will be treated as goodwill. If the
fair value of acquisition cost is smaller than the
fair value of acquiree’s realizable net assets, the
differences will be included in profit and loss.

R
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(2)

(3)

3)  For non combination of entities, long-term equity
investment settled in cash, initial investment cost
refers to the actual consideration paid. Initial
investment cost refers to long-term equity investment
acquired through the issue of equity securities in
accordance with the fair value of equity securities in
issue. Save for unfair agreed values under contract
or agreement, initial investment cost are long-term
equity investment of investors with reference to the
agreed value stipulated under investment contract
or agreement. For the long-term equity investment
obtained by the exchange of non-monetary assets,
the initial investment cost shall be determined
by fair value of non-monetary assets plus related
tax expense. For the long-term equity investment
obtained by debt restructuring, the initial investment
cost shall be determined by fair value investment
of debt restructuring. The difference of fair value
of investment and book value of debt restructuring
is stated as profit or loss.

Follow-up measurement and revenue recognition

The investment on the subsidiaries without join control
or significant influence, without price quota in the active
market, without reliable measure by fair value shall
be accounted by the method of cost. The long-term
equity investment that the Company co-controls or has
significant influences on the unit being invested shall be
accounted by the method of equity. Investment revenue
is determined by net profit adjustment of invested unit
based on fair value of each asset which can be classified
in invested unit.

Provision for the impairment on long-term equity
investment

Goodwill caused by business combination involving
entities under non common control should be tested
for impairment at the end of the period. Loss of goodwill
shall be recognized as profit or loss.

According to cost method, without price quota in active
market, and reliable fair value, the loss between book
value cost of investment and net value from future
cash flow shall be stated as profit or loss. If there is
impairment in the investment, comparison with net value
of initial fair value of investment minus disposal cost
and present value fro future cash flow by investment,
the higher is considered as the amount recoverable. The
impairment reserves are accounted by difference between
the recoverable amount of the individual investment and
the book value. Once the impairment loss for long-term
equity investment is confirmed, they shall no longer be
reversed in the future accounting period.
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10. Fixed assets

(1)

(2)

(3)

Standards for fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for using
the production or supply of goods or services, for rental
to others, or for administrative purposes, and have useful
lives more than one accounting year such as house,
building, machine, equipment, transport vehicle, other
tangible assets.

Measurement of fixed assets

Fixed assets measure: Fixed assets are initially measured
at cost by the ways of purchase, selfconstruction, and
acquisition through business combination under common
control. Fixed assets are measured at fair value or carrying
cost by non-monetary asset exchange, debt restructuring,
acquisition through business combination under non
common control.

If a constructed fixed asset has reached the working
condition for its intended use but the final project
accounts have not been completed and approved, the
asset should be transferred to fixed assets at an estimated
value based on project budget and depreciation is based
on the estimated value. After completion, the estimated
value will be adjusted in accordance with the actual
cost. However, the recognized depreciation will not be
adjusted.

Depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method
to recognize monthly.

Estimated Annual

Estimated residual  depreciation

Fixed assets category useful lives value (%) rate (%)
Buildings 40 5 238
Machinery equipment 5-20 5 6.79-9.50
Electronic equipment, fixture, furniture 5-14 5 6.79-9.50
Transportation equipment 5-14 5 6.79-9.50

The depreciation policy for assets held under finance
bases is consistent with that for owned assets. If there is
reasonable certainty that the lease will obtain ownership
at the end of lease, the asset should be appreciated over
the shorter of the lease term and the life of the asset.

.
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(4) Provision on impairment loss on fixed assets

At the end of the period, when there is an indication that
the fixed asset devalue, estimates its recoverable amount.
If the recoverable amounts lower than the book value,
decrease the book value of the fixed asset to recoverable
amount. The decreased amount is recognized as assets’
impairment loss included in profit or loss for the current
period and recognizes the provision on impairment loss
on fixed assets at the same time. Once the impairment
loss on fixed assets recognized, it cannot be reversed in
the future period.

11. Accounting for construction-in-progress

(1) The cost of construction-in-progress is determined
according to expenditures actually incurred. Construction-
in-progress is transferred to fixed assets at the date of
reaching its usable conditions at an estimated amount.

(2) Provision on impairment loss on construction-in-
progress

At the period end, based on the investigation on each
construction-in-progress, if there exists:

1)  Construction-in-progress has been (or will be)
suspended, terminated construction or disposed ahead
of schedule;

2) The economic, technological or legal environment in
which the enterprise operates, or the market where the
assets is situated will have any significant change in the
current period or in the near future, which will cause
disadvantage impact on the enterprise;

3) Internal report shows that the economic benefit generated
by the construction-in-progress will be lower than the
expectation, e.g. new cash flow or net operating profit
(or loss) of the construction-in-progress will much lower
(or higher) than the expectation;

4)  The market interest rate or any other market investment
return rate has risen in the current period, and thus the
discount rate of the enterprise for calculating the expected
future cash flow of the assets will be affected, which will
result in great decline of the recoverable amount of the
assets;

5) Other evidences can prove the existence of the
circumstance of the decline in value on construction-in-
progress.

Should the above circumstance exists, difference of the
recoverable amount and the carrying amount of construction-
in-progress can be made as provision on impairment loss on
construction-in-progress. The impairment loss is calculated
based on the difference between book value and net realizable
value. Once the impairment loss on construction-in-progress
recognized, it cannot be reversed in the future period.
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12. Accounting of intangible assets

(1)

Intangible asset refers to the identifiable non-monetary
assets possessed or controlled by the Company which
have no physical shape, include patents, know how, trade
mark, copyright, chartered right, and land use right.

Measurement: The intangible assets shall be initially
measured according to its cost. The cost of outsourcing
intangible assets shall include the purchase price,
relevant taxes and other necessary expenditures directly
attributable to intangible assets for the expected purpose.
Where the payment of purchase price for intangible
assets is delayed beyond the normal credit conditions,
which is of financing intention, the cost of intangible
assets shall be determined on the basis of the current
value of the purchase price. The difference between the
actual payment and the current value of the purchase
price shall be recorded into profit or loss for the credit
period, unless it shall be capitalized under the relevant
regulations.

Amortization: With regard to intangible assets with limited
service life, its amortization amount shall be amortized
within its service life systematically and reasonably.
Intangible assets with uncertain service life may not be
amortized. The intangible assets from contractive rights
or other legal rights, the service life is not over the limit
period of the contract live right or other legal rights. If
there is undefinitive contract or legal regulation, it is
able to forecast the period to confirm service life when
the intangible asset can bring economic benefits to the
enterprise.

If it is not able to forecast the period to confirm service
life when the intangible asset can bring economic benefits
to the enterprise, the intangible asset will be treat as
intangible assets with uncertain service life.

____E
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(4) The research expenditures for its internal research and
development projects of an enterprise shall be recorded
into the profit or loss for the current period. The
development expenditures for its internal research and
development projects of an enterprise may be confirmed
as intangible assets when they satisfy the following
conditions simultaneously:

—

) It is feasible technically to finish intangible assets
for use or sale;

2) ltisintended to finish and use or sell the intangible
assets;

3)  Suchintangible assets may generate potential future
economic benefits;

4) ltis able to finish the development of the intangible
assets, and able to use or sell the intangible assets,
with the support of sufficient technologies, financial
resources and other resources;

5) The development expenditures of the intangible
assets can be reliably measured.

(5) Review the service life of intangible assets: an enterprise
shall, at least at the end of each year, check the service
life and the amortization method of intangible assets
with limited service life. When the service life and the
amortization method of intangible assets are different from
those before, the years and method of the amortization
shall be changed. An enterprise shall check the service
life of intangible assets with uncertain service life during
each accounting period. Where there are evidences to
prove the intangible assets have limited service life, it shall
be estimated of its service life, and be treated according
to this Standard.

13. Long-term deferred expenditure

Long-term deferred expenditure are expenditures and other
expenses has occurred which will be benefited over 1 year
(excluding within 1 year), e.g. expenses for leased fixed assets
innovation. Expenses incurred during the incorporation of the
Company are recorded in the long-term deferred expenditure
at first and will be included in the profit and loss account in
the first month after commencement of its operation. Other
long-term deferred expenditure will be amortized evenly over
the estimated beneficial period.
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14. Accounting for borrowing cost

(1)

Where the borrowing costs incurred to an enterprise can
be directly attributable to the acquisition and construction
or production of assets eligible for capitalization, it shall
be capitalized and recorded into the costs of relevant
assets. Other borrowing costs shall be recognized as
expenses on the basis of the actual amount incurred, and
shall be recorded into the current profits and losses.

The term “assets eligible for capitalization” shall refer to
the fixed assets, investment real estate, inventories and
other assets, of which the acquisition and construction
or production may take quite a long time to get ready
for its intended use or for sale.

The borrowing costs shall not be capitalized unless they
simultaneously meet the following requirements:

Expenditures for the asset are being incurred;
Borrowing costs has already incurred;

Acquisition and construction that are necessary to
enable the asset reach its expected usable condition
have commenced.

Where the acquisition and construction or production
of a qualified asset is interrupted abnormally and the
interruption period lasts for more than 3 months, the
capitalization of the borrowing costs shall be suspended.
The borrowing costs incurred during such period shall be
recognized as expenses, and shall be recorded into the
profits and losses of the current period, till the acquisition
and construction or production of the asset restarts. If the
interruption is a necessary step for making the qualified
asset under acquisition and construction or production
ready for the intended use or sale, the capitalization of
the borrowing costs shall continue.

R
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15.

(4) Recognition of capitalization of borrowing cost and
interest: The borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition
and construction or production of assets eligible for
capitalization refer to actual interest expenses during
borrowing period, minus interest revenue of borrowing
fund deposited on bank or investment revenue from
short term investment by borrowing fund. For the general
borrowings, the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization
are determined by applying a capitalization rate to the
capital expenditure that accumulated capital expenditures
exceed the specific borrowings.

Contingent liabilities

The obligation pertinent to contingencies shall be recognized as
an estimated debt when the following conditions are satisfied
simultaneously:

1) That obligation is
enterprise;

a current obligation of the

2) ltis likely to cause any economic benefit to flow out of the
enterprise as a result of performance of the obligation;

3) The amount of the obligation can be measured in a
reliable way.

The contingent liabilities shall be initially measured in accordance
with the best estimate of the necessary expenses for the
performance of the current obligation. If there is a sequent
range for the necessary expenses and if all the outcomes within
this range are equally likely to occur, the best estimate shall be
determined in accordance with the middle estimate within the
range. In other cases, the best estimate shall be conducted in
accordance with the following situations, respectively:

1) If the contingencies concern a single item, it shall be
determined in the light of the most likely outcome;

2) If the contingencies concern two or more items, the
best estimate should be calculated and determined in
accordance with all possible outcomes and the relevant
probabilities.

When all or some of the expenses necessary for the liquidation
of an contingent liabilities of an enterprise is expected to be
compensated by a third party, the compensation should be
separately recognized as an asset only when it is virtually
certain that the reimbursement will be obtained. The amount
recognized for the reimbursement should not exceed the book
value of the debts recognized.
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16.

Provision from 1.2 % of sales revenue of machine tools business
is computed as expenses of after sales service through profits
and losses. Actual expenses are kept within the provision.
The reliability of provision ratio shall be reviewed on balance
sheet date.

Accounting for employee benefits
(1) Scope of employee benefits

Employee Benefits refers to monetary salary and benefits
not in monetary render by the Company to employees
during and after service term of the employees.

(2) Recognition and Measurement:

During the accounting period of an employee’ providing
services to an enterprise, the enterprise shall recognize
the compensation payable as liabilities. Except for the
compensations for the cancellation of the labor relationship
with the employee, the enterprise shall, in accordance
with beneficiaries of the services offered by the employee,
treat the following circumstances respectively:

1) The compensation for the employee for producing
products or providing services shall be recorded as
the product costs and service costs;

2)  The compensation for the employee for any on-
going construction project or for any intangible
asset shall be recorded as the costs of fixed asset
or intangible assets;

3)  Monthly payments and social insurance charges paid
by the Company to early-retirees, laid-off employees,
and unemployment people commencing from the
date of their early-retirement up until their respective
official retirement are recognized as accrued salaries.
Payments within one year, salary expenses shall be
recorded as profit or loss for the current period.
Payments over one year, the future accrued salary
should be discounted as profit or loss for the current
period. The discount rate is determined by referring
to high quality corporate bonds market interest rate.
Unrecognized financial fee should be amortised on
the actual interest rate.

4)  Other salaries except for the above circumstance
should be recognized in profit and loss for the
current period.

The enterprise shall calculate the medical and insurance,
endowment insurance, unemployment insurance, work
injury insurance, maternity insurance and other social
insurances, as well as the housing accumulation fund,
which are paid by the enterprise to the employee, on
the basis of a certain proportion in the total amount of
wages.

R
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17.

18.

Government grants

Government grants shall be recognized when an enterprise
can meet the conditions for the government grants and can
obtain the government grants. If a government grant is in
the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, the item shall be
measured at the amount received or receivable. If a government
grant is in the form of a transfer of a non-monetary asset,
the item shall be measured at fair value. If fair value is not
reliably determinable, the item shall be measured at a nominal
amount one dollar and recognized immediately in profit or
loss for the current period. If the grant is a compensation for
related expenses or losses to be incurred by the enterprise in
subsequent periods, the grant shall be recognized as deferred
income, and recognized in profit or loss over the periods
in which the related costs are recognized. If the grant is a
compensation for related expenses or losses already incurred
by the enterprise, the grant shall be recognized immediately
in profit or loss for the current period.

Accounting for Share-Based Payments

(1) Types of share-based payment: The Company’s share-
based payment consists of equity-settled and cash-settled
transactions.

The equity-settled share-based payment in return for
employee services shall be measured at the fair value of
the equity instruments granted to the employees. For
equity instruments that may be exercised immediately
after the grant, the fair value of such instrument shall,
on the date of the grant, be recognized in relevant
costs or expenses with the increase in the capital reserve
accordingly. For equity instruments that cannot be
exercised until the services are fully rendered during
vesting period or specified performance targets are met,
on each balance sheet date within the vesting period, the
services acquired in the current period shall, based on the
best estimate of the number of exercisable instruments,
be recognized in relevant costs or expenses and the
capital reserves at the fair value of such instruments on
the date of the grant.

The cash-settled share-base payment shall be measured
at the fair value of liability incurred, which is calculated
and determined based on the shares or other equity
instruments. For the instruments that may be exercised
immediately after the grant, the fair value of the liability
incurred by the Company shall, on the date of the grant,
be recognized in relevant costs or expenses and the
liabilities shall be increased accordingly. For instruments
that cannot be exercised until the services are fully
provided during vesting period or specified performance
targets are met, on each balance sheet date within the
vesting period, the services acquired in the current period
shall, based on the best estimate of the number of
exercisable instruments, be recognized in relevant costs
or expenses and the corresponding liabilities at the fair
value of the liability incurred by the Company.
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Measurement of the fair value of equity instruments:
For options and other equity instruments granted which
are traded in an active market, the fair value of such
instruments shall be measured based on quoted market
prices in the active markets or if not available, by
reference to market prices of options with similar terms
and conditions. In absence of such market prices, the fair
value shall be determined using a valuation technique.

Basis for determining the best estimate of the number of
exercisable instruments: On each balance sheet date within
the vesting period, the Company shall determine the best
estimate based on the latest number of employees able
to exercise their options and revise the estimated number
of exercisable equity instruments. On the exercisable
date, the final estimate of the number of exercisable
instruments shall coincide with the actual exercisable
number.

19. Revenue recognition

(1)

Sale of goods: when the major risk and rewards in
the ownership of the goods have been transferred
to the purchaser, the Company no longer exercises
continuing management and actual control over the
goods in connection with ownership, economic benefits
in connection with transactions can flow in the enterprise
and the relevant revenue and costs are reliably measurable,
the Company will confirm that revenue from the sale of
the goods has been realized.

If the collection of the price as stipulated in the contract
or agreement is delayed and if it has the financing nature,
the revenue incurred by selling goods shall be ascertained
in accordance with the fair value of the receivable price
as stipulated in the contract or agreement. The difference
between the price stipulated in the contract or agreement
and its fair value shall be amortized within the period
of the contract or agreement employing the real interest
method and shall be included in the current profits and
losses.

Provision of labor services: for labor services which are
commenced and completed in the same year, revenue is
recognized upon completion of the labor services. If the
commencement and completion of a labor service falls
in different fiscal years, relevant revenue from the labor
service will be recognized on the date of the balance
sheet on the basis of the percentage of the completed
labor service, provided that the results of the labor service
provision transaction is reliably estimated.

Assignment of asset use rights: the Company will confirm
that revenue is realized according to the period and
method stipulated under relevant contract or agreement,
provided that economic benefits in connection with a
transaction can flow in and the revenue amount is reliably
estimated.

.
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21.

22.

23.

Accounting of income Tax

The Company applies the balance sheet liability method for
accounting of income tax. The tax bases of acquired assets
or liabilities are determined upon their acquisition by the
Company. Where there is difference between the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities and the tax bases, the deferred
income tax assets or the deferred income tax liabilities arising
from there are recognised.

Scope of consolidation and methods of preparing
consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with ABSE 33 - Consolidated
Financial Statement and relevant accounting standards. The
scope of consolidation for consolidated financial statements is
recognized on the basis of control. The consolidated financial
statements are prepared on financial statements of parent
company and subsidiaries, to adjust long equity investment of
subsidiaries according equity method, then offset significant
balance and transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries and among subsidiaries.

Profit and profit distribution
The realized net profit of the Company shall be appropriated
by the following order:

(1) offsetting against losses for previous years;

(2) appropriation 10% of net profit to statory surplus reserve,
if the statory surplus reserve is more than 50% of the
registered capital, it may not be appropriated;

(3) appropriation to discretionary surplus reserve;
(4) payment of dividends to common shares.

Change in major accounting policies and accounting
estimates and correction of major accounting
differences and its impacts

There were no changes in accounting policies and accounting
estimates and corrections of accounting differences.
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(6)

TAXATION
Value-added tax (“VAT")

The amount of VAT payable is measured by the difference
between the amount of the current amount of tax on sales and
the current amount of tax on purchases. The current amount
of tax on sales is assessed at 17% of the assessable income.

The Company and its subsidiaries are VAT ordinary taxpayers
applicable for the VAT rate of 17%.

Income tax

Pursuant to the approval document issued by the taxation
authority, the applicable rate of income tax of the Company
for 2008 is 15% due to tax favorable policy for Western
Region Development.

The subsidiaries of the Company including Xi‘an Jiaotong
University Siyuan Intelligent Electric Apparatus Co., Ltd., Xi'an
Ser Turbo Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd. and Winko
Machines Co., Ltd. are High Tech Companies. The applicable
rate of income tax is 15%. The applicable rate of income tax
of the other subsidiaries including Kunming Kunji General
Machine Co., Ltd., Kunji Transportation Co., Ltd. and Fujian
Kunji Conventional Machine Tool Co., Ltd. is 25%.

Business tax
The business tax is paid at 3% or 5% of the assessable
income.

Other taxes

The amount of tax payable is determined according to the
Provision Regulations of Taxation.

.
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(t) EXEHREHUBERE

1. RAMEHNERAMNERTFATNRE 1.

(7) ENTITIES CONSOLIDATION AND CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major domestic and overseas subsidiaries controlled

n by the Company
(1) FoalR& EPEBT (1)  Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures
AIER af feaE
ifEx REMH  BEME REKE HXLAEZ
Relationship
Place of Registered  Investment Economic Date of  with the
Company name registration  Scope of business Capital  proportion nature investment Company
(Bx)
(RMB'0000)

BREBRRNE EZT RRRERBIE  Haaas 5,000 45.00% wRaf 200112 AR
RERRAH BEEAERE SlERAER Limited liability Subsidiary
(BZER) ERANTRAE  BBEHZG

T HBIE BILIZE
ERERNANRY BHLE HE-

Xi'an Ser Turbo Xi'an ity Design, development and sales of turbo
Machinery Co., Ltd. machines, energy saving sintering
("Xi"an Ser") fans, compressor equipment, research

and re-modification of imported
equipment and its parts, automated
control system engineering, CNC
engineering, mechanical and

chemical equipment, meter technology
development, whole machine
production and sales

REERTEER BRm RE R LENHERE 500 50.00% BREE 20081 TR
ERAF(ERER) BRZIERREN - Limited liability Subsidiary

Fujian Kunji Conventional ~ Nan'an city ~ Development, design, production and
Machine Tool Co., Ltd. sales of self-produced machine tool
("Fujian Kunji") series products and accessories

EHERER RHm BRRERORY Rt HE- 300 100.00% BRaf 200710 FRdE
REERAF (EABE) Subsidiary

Kunming Kunji General  Kunming city Development, design and sales Limited liability
Machine Co., Ltd. of machine tool products and accessories (wholly owned

by legal person)

EHRARBEY RHm FTERARKORE  BR  ARER: 2023 96.74% BREf 200011 R
BERRAT ETER SRR SR Limited liability Subsidiary
(EBBE) HETE REAH-

Winko Machines Kunming city Development, application and system
Co., Ltd. ("Winko") integration of hardware and software;

retail, wholesale and distribution of
general machinery and electronic machines

ERENBRARDE BT FE fit  LENBEEERKRS S00EET 50.00% AREM 0054 AELE
(2HEH) ERREN FReiEER £18E Limited liability Joint venture

GUEE R TV GUEEE
HOMERAE - HOMERMT -
T0S Kunming Machine Kunming city Development, design, production and 5 million (Euro)

Tool Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. ("TOS Kunming")

sales of self-produced machine tool
series products and accessories;
development of high-tech products,
transfer of self-developed technology,
provision of technical services and
technical advisory; provision of repairs
and processing of machine tool products
for third parties
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ARAR i feE ZRER RELH Lmng RERE HRANARE
Relationship
Place of Registered  Investment Economic Date of  with the
Company name registration  Scope of business Capital  proportion nature investment Company
(1)
(RMB'0000)

ROBBRRNE Ry BE HE BOEGK BOZER- 1000 100.00% EREE 200401  ERERZ
FEARAE RERBRARE Limited liability TR
(RYVER) Subsidiary of

Changsha Ser Turbo Changsha city Production and sales of centrifugal Xi'an Ser
Equipment Co., Ltd. compressors, centrifugal blowers,

("Changsha Ser") sintering fans and its accessories

ANEBRBRA A A RBREIER EEE ZER. 120 51.00% RREf 200404  ERERZ
IRERAT SERRERE  ERER  BBE Limited liability AT
(MER) ZokEREAME  RE - HER Subsidiary of

Wik 4% TE#EER Xi'an Ser
BEMH - REIE 2BMH

BERNNEH: EhERRAEEY

—aEER

Hangzhou Ser Gas Hangzhou city Contracting: design, development, sales
Engineering Co., Ltd. and technology support of gas equipment
("Hangzhou Ser") engineering, compressors, sintering fans,

whole sintering fan equipment,
lowtemperature machines, automated
control system equipment and its parts;
wholesale and retail: mechanical and
electrical products, building materials,
hardware tools, metal materials; operation
of import/export businesses; all legally
valid projects not subject to review

and approval

ERBKER BHT LagE 50 100% RREE 200610 FAd
BREFLT Limited lability Subsidiary
(BlER)

Kunji Transportation Kunming city  General cargo
Co., Ltd. ("Kunji transportation
Transportation”)

BThBRERE ERH REREZIIRE 6,000 23.34% BRAA 0065 BELE
IRWRARAA Limited liability Associate
(BZAH)

Xi'an Ruite Laser Xi'an city  Laser prototyping machine
Prototyping
Manufacturing &

Engineering Research
Co., Ltd.
("Xi'an Ruite")

2. AHBRREERLESENARNRR 2.

BEHAA > RRMBRERAHRBEREE

Changes in the consolidated financial statements
and the reasons thereof

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not have any

material changes in the consolidated financial statements.
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1.

(8) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

EXES 1. Cash and Cash Equivalents
By
Unit: RMB

BARY BOH
As at 30th June 2009 As at 1st January 2009
NESH AREEH NESH wEX ARBEH
Foreign Foreign
ER Items currency RMB currency Exchange rate RMB
Be Cash: - 1,085,597.25 - - 869,068.52
ARE RMB - 1,027,596.25 - - 818,989.19
BT HKD 23,092.64 20,356.85 - 23,092.64 21,423.44
e usb 2,186.15 14,935.56 - 2,186.15 14,941.46
BT EUR 2,419.86 22,318.59 - 1,419.86 13,714.43
HEEL IRD 390,000.00 390.00 - - -
|ITEHN Bank deposit: - 368,056,338.10 - - 326,767,233.36
ARE RMB - 335,178,545.57 - - 292,238,901.53
BT HKD 8,908,932.37 7,853,491.15 9,729,069.60 - 8,579,969.18
e usb 3,636,433.76  24,844,655.71 2,379,631.01 - 16,264,099.72
BT EUR 19,605.57 179,645.67 1,002,615.27 - 9,684,262.93
HiE®ES Other currencies: - - - - 305,100.00
ARE RMB - - - - 305,100.00
A&t Total - 369,141,935.35 - - 327,941,401.88
EWEE 2. Bills receivable

(1) ERZEESH

(1) Types of bills receivable

Biy T MEARE

Unit: RMB

HARE HAOH

As at 30th June As at 1st January

BE Items 2009 2009
RITHENESE Bank acceptance notes 105,838,930.90 63,855,343.27
EEXS NS Commercial acceptance notes - -
&t Total 105,838,930.90 63,855,343.27
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3.

4,

FE W AR K 3. Accounts receivable
Bz or BE:ARK
Unit: RMB
HAH EIEE
As at 30th June 2009 As at 1st January 2009
REHR IREAE
Account balance Account balance
8 tA(%) BRER 8 EB1(%) BRER
Bad debt Bad debt
& Aged analysis Amount Proportion (%) provision Amount Proportion (%) provision
—FIR Within one year 156,679,787.25 51.68  4,596,014.66 165,287,926.46 59.44  8,168,334.75
—2°F 1-2 years 73,302,007.78 2418 34,876,340.93  56,813,442.07 2043 28,224,400.04
ZECE 2-3 years 25,838,274.99 8.52 19,840,858.17  19,188,271.22 6.90 19,188,271.22
=ENLE Over 3 years 47378,442.70 15.62  46,940,332.70  36,799,539.19 13.23  36,799,539.19
ait Total 303,198,512.72 100 106,253,546.46 278,089,178.94 100.00  92,380,545.20
=Fza Notes:
1) AWMEHEWRERPEREEQA 1) There were no accounts receivable due from shareholders
5% (&5% ) A _ERIFER D HYRY R holding over 5% (or 5%) shares of the Company entitling
BAIER voting rights during the Reporting Period,;
2)  FEMWERF B S REBAFBEN 2)  Details of the accounts receivable and amounts due
I ATERRR S P HRE from related parties were disclosed in “RELATED PARTIES
AND TRANSACTIONS” in the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
H 1t & WK 4. Other receivables
Bfy o BB ARK
Unit: RMB
BAY B
As at 30th June 2009 As at 1st January 2009
BESE BESE
Account balance Account balance
£8 EA(%) BRER k2 $H1(%) BRER
Bad debt Bad debt
& Aged analysis Amount Proportion (%) provision Amount Proportion (%) provision
—EHR Within one year 12,743,342 26 33.45 566,879.55  12,763,864.51 3348 399,937.05
—22F 1-2 years 7,757,948.69 2036 466,337.63  3,782,217.80 9.9 356,119.90
—3zF 2-3 years 446,902.68 1.17 829,635.87  15,090,753.29 3959 15,090,753.29
ZENE Over 3 years 17,155,468.29 45.02  16,847,724.16  6,485,835.71 17.01  6,485,835.71
At Total 38,103,661.92 100.00 18,710,577.21  38,122,671.31 100.00  22,332,645.95
it Notes:
1) AREHHMEKERPERERBS% 1) There were no other receivables due from shareholders holding
(B5%) A ERAERNDHBREBLEHR over 5% (or 5%) shares of the Company entitling voting rights
Koo during the Reporting Period;
2) EfbpEBESEIN: T RIBS RS TN 2)  Details of the other receivables and amounts due from

(BB T AR S PR E

related parties were disclosed in “RELATED PARTIES AND
TRANSACTIONS” in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

.
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5. BEMNERX

5. Prepayments

(1) TR RS (1) Aged analysis of prepayments
By r BE:ARK
Unit: RMB

HIRE M
As at 30th June 2009 As at 1st January 2009
-] e Bil(%) £8 e Bil(%)
BR iR Aged analysis Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
—FE R Within one year 45,446,470.49 70.02 32,774,613.24 64.33
-2 1-2 years 14,158,086.86 21.82 16,078,027.11 31.56
—E=F 2-3 years 4,221,752.70 6.51 677,023.00 1.33
=FHE Over 3 years 1,071,599.99 1.65 1,415,606.59 2.78
aat Total 64,897,910.04 100 50,945,269.94 100.00
it Notes:
1) AREHBEHERPEFZTE QA 1) There were no prepayments from shareholders holding over
5% (25% ) A EFRIRERMDEVARR 5% (or 5%) shares of the Company entitling voting rights
BRLEY RGN » during the Reporting Period;
6. ®F& 6. Inventories
By T KR ARE
Unit: RMB
BRY LRE
As at 30th June 2009 As at 1st January 2009

REHE HEER REERE BESE HEEE REEE
Account Impairment Carrying Account Impairment Carrying
ER Items balance provision amount balance provision amount
Rtk Raw materials 84,871,25452  4,706,979.66  80,164,274.86  91,963,490.93  3,991,40549  87,972,085.44
tEm Work in progress 275,859,607.87  7,067,023.77 268,792,584.10 405,616,943.52  6,467,085.09 399,149,858.43
EFHEm Inventory of goods 208,277,263.61  11,672,277.60 196,604,986.01 167,850,514.13  14,638,098.39 153,212,415.74
F&HH Turnover materials 60,500,093.91 - 60,500,093.91  5,984317.37 82,781.00  5901,536.37
BEm Goods sold 2,731,413.35 41589542 2,315517.93  3,276,850.72 - 3276,850.72
ZHNINE Commissioned processing materials 2,546,883.81 - 2,546,883.81 13,783,610.46 - 13,783,610.46
ait Total 634,786,517.07  23,862,176.45 610,924,340.62 688,475,727.13  25,179,369.97 663,296,357.16
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7. HEELERENBELERE 7. Investment in joint venture and associated
companies
Bz T KBE:ARE
Unit: RMB
LN 203
PN RREEN rHEx
BREEM AN affi EHME BREH%) FRELH%) BRAFEELR WAER RHENE
Proportion
of voting Total net Total
rights in assets at operating
Place of Investment  the invested the end of income for Net profits
Name of invested company registration ~ Nature of business  proportion (%)  company (%) the period the period  for the period
- RELX
. Joint Venture
ERENRABRAA EHREY  MREREEHE 50 50 72,787,732.85  61573219.0  12,358,478.1
TOS Kunming Machine Tool Kunming, Production and sales of
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. Yunnan machine tool products
- BEGE
Il. Associated companies
BZRBRERETR BEm REKEBLIEHE 23 23 6286820222 10,328,7789  (407,652.5)
HRERARA
Xi'an Ruite Laser Prototyping  Xi‘an city Production and sale of
Manufacturing & Engineering laser prototyping
Research Co., Ltd. machine products
8. RERERE 8. Long-term equity investment
(1) HEWRIREEFFRLEE G BT K A (1) Proportion of investment and voting rights in the invested
Ve diok companies
EHERE
BukRL 6l
ERREEM ERREENLR ERRRELL B
BREAHI% RREL B % A—BHH A
Explanation of
inconsistence
between the
proportion of
Proportion of Proportion of investment and
investment voting rights voting rights
Name of in the invested in the invested in the invested
WIREEN invested company companies (%) companies (%) companies
ARBERERNE Xi‘an Ser Turbo Machinery
REBRAT Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 45.00 45.00
B HAKKES Kunji Transportation
BREERA Co., Ltd. 100.00 100.00
BRAXAEEED Winko Machines
KERR AR Co., Ltd. 96.74 96.74
EHEETLIAMER Yunnan Cheng Jiang
Copper Products Plant 40.00 40.00
EMBARMEERAE Kunming Kunji General
Machine Co., Ltd. 100.00 100.00
BEEMERRE Fujian Kunji Conventional
ARRA Machine Tool Co., Ltd. 50.00 50.00
EREHEKRER2LR  TOS Kunming Machine
Tool Manufacturing Co., 50.00 50.00
70 2 R R B Xi'an Ruite Laser Prototyping
TiEHERRAA Manufacturing & Engineering
Research Co., Ltd. 23.34 23.34
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(2) EZEEREZE (2) By cost method
Bz T KBE:ARKE
Unit: RMB
NGERERE BABE BHED BRGE HRAEER
Impairment
Name of provision at
invested Initial Opening Increase/ Closing the end of
RREEN company investment cost balance decrease balance the period
RRBERARRNE Xi‘an Ser Turbo
FEBRAF Machinery
Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. 21,693,266 21,693,266 - 21,693,266 -
ERERERER Kunji Transportation
AR Co., Ltd. 500,000 500,000 - 500,000 -
ERRARKEED Winko Machines
BRERATA Co., Ltd. 19,341,545 19,341,545 - 19,341,545 19,341,545
EHBETENE Yunnan Cheng
Jiang Copper
Products Plant 2,000,000 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 2,000,000
EHBRRZEERLA Kunming Kunji
General Machine
Co., Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 -
RRERLAZE Fujian Kunji
BRAA Conventional
Machine Tool
Co., Ltd 2,500,000 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 -
AEf Total 49,034,811 49,034,811 - 49,034,811 21,341,545
(3) K#mZEE (3) By equity method
Bfy o BE:ARK
Unit: RMB
NHRERK BARE EHED HARBE BRABERE
Impairment
Name of Initial provision at
invested investment Opening Increase/ Closing the end of
BBREEMN company cost balance decrease balance the period
AR ERRRNE Xi‘an Ser Turbo
BEERAT] Machinery
Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. 24,739,534 39,542,405 6,179,239 45,721,645 -
ERRREHER Kunji Transportation
NG Co., Ltd. 14,000,000 13,663,200 (131,375) 13,531,824 -
ERRARKED Winko Machines
KEERAA Co., Ltd. 38,739,534 53,205,605 6,047,864 59,253,469 -
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9. EEEE 9. Fixed assets
Bfy :p BE:AREK
Unit: RMB
MRS KL RS E HREERE
Carrying Carrying
amount as amount as
at 1st January Increase for Decrease for at 30th June
EH Items 2009 the period the period 2009
— REAH 1. At cost 690,203,247.18  15,739,340.39 4,655,699.48  701,286,888.09
i FEREEN Including: Buildings and structures 289,511,045.29 2,309,014.00 55,469.00  291,764,590.29
BERE Plant and equipment 327,454,477.44  13,172,918.61 3,508,248.59  337,119,147.46
ERTA Transportation equipment 36,587,302.29 176,430.95 991,325.73 35,772,407.51
ETR Electronic equipment 36,650,422.16 80,976.83 100,656.16  36,630,742.83
= RHFEAH 2. Total accumulated depreciation 241,394,792.93  17,218,373.09 1,986,931.94  256,626,234.08
i REREEY Including: Buildings and structures 53,007,353.50 4,500,636.40 22,071.42 57,485,918.48
HeERE Plant and equipment 153,688,581.64  10,437,990.92 1,505,729.38  162,620,843.18
BHIE Transportation equipment 13,770,456.83 1,466,410.75 372,330.04 14,864,537.54
BTRE Electronic equipment 20,928,400.96 813,335.02 86,801.10 21,654,934.88
= BFEEFES 3. Total fixed assets, net 448,808,454.25  17,726,272.33  21,874,072.57  444,660,654.01
i REREEN Including: Buildings and structures 236,503,691.79 2,331,085.42 4,556,105.40  234,278,671.81
BERE Plant and equipment 173,765,895.80  14,678,647.99  13,946,239.51  174,498,304.28
EHTH Transportation equipment 22,816,845.46 548,760.99 2,457,736.48  20,907,869.97
ET#%ME Electronic equipment 15,722,021.20 167,777.93 913,991.18 14,975,807.95
M- RBEEEST 4. Total impairment provision 5,866,979.25 395,871.64 2,147,085.43 4,115,765.46
i BEREEN Including: Buildings and structures - - - -
KRR Plant and equipment 4,911,308.11 395,871.64 2,147,085.43 3,160,094.32
BHIA Transportation equipment - - - -
ETHE Electronic equipment 955,671.14 - - 955,671.14
h BREEFEA 5. Total fixed assets, net 442,941,475.00  17,330,400.69  19,726,987.14  440,544,888.55
b BERBEY Including: Buildings and structures 236,503,691.79 2,331,085.42 4,556,105.40  234,278,671.81
BEFR Plant and equipment 168,854,587.69  14,282,776.35  11,799,154.08  171,338,209.96
BHIE Transportation equipment 22,816,845.46 548,760.99 2,457,736.48 20,907,869.97
ET#%ME Electronic equipment 14,766,350.06 167,777.93 913,991.18  14,020,136.81
10. EEIRE 10. Construction-in-progress
Bfy :ox KBE:AREK
Unit: RMB
HRY B
As at 30th June 2009 As at 1st January 2009
FE®E HKEEE FEFE REHE BEEE FEFE
Impairment  Net carrying Impairment  Net carrying
EH Item Balance provision amount Balance provision amount
EEIR Construction-in-progress 59,810,696.1  2,056,931.37 57,753,764.73 3198320186  2,056,931.37  29,926,270.49

.
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11.

11. Intangible assets

iy o Tp PR e
Unit: RMB
HAEERE RERE NEE THELSE  HAREESE
As at As at
1st January Increase for ~ Decrease for 30th June
EH Items 2009 the period the period 2009
— RE&H 1. At cost 35,597,294.43  4,450,000.00 - 40,047,294.43
T3 A () Land use rights (Kunji) 11,131,991.94 = - 11,131,991.94
T B Land use rights 12,949,885.28 - - 12,949,885.28
2R All over vortex technology 3,488,999.72 = - 3,488,999.72
B A Use rights of staff quarters 3,271,033.85 = - 3,271,033.85
BEREERIN Technical know-how of
embroidery 2,323,453.26 = - 2,323,453.26
IMAGEL IMAG software 251,926.60 = = 251,926.60
SREETREMG Kingdee production
management software 306,499.85 - - 306,499.85
PHRAEERRNER Licensing and operation
FETTIRS service for Kingdee
production management
software 240,333.39 - - 240,333.39
SR FERTTE Kingdee software permit fee 210,954.79 - - 210,954.79
RN I Office software 186,975.00 - - 186,975.00
SBEMRE Kingdee logistic software 144,834.08 - - 144,834.08
BH-zeEM Mail system software 119,200.08 - - 119,200.08
ORACLEEI ORACLE software 57,636.61 - - 57,636.61
SN EANFRTE Kingdee instrument for
accounting standards for
business enterprises 31,999.92 - - 31,999.92
s E Financial software 3,083.41 - - 3,083.41
Oracle 85 & Oracle database 522,500.00 - - 522,500.00
OfficeBr Office software 270,956.66 - - 270,956.66
RIEZGEWindows Server  0S Windows Server 2008
2008 Enterprise Edition Enterprise Edition 59,000.00 - - 59,000.00
ERPEL(F ERP software 26,029.99 - - 26,029.99
Windchill g £ Windchill software - 2,570,000.00 - 2,570,000.00
Pro/Engineer® Pro/Engineer software - 1,880,000.00 - 1,880,000.00
12. EEMBHREE 12. Deferred income tax assets
By r ME:ARE
Unit: RMB
HARE TR
As at 30th June As at 1st January
HE Items 2009 2009
FEIRER Bad debt provision 24,537,702.51 14,688,777.63
A ESREERE Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets - -
FEUEER Provision for impairment of inventories 3,665,744.70 3,665,744.69
Bl & EREEE Provision for impairment of fixed assets 929,973.45 998,382.72
EREITRBIEEE Provision for impairment of
construction-in-progress 514,232.85 514,232.85
RERIER A Long-term equity investment 109,312.92 5,422,541.01
ERTAE Contingent liabilities 2,116,657.29 2,088,016.89
BETEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 68,511.16 -
REBRRHFH Unrealized internal profits 735,048.96 751,504.79
RHAFEER Long-term deferred expenses - 698.58
IEFEW 2 Deferred gain 1,185,000.00 -
MR A Early retirement and benefits 4,541,215.58 4,742,732.94
SR EEERER Issue VAT invoice in advance 2,942,370.90 3,203,143.65
B # Bh Government grants - 1,185,000.00
BEF Total 41,345,770.32 37,260,775.74
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13.

EEREEERM

13. Details of provision for impairment of assets

By o BE ARE

Unit: RMB
AHHOE
Decrease for the period
ENRESE AHRE 1] Bl it BRRESE
As at Provision for As at
8 Items st January 2009 the period Reversal Write-off Total  30th June 2009
- BRERE 1. Provision for bad debts 114,713,191.15 15,713,386.83 - 28,400.00 2840000 130,398,177.98
~ GHEKEER 2. Provision for impaiment 2517936997 2,819,928 - 413102208 413702208 23862,176.45
of inventories
= IfttEew 3. Provision for impairment
BENEER of available-for-sale
financial assets - - - - - =
B BEZHERE 4 Provision for impairment
AEERE of held-to-maturity
investment - - - - - -
i RERERE 5. Provision for impairment
AEEE of long-term equity
investment 2,000,000.00 - - - - 2,000,000.00
ne RENRME 6. Provision for impairment
AEEE of real estate investment - - - - - -
t- EREEHEEE 7. Provision for impaiment of
fixed assets 5,866,979.25 395,871.64 212,470.76 1,874,614.67 2,147,085.43 4,115,765.46
N TROEHEEE 8 Provision for impaiment
of construction materials
Ao ERIEEEEE 9. Provision for impairment of
construction-in-progress 2,05,931.37 - - - - 2,056,931.37
+o EEHENEE 10, Provision for impairment of
REEE productive biological assets - - - - - -
EdHBEEEET  Induding: Provision for
AENEER impairment of
mature productive
biological assets - - - - - -
- HEBENEEE 11 Provision for impairment
of oil assets - - - - - -
+Z BEEREEE 12 Provision for impaiment of
intangible assets 2,323,453.26 - - - - 2,323,453.26
= EEHEEE 13. Provision for impairment
of goodwill - - - - - -
TH 14. Others - - - - - .
At Total 152,139,925.00 18,929,187.03 21247076 6,040,136.75 6,312,607.51 164,756,504.52

.
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14.

15.

EHER

14. Short-term loans

By - ®E:AR¥

Unit: RMB
BRE A
As at 30th June As at 1st January
HE Items 2009 2009
EHRE K Pledged loans 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
ERfER Credit loans 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00
CE Total 70,000,000.00 70,000,000.00
FE 45 B T 3550 15. Accrued salary
By o BE:AREK
Unit: RMB
B REAE KEEME KBZAE HAREESE
As at As at
1st January Increase for Decrease for 30th June
ER Items 2009 the period the period 2009
- I% %% 1. Salary, bonus, subsidy
LRI and grants 12,849,913.01 64,310,762.35 70,298,525.16 6,862,150.20
ZBIRNE 2. Employees’ benefits - 2,616,827.11 2,991,294.53 (374,467.42)
= HEeRRE 3. Social insurance (1,961,380.74)  17,406,202.72  16,523,638.02  (1,078,816.04)
Her Including:
1. BERREE 1. Medical insurance 61,602.12 5,012,484.58 4,899,008.84 175,077.86
2. BXEERBE 2. Basic retirement
insurance (1,587,540.66)  10,932,916.54 10,792,470.39 (1,447,094.51)
3. FRHE 3. Annuity
4 RERRE 4. Unemployment (435,442.20) 747,043.96 112,840.56 198,761.20
insurance
5. THiF 5. Work injury
insurance - 248,986.33 253,426.30 (4,439.97)
6. £ER 6. Maternity insurance - 464,771.31 465,891.93 (1,120.62)
mFEAES 4. Housing fund 1,866,921.32 6,368,830.68 6,396,755.00 1,838,997.00
fEff 5. Others - - - -
N BRGREDEZR 6. Compensation for termination
RTHREE of labor service contract 19,000,340.55 217,517.78  1,625,501.85  17,592,356.48
t IgREMET 7. Union expenses and employees
BB education expenses 4,997,997.77 2,183,762.36 1,137,339.52 6,044,420.61
N RRER 8. Early retirement and benefits - - - -
N AEIREER 9. Unrecognized finance expenses - - - -
B Total 36,753,791.91 93,103,903.00  98,973,054.08 30,884,640.83
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16. EXHE

16. Taxes payable

Bz :x %E:AR¥

Unit: RMB
BARE BOE R
As at As at
30th June 1st January
= Items 2009 2009 Payment standard
EED Value-added tax 7,904,040.82 (8,442,823.73) ARFIAEHAHENE
TS £ E B
B HETRT R IR A BREEET 4K o
The amount of VAT payable is
measured by the difference
between the amount of the
current amount of tax on
sales and the current amount
of tax on purchases.
EEM Business tax 42,787.37 241,925.97
PS5 Income tax 10,435,779.40 3,684,435.69  IRIBEFIISHELEAHHLIE -
RNT2008F ZH#E
AT AR B EIUR -
The Company continued to
implement preferential tax
policies in respect of the
development of the western
region according to the written
reply issued by the tax authorities.
EAFTS®L  Personal income tax 389,739.93 538,922.98
R City construction tax 137,224.49 42,170.70 1B EFHENT%
Measured at 7% of the
value-added tax
BEH Property tax 3,720.00 62,839.33
THIFERAM  Land use tax - 32,827.48
H A Others 96,807.05 7,566.44
CEn Total 19,010,099.06 (3,832,135.14)

I -
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17.

18.

19.

B RE

17. Contingent liabilities

By :r BE:AR¥

Unit: RMB
BRE LEEDIE B A
As at 30th June As at 1st January
S| Items 2009 2008 Remark
EmEERE Product quality warranty 13,756,318.40 13,803,999.97
&&F Total 13,756,318.40 13,803,999.97
REEMARK 18. Long-term payables
By o BE:ARK
Unit: RMB
HIRE LERIE -
As at 30th June As at 1st January
HH Items 2009 2009
ENREHES Obligation under finance lease 4,448,195.70 4,448,195.70
a5t Total 4,448,195.70 4,448,195.70
B RHERHBLEER  Less: unrecognized finance expenses 1,611,998.50 1,676,478.40
a5t Total 2,836,197.20 2,771,717.30
HEEEMNRK 19. Specific payables
By o BE:AREK
Unit: RMB
HOH K EEY HRE B
As at Carried As at
1st January forward for 30th June
HE Items 2009 the period 2009 Remark
EMAREHIBREI Specific appropriation
from Yunnan Provincial
Development and
Reform Commission - - -
PRAAE N E T % Specific appropriation
BEML FIEER for industrial automation
from Shaanxi Provincial
Development and
Reform Commission 8,000,000.00 - 8,000,000.00
PRFT G MiE®ES  Specific appropriation
HIRET from Shaanxi Intellectual
Property Office 100,000.00 - 100,000.00
&5t Total 8,100,000.00 - 8,100,000.00
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20. EERRQTE 20.

Capital reserve

Bz :x %E:AR¥

Unit: RMB

HAOH ZNHA 48 b0 KE R D HRE

As at As at

1st January Increase for Decrease for 30th June

HH Items 2009 the period the period 2009
EREE(RARE) Capital reserve

(share premium) 125,422,997.12 -

125,422,997.12

BEERHRABEHK
(BE+ - B

TR F AR D EC A

s AEEFE

B REVEAE BHATE
REEREBRLE

& A< 5 378 A B

B R RAN RO B 18 B R
HIR R 2 BC F) 78

the year (31st December 2008)
Adjustment: total undistributed
profit at the beginning of the
year (increase:+; decrease-)
After adjustment: undistributed
profit at the beginning of the year
Add: net profit for the period
Less: statutory surplus reserve
Discretionary surplus reserve
Dividends payable
Dividend transfer to share capital
Undistributed profits at the end
of the period

414,246,947.45
116,106,525.94

40,149,730.00

490,203,743.42

HiEARATE Other capital reserve 8,096,544.60 - - 8,096,544.60
ast Total 133,519,541.72 - - 133,519,541.72
21. BHAE 21. Surplus reserve

Bfy o BEARK

Unit: RMB

HOH AHER KE D HRE

As at As at

1st January Increase for Decrease for 30th June

HE Items 2009 the period the period 2009

EEBBDNE Statutory surplus
reserve 68,599,140.08 - - 68,599,140.08
aat Total 68,599,140.08 - - 68,599,140.08
22, RO ERE 22. Undistributed profits

By - R ARK

Unit: RMB

BMRE RE S 2 e bt

Drawing or

As at 30th June allocation

HH Items 2009 proportion
AT E VIR LA Before adjustment: undistributed

(20085 HAAR &) profit at the beginning of

R
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23.

(2)

BRIBA

23. Operating income

Bz THE: AR¥

RPBRER

Amount for the
six months ended

Unit: RMB
LHARER

Amount for the
six months ended

EA Items 30th June 2009 30th June 2008
FEEBWA Operating income 641,942,134.34 792,410,023.09
HMZEFKA Other operating income 20,361,926.92 16,178,119.44
CE Total 662,304,061.26 808,588,142.53

FEER(DTE) (2) Principal businesses (by business segment)
By o KR ARK
Unit: RMB

REE LR
For the six months ended For the six months ended

30th June 2009 30th June 2008
EEWA BN EEKRA EEMK
Operating Operating Operating Operating
TEER Items income expenses income expenses

BRERBEE Sales of machine tool

BME BRI E

FEmHERA
WK T AR5

BRREBHE
BREHRA

MHRHE
MEX®
BT AR
HithsH &

products
Sales of highly efficient
energy-saving compressors
Sales of new products
Machine tool processing
services
Sales of embroidery machines
Sales of intelligent
electrical appliances
Sales of rotary tables
Sales of laser prototyping
machines
Sales of sensor equipment
Machine tool transportation
revenue
Sales of materials
Leasing
Technical support services
Other sales

Total

542,071,939.03

70,128,365.58
18,947,676.93

13,804,424.32
354,136.77

1,469,512.85

2,065,148.00
607,259.91
166,600.00
3,461.41
12,685,536.46

348,070,269.12

54,744,901.89

4,425,678.14
4,137,122.00

1,499,119.37

1,698,385.40
427,335.77
108,475.44
193.83
10,292,599.63

621,573,533.71

119,172,339.25
12,612,995.00

38,801,915.05

2,616,003.09
1,334,123.55

8,912,108.44

3,565,124.44

394,446,193.72

97,207,975.01

20,146,528.61

1,321,847.60
1,007,736.15

8,293,997.12

1,816,518.91

662,304,061.26

425,404,080.59

808,588,142.53

524,240,797.12
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24, EEBSRMHM 24. Business tax and additions
By EE:ARK

Unit: RMB
HEIH LtEEHE FHEEE
For the six For the six
months ended months ended
EH Items 30th June 2009 30th June 2008 Tax rate standards
RN Business tax 52,695.39 348,256.50
RE ) City construction tax 220,335.87 255,891.59  IHIZEMENT %

Measured at 7% of the
value-added tax

HEEMIM  Education fee additions 113,361.02 121,414.02  REMEF3% - MAFHEE
B DRI ERL 1 %
Measured at 3% of the city
construction tax; and 1% of
the value-added tax for the
local education fee additions

Al

A& Total 386,392.28 725,562.11
25. REWS 25. Investment income
(1) BiFREXP AL EY 7 1E H 12 51 (1) Additional items for investment income in the financial
statements
By o0 BE:ARE
Unit: RMB
REEE THEEE
For the six For the six
months ended months ended
30th June 2009 30th June 2008
Az E R Long-term equity investment

fe ety B Wz income under equity method 6,047,864 3,258,675
He Others - 3,759,702
A&t Total 6,047,864 7,018,377
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(2) IR L% E g < B R i R B (2) Investment income by invested company under the long-

HEE 75BN EWR S term equity investment by cost method
By .o KE:ARK
Unit: RMB
ZRHAEE - HA 3
LS AEEEE BENERE
For the six For the six
Name of the months ended months ended Reason for
WIREEW invested company 30th June 2008 30th June 2009 the change
BB W= Gain on wealth
management 153,206 -
A AR Natural person shareholder 3,606,496 =
CE Total 3,759,702 -
(3) HEZZIZENRIPKREREZK (3) Investment income by invested company under the long-
BEE (TS IB R EW S term equity investment by equity method
By ox BE:ARE
Unit: RMB
ZRH L b HA R
TS ¥l g BENERE
For the six For the six
Name of the months ended months ended Reason for
WIREEW invested company 30th June 2008 30th June 2009 the change
EHTAT] TOS Kunming 3,848,714 6,179,239 A H| Profit
ikt b= Xi'an Ruite (590,039) (131,375) €518 Loss
CE Total 3,258,675 6,047,864
EERMEERX 26. Loss on impairment of assets
By i or KE:ARK
Unit: RMB
b e FHAR AR
For the six For the six
months ended months ended
HE Items 30th June 2009 30th June 2008
— - ;mEREX 1. Provision for bad debt 15,713,386.83 17,443,143.92
Z GEREBX 2. Provision for impairment of
inventories (1,317,193.52) (10,194.37)
= BEEEEREEX 3. Provision for impairment of
fixed assets 123,400.88 1,578,245.36
&5 Total 14,519,594.19 19,011,194.91
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27.

28.

29.

EE S ON

1HH

27. Non-operating income

Items

AH A
For the six
months ended
30th June 2009

T BEARE

Unit: RMB
EHIBRLERE

For the six
months ended
30th June 2008

FRBDEERENSAF
Hep: BEEERENG
BEEANG
BERRE

B 46 Bh
HAth

BEIPZH

1HH

Total gain on disposal of
non-current assets

Including: Gain on disposal of
fixed assets

Gain on debt restructuring

Refund of value-added tax

Government grant

Others

Total

30,111.58

30,111.58
17,172,846.19
311,200.00
1,183,769.42

2,049,140.58

346,132.83
1,703,007.75
26,377,174.87
252,743.40
9,401.00

18,697,927.19

28,688,459.85

28. Non-operating expenses

Items

By BE:ARE

AEARAERE
For the six
months ended
30th June 2009

Unit: RMB
FHAR AR

For the six
months ended
30th June 2008

FRBEERERKRAR

Total loss on disposal of

non-current assets 160,166.72 3,399,816.85
Hep - BFEEREEAX  Including: Loss on disposal of
fixed assets 153,766.72 1,594,962.29
BIFEHIBL Loss on debt restructuring - 1,578,450.36
¥THMNE Y Donations 6,400.00 226,404.20
HAh Others 558,364.49 176,012.16
A&t Total 718,531.21 3,575,829.01
MEeHER 29. Income tax expenses
By or BE:ARE
Unit: RMB
AHE L ER LFHIRAEE
For the six For the six
months ended months ended
HA Items 30th June 2009 30th June 2008
BCREMBRBIA)ERTE Current income tax pursuant to Law
B2 BFTIS L the Enterprise Income Tax 16,359,025.82 21,932,829.88
RIE PRSI EE Deferred income tax adjustment (4,084,994.57) 3,390,533.35
a5t Total 12,274,031.25 25,323,362.53

.
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30. RERERBEATR

30. Notes to the items of the cash flow statement

(1) YW E ) E b £24E &% B) B B ) 3 (1) Other cash received relating to operating activities
&
Bfy i op KE:ARK
Unit: RMB
HA -
Items Amount
KIBEE ERELE Interest discount on loans for
technological renovation projects
HEEIEE B R&D project fund 240,000.00
I T #6 B Government grant 322,400.00
WERE Interest received from deposits 823,407.27
HAt Others 781,602.81
Gl Total 2,167,410.08

(2)

XTHIE M BAR &R B B B )

Other cash paid relating to operating activities

Bfy :op BE:ARK
Unit: RMB
HAB k]
Items Amount
WNE Office expense 1,367,965.20
=iIRE Business traveling expense 8,462,200.80
BE8 Entertainment expense 1,517,503.45
ITHERE Listing management fee 334,136.50
HNEBRRSFELAMREE  Integrated service fee for 2008 paid to
the group companies 248,576.62
MIEERES Tender deposit paid 5,560,668.20
NERE Consultation fee paid 4,028,175.95
ZH=BRBEE Service fee on installation and configuration
with refund, replacement and repairs 1,456,488.34
2RE Exhibition expense 2,978,753.42
Bt Audit fee 1,569,400.00
Hth Others 44,839,302.97
MRk EE R&D expense 774,800.00
ELTE= Legal expense 72,492.10
HEB (KL HH) Leasing expense (site of operations) 610,290.00
Gl Total 73,820,753.55

o I
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31. BERERBREHR

wHRER

31. Supplementary information of the

statement

Supplementary
information

B

rHEHE

For the six
months ended
30th June 2009

cash flow

BE: ARK
Unit: RMB
tHeE

For the six
months ended
30th June 2008

1. RENRASRELEDRLRE:

il

mn: EEREER

B EENE  HREENFE
HEMANEERE

B EEEH

RPGEEREH

B 3
REETEE BN EEMN
A RHEENRR
(e k[ - SEE%))
Bl AERERX
(Yegg ik [— ] SEiE%)
RABEEDEX
(RgA T— 1 SRE5)
MBER (ks [—] SREF)
REBRX (ks -] REF)
EXFEREERD
(EINA T—] SRIE5)
EXFERAREMN
(R[] SR5)
FEHRED (GEMA [-] 5RE5)

R RYOER MRS
(B0 [ SRIR5)
REERAERAEN
CRA [ SR5)
Afts
RETHELNREREFE

2. FHRASUXMEARE
NBEED
EHEERER
—FERIPHTBRARES
MERABTEE

3. RERRSSENFEEHERN:

RENHRRE
B REOHBRE

n: ReFENNARSEE
B ReFENOHNRE

RERAESENFEMNE

Reconciliation of net profit to cash
flows from operating activities:

Net profits

Add: Provision for impairment of assets

Depreciation of fixed assets, oil assets
and productive biological assets

Amortization of intangible assets

Amortization of long-term
deferred expenses

Amortization of deferred gain

Loss on disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other
long-term assets ("-" for gain)

Loss on retirement of fixed assets

("-" for gain)
Loss on fair value change
("-" for gain)

Finance expenses (“-" for gain)
Investment loss (“-" for gain)
Decrease in deferred income
tax assets (“-" for increase)
Increase in deferred income tax
liabilities ("-" for decrease)
Decrease in inventories
("-" for increase)
Decrease in operating receivable
("-" for increase)
Increase in operating payable
("-" for decrease)
Others
Net cash flows from operating activities
Major non-cash investment and
financing activities:
Capitalization of debts
Convertible bonds due within one year
Fixed assets under finance lease
Net change in cash and
cash equivalents:
Cash balance at the end of the period
Less: cash balance at the beginning of
the period
Add: cash equivalents at the end of
the period
Less: cash equivalents at the
beginning of the period
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

116,382,826.07
14,519,594.19

17,218,373.18
1,500,275.33

81,641.81
102,650.10

171,617.92

2,571,765.58
(6,047,863.99)

(4,084,994.58)

52,372,016.54
(55,711,916.99)
(70,864,277.76)

68,211,707.40

369,141,935.35

327,941,401.88

41,200,533.47

153,571,240.71
19,011,194.41

25,601,578.71
1,582,513.89

150,025.00
1,242,654.56

16,320.08

2,150,051.69
(7,018,376.94)

592,510.85

(125,473,957.48)
(15,638,636.75)
9,646,144.27

65,433,262.99

404,730,406.84

370,350,788.42

34,379,618.42

.
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(h) BAREFFHRRMEE

(9) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE
PARENT COMPANY

5%) A _E SRR B0 B9 IR R BB AL KO RK

2. HtEWK

holding over 5% (or 5%) shares of the

voting rights during the Reporting Period.

2. Other receivables

1. EWERR 1. Accounts receivable
By :op BE:ARK
Unit: RMB
BRY B
As at 30th June 2009 As at 1st January 2009
RERES RHESE
Account balance Account balance

Ex $6l(%) BEER k2] H (%) BRERE
Provision for Provision for
14 Aged analysis Amount Proportion (%) bad debt Amount Proportion (%) bad debt
—ER Within one year 120,677,994.06 5545 3,509,393.85 145,465,388.98 67.02  7,064,658.32
—EZF 1-2 years 48,842,649.32 2244 24,421324.66  35,395,967.04 16.31  17,575,983.52
“EZF 2-3 years 12,624,838.17 580 12,624,838.17  12,004,296.22 553 12,004,296.22
=EHE Over 3 years 35,483,327.78 16.30  35483,327.78  24,172,509.56 11.14  24,172,509.56
At Total 217,628,809.33 100.00  76,038,884.46 217,038,161.80 100.00  60,817,447.62
A EHEBRERPEFTELRS% (5 There were no accounts receivable due from shareholders

Company entitling

Bfy :or KE - ARK
Unit: RMB
BRY R
As at 30th June 2009 As at 1st January 2009
RERE RHSE
Account balance Account balance

©8 EA(%) BRER k2 EA(%) BRER
Provision for Provision for
Rk Aged analysis Amount Proportion (%) bad debt Amount Proportion (%) bad debt
—EHRA Within one year 14,075,407.35 47.28 475,628.06  42,876,328.20 73.66 353,072.51
—xZ 1-2 years 862,946.17 2.90 431,473.09 673,457.80 1.16 331,739.90
“ECE 2-3 years 197,655.11 0.66 197,655.11  14,229,702.39 2445 14,229,702.39
=ENE Qver 3 years 14,634,099.93 49.16  14,634,099.92 42413770 0.73 42413770
ait Total 29,770,108.56 100.00  15,738,856.18  58,203,626.09 100.00  15,338,652.50

A EREMEYERFEFERA
5% (B5%)A EFRRER AN R AR Bz
H R

There were no other receivables due from shareholders holding
over 5% (or 5%) shares of the Company entitling voting rights
during the Reporting Period.
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REIBRERE

3. Long-term equity investment

Bz :x %E:AR¥

fe ERREEM

Unit: RMB
EHREEN KRR

InkERs  HORE  RHED DAY AHAERE  WERE BRMAM% A%
Impairment Proportion of ~ Proportion
Including:  provision shareholding  of voting
Initial Impairment in the inthe  rights in
Name of the investment ~ Opening  Increase/ Closing provision for ~invested invested the invested
RREEN invested company cost balance  decrease balance  the period  company company (%) company (%)
ERERRRRERARRAR Xi'an Ser Turbo Machinery
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 21,693,266 21,693,266 - 21,693,266 - - 45.00 45.00
RRRRESARALLT Kunji Transportation Co, Ltd. 500,000 500,000 - 500000 - - 100,00 100.00
REXAEREBRERRAT Winko Machines Co., Ltd. 19,341,545 19,341,545 - 19,341,545 - 19,341,545 96.74 9.74
ERERRERRLT Kunming Kunji General
Machine Co., Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 - - 100.00 100.00
ERERLERARRAA Fujian Kunji Conventional
Machine Tool Co., Ltd. 2,500,000 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 - - 50.00 50.00
RRETRRARAA 105 Kunming Machine Tool
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 24739534 39,542,405 6,179,239 45,721,645 - - 50.00 50.00
BRERERETRARERLE  Xi'an Ruite Laser Prototyping
Manufacturing & Engineering
Research Co,, Ltd. 14,000,000 13,663,199 (131375 13,531,824 - - 23.34 2334
EEIWA 4. Operating income
Bl o K ARKE
Unit: RMB
AHBAERE LHIBRERE
For the six For the six
months ended months ended
EHE Items 30th June 2009 30th June 2008
FEEBIA Operating income 523,007,779.52 591,675,326.57
HmEBHRA Other operating income 20,314,937.99 16,083,765.97
At Total 543,322,717.51 607,759,092.54
e 5. Investment income
Bz or KE:ARKE
Unit: RMB
tH&HE rEEE AHEEHEESSNERERE
For the six For the six
Name of the months ended months ended
WIZEEN  invested company 30th June 2008 30th June 2009 Reason for the change
JELING] TOS Kunming 3,848,714.27 6,179,239.07 &7
Profit
Gilfzgit=s Xi‘an Ruite (590,038.68) (131,375.08) 518
Loss
EBRNL Xi‘an Ser dividend 9,000,000 - DEEAN
Distributed profits
B EEE Gain on wealth
management 153,205.49 -
a&t Total 12,411,881.08 6,047,863.99

K
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RERBRARTENR

BRER

6. Supplementary information of the cash flow

statement

Supplementary

By o B2 ARK

S HE

For the six
months ended
30th June 2009

Unit: RMB
LE&H

For the six
months ended
30th June 2008

. RENEADREE

BHRERE

F
i BERERERE

ETEENE
HREEFE -
EEMENEERE

B EESH
CESS 3k

AT 25 3
EEEFEE -
A E A
EHEEmEL
(s [~ grm3)
AR EX
(habl [~ g51)
A BEEDHEX
(250 [— | S5
BHSEE (Wbl [ | BEsl)
waEk (el (-] B
EITF AR EER D
(REEL [ — ) $E)
AT S8 R D
CRAEL T -] )
AR
(HIE [—) $E3)
A P O A R D
SN [~ S5
0% 8 B #0320
BB T~ ] 5]

EEPELNRTREFR

N

Q2
WL

>§ADUPA

(

Hl/tﬂt

. AERATUINEARE

MBEED
BEHBREXR
—FREBHATERREES

BEHABERE

. BERREEENFLBER

ReHARRE

B AR

i ReFENOIRERE
B e FENNBRE
RERREEEMFEME

1. Reconciliation of net profit

to cash flows from
operating activities:
Net profits
Add: Provision for impairment
of assets
Depreciation of fixed assets,
oil assets and productive
biological assets
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of long-term
deferred expenses
Amortization of deferred gain
Loss on disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other
long-term assets (“-" for gain)

Loss on retirement of
fixed assets (“-" for gain)
Loss on fair value change
("-" for gain)
Finance expenses (“-" for gain)
Investment loss (“-" for gain)
Decrease in deferred income
tax assets (“-" for increase)
Increase in deferred income
tax liabilities (“-" for decrease)
Decrease in inventories
("-" for increase)
Decrease in operating receivable
("-" for increase)
Increase in operating payable
("-" for decrease)
Others
Net cash flows from operating
activities

. Major non-cash investment

and financing activities:
Capitalization of debts
Convertible bonds due

within one year
Fixed assets under finance lease

. Net change in cash and

cash equivalents:
Cash balance at the end of
the period
Less: Cash balance at the
beginning of the period
Add: Cash equivalents
at the end of the period
Less: Cash equivalents at the
beginning of the period
Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

115,582,353.69
15,650,040.53
13,735,348.31
1,346,267.20

56,250.02
102,650.10

98,480.98

1,972,708.58
(6,047,863.99)

(3,421,416.79)
33,350,391.00
(26,234,333.15)

(83,700,523.24)

62,490,353.24

138,750,222.54
21,544,684.89
22,269,292.73
1,032,737.16

125,393.51

1,108,261.43

1,636,270.55
(12,411,881.08)

(1,221,111.55)
(24,245,992.83)
(81,310,345.24)

(10,365,239.30)

56,912,292.81

315,510,979.28

279,084,078.67

36,426,900.61

336,887,587.41

322,698,506.89

14,189,080.52
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(+) BB AT RBABXS
1. FEEZFERNEBRTER

(10) RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTIONS
1. Details of

related parties with controlling

relationship
(1) FEEHIERE T (i)  Related parties with controlling relationship
TEER S 5 F HER it i 4 TEREHE EERRA
Relationship Economic
with nature Place of Legal
Name the Company  or type registration Scope of business representative
EERRK(EE) RN ¢ BREE tBm TEIHIERK SRR BHK
BREARA REHRERE AR
(LHHKER) BXES BWES
Shenyang Machine Tool The largest Limited Shenyang city Manufacturing of metal-cutting  Guan Xiyou
(Group) Co., Ltd. shareholder liability machines, CNC machines and
(“Shenyang Group”) mechanical equipment;
general commercial trading
and technology trading
within the PRC
RRERKRNE FRA BREE AW KRIERBIRE T
REERLA mEHEY  BREENE
(ARER) &l SIERBEREREN
MMESE - BPEHE
Tz BT #3(
IRE  BREROBM
e BREE  HE-
Xi'an Ser Turbo Machinery Subsidiary Limited Xi'an city Design, development and Wang Shangjin
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. liability sales of turbo machines,
(“Xi'an Ser”) energy saving sintering fans,
compressor equipment,
research and re-modification
of imported equipment and
its parts, automated control
system engineering, CNC
engineering, mechanical and
chemical equipment, meter
technology development,
whole machine production
and sales
REERLTRIRK FRAE BERERE @Em BE - Rit EENHE JEIE &
BRAR BEBK RIE R KA
(REZER)
Fujian Kunji Conventional Subsidiary Limited Nan'an city Development, design, production ~ Zhou Guoxing
Machine Tool Co., liability and sales of self-produced

Ltd.("Fujian Kunji")

machine tool series products
and accessories

T
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(2)

(3)

REEE

tRER HEALEBR i hid sttt TEREHE EERRA
Relationship Economic
with nature Place of Legal
Name the Company  or type registration Scope of business representative
EEJ%U(EJ%E@J FAR EREE EBEHm STERTBANRE  ER - Rt
BEARA ZOER  EFEm
(E@M%ag) LRKN - SaEmNE
TE RER#H-
Winko Machines Subsidiary Limited Development, application and Chen Jianzhong
Co., Ltd. ("Winko") liability ~ Kunming city system integration of
hardware and software; retail,
wholesale and distribution
of general machinery and
electronic machines
BEREREHAR FRA BREE E#Em LhEE RER
EARA
(BKER)
Kunji Transportation Subsidiary Limited Kunming city General cargo transportation Zhang Xiaoyi
Co., Ltd (“Kunji liability
Transportation”)
EHEKER FRA BREE E#m BRREHNES & =B
REARAF HE -
(BAZRRE)
Kunming Kunji General Subsidiary Limited Kunming city Development, design, and sale Gao Minghui
Machine Co., Ltd liability of machine tool products
("General Machine") and accessories
o 1] B8 2 fly B Bk Ty B 2 A K B (ii)  Registered capital of related parties with controlling
p \X/ relationship and its changes
B KHE M KHED BRY
Opening  Increase during Decrease during Closing
bRER Name balance the period the period balance
EEHEKEE Shenyang Machine
Tool Group 1,556,480,000.00 - - 1,556,480,000.00
[iES-{ Xi'an Ser 50,000,000.00 - - 50,000,000.00
BEes Winko 20,230,000.00 - - 20,230,000.00
BiES Kunji Transportation 500,000.00 - - 500,000.00
B Kunji General Machine
Equipment Co. 3,000,000.00 - - 3,000,000.00
RERH Fujian Kunji - 5,000,000.00 - 5,000,000.00

H 4

gzﬂl il ?{E”]/E’? B 7 B 5 B 10

s

(iii)  Shares and equity held by related parties with controlling
relationship and its changes

LSRR

Opening balance

RS

Closing balance

it 4 &8 tA(%) RHEEM KHED 8 EA(%)
Increase during Decrease during

Name Amount Proportion (%) the period the period Amount Proportion (%)

WEBREE  Shenyang Machine Tool Group  106,578,219.00 25.09 - - 106,578,219.00 25.09

EZER Xi‘an Ser 22,500,000.00 45.00 - - 22,500,000.00 45.00

BNk Winko 19,570,000.00 96.74 - - 19,570,000.00 96.74

BEg Kunji Transportation 500,000.00 100.00 - - 500,000.00 100.00
EHRA Kunji General Machine

Equipment Co. 3,000,000.00 100.00 - - 3,000,000.00 100.00

BREH Fujian Kunji - - 2,500,000.00 - 2,500,000.00 50.00
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TEREEHBANBEBLER 2

Related parties without controlling relationship

hEERB BEARDENER
Name Relationship with the Company
ERRBHERERA A BEME
TOS Kunming Machine Tool Manufacturing Co., Ltd. Joint Venture
AL InF R E T EFRER A A BEdR
Xi'an Ruite Laser Prototyping Manufacturing &
Engineering Research Co., Ltd. Associate

EREREEEROARAR

Yunnan CY (Group) Company Products Trading Centre

EHREERA
Kunji Group Co., Ltd.

HREH LS RAT
Czech Tos Vansdorf Co., Ltd.

FE—RBRRZFRAF

Subsidiary of the largest shareholder

- RBORFTESIF R 5]

Subsidiary controlled by the second
largest shareholder

BEMPERZHREH TS

Joint controller of the joint venture

EEENSENBELENER

3. Information of joint venture and associate

EEEER
b REEMRR
HREENER i EBME HEMmER R BI(%) TELLBI(%)
Proportion of Proportion of
shareholding voting rights
Name of Place of Registered held by the held by the
invested company registration Nature of business capital Company (%) Company (%)
- RELE
1. Joint venture
RRENEKER AR EHEHA BREMEEHE S00EEUT 50 50
TOS Kunming Machine Kunming, Production and sale of 5,000,000 Euros
Tool Manufacturing Yunnan machine tool products
Co., Ltd.
ZoBERx
2. Associate
ARRFRERET A% REKEBEEHE 60008 T 2334 2334
IS
Xi'an Ruite Laser Prototyping Xi‘an city ~ Production and sale of laser RMB60 million
Manufacturing & prototyping machine products
Engineering Research
Co., Ltd.
HREELS MAREEAE ABEXUALE ZHA R A
Total Total
Total assets liabilities at operating
Name of at the end the end of income for Net profits for
BREENER invested company of the period the period the period the period
—RELE
1. Joint venture
EREH#KER-LE  TOS Kunming Machine 147,616,661.00  47,828,928.15  61,573,218.98  12,358,478.14

Tool Manufacturing

Co., Ltd.
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1)

A \)20094F £ F F - 20084
EUAMGE®RREE SRR
ERKRKBERAREEEM S
¥ o Bl AB4,147,776.737C
14,556,221.377C :

A A)20094F £ F F - 20084
EUATHEERRBEE S ER
BEHAHZRARBEEEY
% % 9 5l A£917,809.087T *
50,096,869.897T :

AARELGH#KRELROBR
EEAR(EHE: L#EL DA
AMEEEREEELOAR
EEAR(EHE: EMELOAQ
AR HORKERNRER
HeoARAGLTIAMELROR
AR EME DL O RN A ZD K
EmrRER  BLgEDO
NEREREROQNRNRER
RAFPEMMEAEE - K
% HR FH2008F4 1B 2
20105128310 - g RIKE
K& BRI E 2 H(20084F
6HNE)EBER - FELERSD
A& SLH#E H O R R 4000
7T * 50008 7T }26000& 7T :
E#EE O RF 10008 7T
15008 JT M20008 jT° % %
RERANAETEHRETEHE
BENER  BRAQAREBYE
HORARIBENEINEERLE
RAEIINTE - BIENALE L
EEEANNARAEEEEZ
ZERXRG  UWHER: REBEWE
EEBEENEKRAREATR
—REBKBEPEIL - REE
MR FIEAFRANERMmE
FARAGTELORAE
mAERIZBARARGTEDS
REQR(ARFNBILE =
FO)EBRIIT

4.

Connected Transactions

(1)

Sales of Goods

1)

The Company sold goods at market value amount of
RMB4,147,776.73 and RMB14,556,221.37 to related
party TOS Kunming Machine Tool Manufacturing
Co., Ltd for the six months ended 30th June 2009
and the year of 2008 respectively.

The Company sold goods at market value amount
of RMB917,809.08 and RMB50,096,869.89 to
related party Czech Tos Vansdorf Co., Ltd. for the
six months ended 30th June 2009 and the year of
2008 respectively.

The Company entered into distribution agreements
in respect of certain machine tool products with
Shenyang Machine Tool Import & Export Co., Ltd.
("Shenji EXIM”) and Yunnan Yunji Group Import
& Export Co., Ltd. ("Yunji EXIM") respectively.
Pursuant to the agreements, the Company agreed
to grant the distribution rights of certain machine
tool products to Shenji EXIM and Yunji EXIM,
authorizing Shenji EXIM and Yunji EXIM to distribute
and export certain products of the Company from
1st April 2008 to 31st December 2010, effective
from the date of the passing of the resolution by the
independent shareholders at the EGM held on 12th
June 2008. The annual caps were RMB40,000,000,
RMB50,000,000, and RMB60,000,000 for Shenji EXIM
respectively and RMB10,000,000, RMB15,000,000,
and RMB20,000,000 for Yunji EXIM respectively.
Such transactions were conducted on a regular
and continuing basis in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Company as an effort to
expand overseas market leveraging on the existing
overseas distribution network of the export and
import companies. The Directors of the Company
(including four independent non-executive directors)
reviewed such transactions and considered that the
distribution agreements were entered into on normal
commercial terms and conditions in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Company, negotiated
on an arm’s length basis and at prices and terms
no less favorable than those charged and offered
to other distributors of the Company (independent
third parties).
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AR)20094F EHF 20084
BT IS ER RS 5 L5
HWRELOERETAAHE
EEYW+ 548,341,164 .96
7T~ 15,840,341.887T ©

A \)20094F E 4 - 2008
FELMSERRBES
EHERESEELOABR
252,136.807T * 309,619.66
5T o

NA)2009F EFFUTIHE
BRI A EZMCYEEER
ARWENMIERE TS
$8/521,601.727¢ °

(2) RHERZEREH

1

1993118158 © &N A A
HEREBARY—EE
BEEAREREES TR
BHHE  BELERE
KRR T R EEEBIRHK
BERS  BEHMEBRQF M
AARRHMEERE - BT
EERTS - A MEBEK
AEBNEERY - REZEMR
ErEFEE TakikEk
BB PRz BRI
EHEZEEFE  FEEEN
BERIZE . KRR KRE#E
AR BRE S HEsTER
58 - 2008F AR AMEE
HEIEREEREERR
EERR(ZEMERBEE
KEBRETAR)EHET

The Company sold goods at market value amount
of RMB8,341,164.96 and RMB15,840,341.88 to
related party Shenyang Machine Tool Import &
Export Co., Ltd. for the six months ended 30th June
2009 and the year of 2008 respectively.

The Company sold goods at market value amount
of RMB252,136.80 and RMB309,619.66 to related
party Yunnan Yunji Group Import & Export Co., Ltd.
for the six months ended 30th June 2009 and the
year of 2008 respectively.

The Company received a processing fee and spare
parts amount from the related party Yunnan CY
Group Co., Ltd. of RMB21,601.72 for the six months
ended 30th June 2009 at the prevailing market
price.

(2) Provision and Receipt of Services

1

On 15th November 1993, the Company entered into
an agreement with Kunji Group Company relating to
the provision of certain services to each other after
the reorganization. Pursuant to this agreement, the
Company agreed to provide certain public utility
services available to the Company such as water and
electricity to Kunji Group Company, while Kunji Group
agreed to provide certain services to the Company
including property management, employee’s medical
services, education and administration of retired
staff. Service fee is reviewed by both parties on an
annual basis and is determined by reference first
to the standards set by the relevant government
department for that particular service. If there
are no applicable state standards, the Company
and Kunji Group Company will determine the
service fee at arm’s length negotiation between
the parties. At the 2008 general meeting of the

R

MBEBMERABRKBRGERAT 2009 FHHE




(3)
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AEEREREMETLERE
TREBEREFRAFEEK
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Company the subsidiaries under Yunnan Industrial
Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. (formerly
known as Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation
Company Limited) underwent a restructuring. The
above administrative fee for retired staff was directly
charged by Yunnan Industrial Investment Holding
Group Co., Ltd., whereas the medical services were
undertaken by its subsidiary Kunji Group Company
and the property management was undertaken by
its subsidiary Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation
Company Limited. The above transactions between
Kunji Group Company and the Company for the
six months ended 30th June 2009 and the year of
2008 are as follows:

2009F L ¥ 2008F [
For the six months
RHEHE Transaction ended 30th June 2009 2008
AEFREYEEEGR AP Property management fee
SRMEERE paid to Yunnan State-owned
Assets Operation Company
Limited 148,576.62 739,661.44
mERR#EERR Staff medical service fee paid
BETIRERGE to Kunji Group Company - 75,000.00
MERLEREEREE Administrative fee for retired
BREAARLA staff paid to Yunnan Industrial
BHRIRABERE Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. - 80,236.80
MEFHENEER Staff quarters rentals paid to
EBRARSMETIREATMSE  Yunnan State-owned Assets
Operation Company Limited 100,000.00 -
CEl Total 248,576.62 894,898.24

A AJ20094F EHF, 2008F F
M S RERETEKRKERA
A Z {0 & &360,087.92
7T ~ 430,870.437TC

BER

1

> P A

ot

T

[
el
B
fi 0
by
&
K
i

©

185,199.657T °

3)

The Company paid a consultation fee of
RMB360,087.92 and RMB430,870.43 from the related
party TOS Kunming Machine Tool Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. for the six months ended 30th June 2009
and the year of 2008 respectively.

Purchase of Goods

1)

The Company purchased goods of RMB31,100,400.64
and RMB76,970,413.78 from related party TOS
Kunming Machine Tool Manufacturing Co., Ltd for
the six months ended 30th June 2009 and the year
of 2008 respectively.

The Company purchased goods of RMB185,199.65
from Yunnan CY (Group) Company Jinhui Spraying
Factory during the period.
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4)

Leases

The 16th meeting of the 4th session of the Board held
on 18th April 2004 approved that “The Premise Renta
Agreement” and “The Land Use Rental Agreement”
signed in 2001 between the Company and Kunji Group
Company and would be continued. According to the
resolution passed at 26th meeting of 4th session of
the Board, on 17th August 2005, the Company and
Kunji Group Company entered into the agreements “The
Rent Amendment Agreement of the Premises” and “The
Rent Amendment Agreement of the Land Use Right”,
which stated that Kunji Group Company was authorized
by the Yunnan Government to succeed the rights and
obligations of the “The Premise Rental Agreement” and
“The Land Use Rental Agreement” signed between the
Yunnan Government and the Company on 12th November
2001. The assets mentioned in the above agreements
involved the leaseback of part of the premises and land
use right from the Yunnan Government after the capital
restructuring in 2001. On 12th May 2008, the Company
entered into an agreement with Kunji Group Company,
pursuant to which the Company would demolish the
buildings it leased from Kunji Group Company and
used as casting workshops for reconstruction. In return,
the Company agreed to pay a one-off compensation
of RMB1,949,943.00 to Kunji Group Company. At the
44th meeting of the 5th session of the Board held on
27th August 2008, the chairman of the operations was
authorized to negotiate with Yunnan State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission (Kunji Group
Company) in respect of the above premises and land
rentals.

.
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5. Accounts receivable and

payable from/to related

EEE parties

BBHRERNA AR HAH RIEME

Closing Opening
Related parties Items balance balance Nature
EREHRARBRAA JERTERAR  15,228,374.90  47,691,954.36 LT
TOS Kunming Machine Accounts payable Payment for
Tool Manufacturing Co., Ltd. goods
FEURARI  2,746,741.26  10,017,525.60 LG
Accounts receivable Payment for
goods
H it UK 188,319.65 - &k
Other receivables Current account
EHCYEEERARAKEERES T L FEUCBR TR 9,000.00 9,000.00 LB
Yunnan CY (Group) Company Accounts receivable Payment for
Products Trading Centre goods
EFCYRERRIEEZER FEfT IR X 80,468.65 - i
Yunnan CY (Group) Company Accounts payable Payment for
Jinhui Spraying Factory goods
EHREE HimEA  2,074,914.00  2,074,914.00 THREERS
Kunji Group Other payables Land and
property rentals
P g TR IR K 13,352.97  (6,791,067.73) &
Czech Tos Vansdorf Co.,Ltd. Receipts in advance Payment for
goods
AREBELOBRAIA FEdIRT  6,233,363.00  (3,525,800.00) B
Shenji Group Import and Export Co., Ltd. Accounts receivable Payment for
goods

(t-) BB EA
"

(t2) REHEE
"

(+2) FHEE
"

(TR EERBERARSERE

eeed

(13) Etb EREH

/A

(11) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Nil

(12) CONTINGENCIES

Nil

(13) COMMITMENTS

Nil

(14) POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Nil

(15) OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Nil
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B. REBGHER

B. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH HONG KONG ACCOUNTING

STANDARDS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME
NER - REEZ

in Renminbi)

For the six months ended 30 June 2009 — Unaudited (Expressed

BEAA=tTHILAEA

Six months ended 30 June

—g8hE| —TT\F
2009 2008
RBEZX R EZ
\ Unaudited Unaudited
Hiat AR¥FT ARETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(&)
(Restated)
RFEREER Continuing operations
=T PN Turnover 641,556 789,082
eI Cost of sales (424,853) (521,205)
EF Gross profit 216,703 267,877
Hb Wz Other revenue 5 38,905 46,458
HEEM Distribution costs (33,147) (35,956)
THEH Administrative expenses (97,025) (96,282)
Hi2ER Other operating expenses 6 (284) (3,331)
Feg e Profit from operations 125,152 178,766
7% & A Finance costs 6 (2,542) (1,806)
FEAG B = A a)E 1R Share of losses of an associate (131) (590)
E(hE & AR RE Share of profits of a jointly
controlled entity 6,179 3,849
RETATE B M RE Profit before taxation 6 128,658 180,219
PS5t Income tax 7 (12,274) (25,907)
BEKEEKHBTE Profit from continuing operations 116,384 154,312
IR S Discontinued operation
el “%WEEE Loss from discontinued operation
(BRI (net of income tax) 4 - (868)
TEFHREGSER Profit and total comprehensive income
for the period 116,384 153,444
A ER Attributable to:
—AREIRE - Equity shareholders of the Company 116,107 147,940
— LEARE — Minority interests 277 5,504
116,384 153,444
FREF Earnings per share
—ERGRAF — Basic earnings per share 8 0.273 0.348
—HEEEEBN — Earnings per share from
BERGRRAN continuing operations 0.273 0.350
MNEOBEEFE1I8E ZTEAILTHEIRER  The notes on pages 99 to 118 form part of this interim financial

AR ©

report.

I o
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EHEERER

RZEENFANA=Z+H - REEZ

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At 30 June 2009 - Unaudited (Expressed in Renminbi)

R=-BEBNF | RZZTENF
AA=+H | +TZA=+—H
At At
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
RECER KBz
Unaudited Audited
MtaF AR¥FTT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FRBEE Non-current assets
mE - BER Property, plant and equipment
REHEARTIRE and construction in progress 9 504,698 475,436
ENLHHEESE Lease prepayments 23,771 24,081
BRYMEHRES Prepaid property lease rights 3,224 3,270
mEEE Intangible assets 2,907 3,489
EES Goodwill 5,844 5,844
E’\Hﬁ’ﬁ%’D\TE’U%ﬁT& Interest in an associate 13,737 13,868
A NAIMER Interest in a jointly controlled entity 27,353 30,674
FEEFRIEEE Deferred tax assets 38,542 34,301
,,,,,,, 620,076 | 590,963
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 10 610,924 663,296
JE o BR 3R % e M R A Trade and bills receivable 11 284,835 240,622
E& - HAbEIGRIA Deposits, other receivables
SEEENERN and prepayments 12 81,178 76,521
fEM & & FRIE Amount due from a jointly controlled entity 2,747 10,177
xﬁﬁ%”fi’lfﬁﬁﬁ%\ Restricted bank deposits 13 6,858 5,242
BHehBEEEFEEY Cash and cash equivalents 14 362,284 322,699
,,,,, 1,348,826 | 1,318,557
REBAE Current liabilities
—FRIHRRITER Bank loans — due within one year 15 70,000 70,000
FERT R R R B R 1B Trade and bills payable 16 173,985 165,342
H A A 3K Other payables 437,524 475,067
JE 1~ % Dividend payable 17 39,127 -
JERT& & R al IR Amount due to a jointly controlled entity 15,228 47,692
—FREEHMEREFRIE  Obligations under finance leases
due within one year 213 213
—FRIEHRE Early retirement benefits obligation
T B T %5 B due within one year 3,105 3,551
BIEWA Deferred income 16,000 16,000
B FTiS R 1A Income tax payable 8,570 1,392
B Provisions 13,756 13,804
,,,,,,, 777,508 | 793,061
RBEERE Net current assets | 571,318 | 525,496
BEERRBAERE Total assets less current liabilites | 1,191,394 | 1,116,459

MREIIE F %1185\2?&%%43 HA B 75 R

ERAEKER D

report.

The notes on pages 99 to 118 form part of this

interim financial
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EHEERERE)

RZZBZNFAAA=1TH -REEZ

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

At 30 June 2009 - Unaudited (Expressed in Renminbi)

R=ZENEF RZZEZTNF
AA=+H | +tZA=+—H
At At
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
REEX REZ
Unaudited Audited
Mt et AR¥FT AREFIT
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
FRBES Non current liabilities
BB T SRR Obligations under finance leases 2,494 2,559
WER & T 8 T % Early retirement benefits obligation 14,317 15,449
BN 2 Deferred gain 2,513 2,615
,,,,,,,,, 19,324 | 20,623
FEE NET ASSETS 1,172,070 1,095,836
IR % k4 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
[N Share capital 424,865 424,865
& Reserves 682,302 606,345
KATREREEER Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company 1,107,167 1,031,210
LPEBRRER Minority interests 64,903 64,626
EREE TOTAL EQUITY 1,172,070 1,095,836
MREIOEZEF1I8E 2B AT HIMEHRER  The notes on pages 99 to 118 form part of this interim financial

AEE9
BRCER S ©

report.

R
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BOFREZER

BE_ZTAFNA=ZTHUERNEA-RAREX

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the six months ended 30 June 2009 — Unaudited (Expressed

in Renminbi)
AR RERE AEE
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
k& Ex HE 28
R& ®E OEE DEE BREN it RRER Bt
Statutory
Share  Share Capital surplus Retained Minority Total
capital premium reserve reserve  profits Total interests  equity

NEEFTARETEAREFLARRTEARETEARKFTARRTEARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RMB'000  RMB'000

1200851518
HZ2008F6A30A
LREREREE
BEGEMTLF
AENITEERF

N

S

rHEAR

B

12008568308 &
2008%7R18

EZ2008F12H31A
LREREREE

RETFAT

TETRAER

INEEZ 3

R2008%12A318

R2009%131R

HZ200966A30A
EAERRERD

PRI FRBA

A a R

12009564308

At 1 January 2008
Changes in equity for the six
months ended 30 June 2008:
Disposal and acquisition of subsidiaries
Dividend approved in respect
of the previous year
Total comprehensive income for
the period

At 30 June 2008
and 1 July 2008

Changes in equity for the six
months ended 31 December 2008:
Disposal of a subsidiary
Total comprehensive income for
the period
Appropriations

At 31 December 2008

At 1 January 2009

Changes in equity for the six
months ended 30 June 2009:

Dividend approved in respect
of the previous year

Total comprehensive income for
the period

At 30 June 2009

REIVEEFE118E ZFE AP 3K

MR E D ©

424,865 113,887 10,225 42,939 277,443 869,359 73,991 943,350
- - - - - - (1,605  (1,605)
- - - - (114,714) (114,714) (11,000) (125,714)
- - - - 147,940 147,940 5504 153,444
424,805 113,887 10,225 42,939 310,669 902,585 66,890 969,475
- - - - - - (1,315 (1,315)
- - - - 128,625 128,625 (949) 127,676
- - - 26,696 (26,696) - - -
424,865 113,887 10,225 69,635 412,598 1,031,210 64,626 1,095,836
424865 113,887 10,225 69,635 412,598 1,031,210 64,626 1,095,836
- - - - (40,150) (40,150) - (40,150)
- - - - 116,107 116,107 277 116,384
424,805 113,887 10,225 69,635 488,555 1,107,167 64,903 1,172,070

The notes on pages
report.

99 to 118 form part of this interim financial
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HHSHREESRER

HE_ZZNFAAAZTHILEANERA - REEZ

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

in Renminbi)

For the six months ended 30 June 2009 - Unaudited (Expressed

BEANA=tHIEAEA

Six months ended 30 June

—®BAE| -TT %
2009 2008
RICERX REEEZ
Unaudited Unaudited
K et AREFT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(FEih)
(Restated)
REEBEENES Cash generated from operations 75,423 100,188
2 ES Tax paid (9,337) (36,776)
RETHFREBNREFHE Net cash generated from
operating activities 66,086 63,412
REZBFANREFE Net cash used in investing activities (23,256) (42,751)
RMETEE (FFA) Net cash (used in)/generated from
FIBMELEEHE financing activities (2,542) 11,064
RIERECEBAN Net cash used in discontinued
BEFERE operation 4 - (579)
RERBLEEYIEMFELE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 40,288 31,146
REeRBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents
R—A—B#&e at 1 January 322,699 363,306
HNEERESBHNTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (703) (1,174)
ReERBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents
RAA=+B#&&R at 30 June 14 362,284 393,278

REIVEEFNBEZAE /LT HAM KR

HHVERE 7

o

report.

The notes on pages 99 to 118 form part of this interim financial
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NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL
REPORT
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

This interim financial report has been prepared in accordance
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, including compliance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKAS") 34 “Interim financial reporting”, issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™). It was authorised for issue on 12 August 2009.

The interim financial report has been prepared in accordance
with the same accounting policies adopted in the 2008 annual
financial statements of Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool
Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”), except for the accounting policy
changes that are expected to be reflected in the 2009 annual
financial statements. Details of these changes in accounting
policies are set out in note 2.

The preparation of an interim financial report in conformity
with HKAS 34 requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income
and expenses on a year to date basis. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

In preparing this interim financial report, the significant
judgements made by management in applying the Group’s
accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty
were the same as those that applied to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008.

This interim financial report contains condensed consolidated
financial statements and selected explanatory notes. The notes
include an explanation of events and transactions that are
significant to an understanding of the changes in financial
position and performance of the Group since the 2008 annual
financial statements. The condensed consolidated financial
statements and notes thereon do not include all of the
information required for full set of financial statements prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”). The interim financial report is unaudited.

The financial information relating to the financial year ended 31
December 2008 that is included in the interim financial report
as being previously reported information does not constitute
the Company’s statutory financial statements for that financial
year but is derived from those financial statements. Statutory
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 are
available from the Company’s registered office. The auditors
have expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial
statements in their report dated 22 April 2009.
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2. HAREEITEEMBHREER
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSS

The HKICPA has issued one new HKFRS, a number of amendments
to HKFRSs and new interpretations that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the group and the company.
Of these, the following developments are relevant to the
Group's financial statements:

HKFRS 8, Operating segments

HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial
statements
Improvement to HKFRSs (2008)

Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate
financial statements — cost of an investment in a subsidiary,

Jointly controlled entity or associate

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures-
improving disclosure about financial instruments

HKAS 23 (revised 2007), Borrowing cost

The impact of these developments on the interim financial
report is as follows:

HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based on
the way that the group’s chief operating decision maker
regard and manages the group, with the amounts reported
for each reportable segment being the measures reported
to the group’s chief operating decision maker for the
purpose of assessing segment performance and making
decisions about operating matters. The presentation of
segment information in prior years which was based on
a disaggregation of the Group’s financial statements into
segments based on the related business lines is consistent
with the adoption of HKFRS 8 as the Group manages
its business by business line all through. Comparative
segment information has been represented in conformity
with the transitional requirement of HKFRS 8. The adoption
of HKFRS 8 did not result in substantive changes, other
than changes to the format.

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised 2007),
details of changes in equity during the period arising
from transaction with equity shareholders in their capacity
as such have been presented separately from all other
income and expense in a revised consolidated statement
of changes in equity. All other items of income and
expense are presented in the consolidated financial
income statement, if they are recognised as part of profit
or loss for the period, or otherwise in a new primary
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. The new format for the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income and the consolidated statement
of change in equity has been adopted in this interim
financial report and corresponding amounts have been
restated to conform to the new presentation. This change
in presentation has no effect on reported profit or loss,
total income and expense or net assets for any period
presented.
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The “improvement to HKFRSs (2008)"” comprises a number
of minor and non-urgent amendments to a range of
HKFRSs which the HKICPA has issued as an omnibus batch
of amendments. Of these, the amendment to HKAS 28
has resulted in changes to the Group’s accounting policies.
As a result of amendments to HKAS 28, Investment in
associates, impairment losses recognised in respect of the
associates and jointly controlled entities carried under
the equity method are no longer allocated to goodwill
inherent in that carrying value. As a result, when there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount, the impairment
loss will be reversed. Previously, the Group allocated
impairment losses to goodwill and, in accordance with
the accounting policy for goodwill, did not consider the
loss be reversible. In accordance with the transitional
provisions in the amendment, this new policy will be
applied prospectively to any impairment losses that arise
in the current or future periods and pervious periods have
not been restated.

The amendments to HKAS 27 have removed the
requirement that dividend out of pre-acquisition profits
should be recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount
of the investment in the investee, rather than as income.
As a result, as from 1 January 2009 all dividends receivable
from subsidiaries, associate and jointly controlled entities,
whether out of pre or post-acquisition profits, will be
recognised in the Company's profit or loss and the
carrying amount of the investment in the investee will
not be reduced unless that carrying amount is assessed
to be impaired as a result of the investee declaring the
dividend. In such cases, in addition to recognising dividend
income in profit or loss, the company would recognise
an impairment loss. In accordance with the transitional
provisions in the amendment, this new policy will be
applied prospectively to any dividends receivable in the
current or future period and pervious periods have not
been restated.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are aimed at providing
more useful information about fair value measurement of
financial instruments and liquidity risk. The amendments
require entities to analyse the fair value measurement
of financial instruments using a three-level fair value
hierarchy that categorises the fair value based on the
extent to which the valuation uses observable market
data. The liquidity risk amendments focus primarily on
improving the disclosure in respect of derivative liabilities,
whereby under the amendments contractual maturities
for such instruments would only be disclosed if that
information is essential for an understanding of the
timing of the cash flow. The amendments to HKFRS 7
do not contain any additional disclosure requirements
specifically applicable to the interim financial report.
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o HKAS 23 (revised 2007), Borrowing cost, eliminates the
option in HKAS 23(2004 version) of the recognising all
borrowing costs immediately as an expense. Consequently
entities are required to adopt a policy of capitalising
borrowing costs which are directly attribute to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset as part of the cost of that asset. These amendments
have had no material impact on the Group’s interim
financial report as the amendments were consistent with
policies already adopted by the Group.

The adoption of the above new and revised HKFRSs did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance for
the current or prior accounting periods. Accordingly, no prior
period adjustment has been required.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by business line all through.
As a result of adoption of HKFRS 8, Operating Segments
and in manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the group has identified the following
four reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

(i)  the design, manufacture and sale of boring machines;

(i)  the design, manufacture and sale of sensors and turbo
tables, and computerised embroidery machines;

(iii) the design, manufacture and sale of turbo machines; and

(iv) the design, manufacture and sale of intelligent electrical
appliances (discontinued during 2008).

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

In accordance with HKFRS 8, segment information disclosed
in the interim financial report has been prepared in a
manner consistent with information used by the group’s
most senior executive management for the purpose of
assessing segment performance and allocating resource
between segments. In this regard, the group’s senior
execute management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:
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Segment assets included all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of interest in an
associate, interest in a jointly controlled entity, deferred
tax assets and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include provision for warranties, trade creditors, accruals
and bills payable attributable to manufacturing and sales
activities of the individual segments and bank borrowings
managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expense are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and expense incurred by those segments or which
otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA"” i.e. "adjusted earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation”, where
“interest” is regarded as including investment income
and “depreciation” and “amortisation” is regarded
as including impairment losses on non-current assets.
To arrive at adjusted EBITDA the Group’'s earnings are
further adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as share of profit less losses
of associates and jointly controlled entity, directors’ and
auditors’ remuneration and other head office or corporate
administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
sale), interest income and expense from cash balances
and borrowings managed directly by the segments,
depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses and
additions to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operation. Inter-segment sales are priced
with reference to prices charged to external parties for
similar orders.
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Information regarding the Group's reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most executive management

Bt BRI & DI EE for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
DEMEEWMT ¢ segment performance for the period is set out below:
EEgz A KREEAS EHER
B BRRERATE BOEGH it (BRLEE) ait
Sensor and Intelligent
turbo tables Total electrical
Boring and computerised Turbo (Continuing appliances
machines embroidery machines machines operanon) (Discontinued) Total
ZBEAE | CRRNE | CBEBAE S\F | Z8BAE | ZBRNE | Z3EAE RENE | ZBRAE | ZRRNE | CBEAE I
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
AEBE | AEER | AEBM | AEER | AEEM | AEEW | AEER | AFER | AEER | REER | AEER | AEER
Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited | Unaudited Unaudned Unaudited Unaud\ted Unaudited |  Unaudited
ARBFL | ARHTT | ARBFE | ABHTE | ARBFE | ARETE | AGRFE | A ABRTE ARBFL | ARFTR
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
Revenue from external customers 554,921 664,294 4m 5,857 81912 118,931 041,556 789,082 - 1,616 641,556 791,698
Inter-segment revenue 2,980 9,843 - - - - 2,980 9,843 - - 2,980 9,843
0N Reportable segment revenue 557,907 674,131 4 5857 81,912 118931 644,536 798,925 - 2616 644,536 801,541
ARsE Reportable segment profit 90,311 123,639 (3,259) 59 1510 10,283 88,562 134516 - (853) 88,562 133,663
i Impairment of
-2 BEREE - plant and machinery - (1578) (13) - - - )| 5 - - 1m0
APEE Reportable segment assets 1,547,603 | 1,550,446 117 13,018 363,821 341829 | 1,918,603 | 1905293 - - | 1918603 | 1905293
Addition to non-current segment
assets during the period 46,535 32,706 - 1 1,482 1543 48,017 34,260 - 9 48,017 34,289
AB8E Reportable segment liabilities 562,154 649,816 20,309 0,744 253,013 232,158 835,536 904,718 - - 835,536 | 904,718
(b) i/E S BUWA ~ R B E (b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues,
= ﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁ’gaﬁﬁ" profit or loss, assets and liabilities
BEARA=+HLXEA
Six months ended 30 June
—EZhF —EENF
2009 2008
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
WA Revenues
wEDEBRIRUA Total revenues for reportable segments 644,536 801,541
7 2R E UL A B K H Elimination of inter-segment revenue (2,980) (9,843)
641,556 791,698
B R E TR Less: Discontinued operation - (2,616)
A Consolidated revenue 641,556 789,082
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HEASA=1tHILAEA
Six months ended 30 June

—EEREF —ZEENF
2009 2008
AR¥ETFT ARKTF T
RMB’'000 RMB’000
FI5E Profit
7 Eb4E A Total profit for reportable segments 88,562 133,663
HEEFREANEE Elimination of inter-segment loss = 3,830
FRRINEBE P #Y Reportable segment profit derived from
7 S F group’s external customer 88,562 137,493
EIEEE Share of profits of a jointly
NIV controlled entity 6,179 3,849
JE(GHE N A E1E Share of losses of an associate (131) (590)
HibUg s Foug A 558 Other revenue 38,843 44,959
%5 E A Finance costs (2,542) (1,806)
JERBBEREIERX Impairment losses on non-current assets (123) (1,578)
PR :0ECVNG) Unallocated head office and
HMERSE corporate expense (2,130) (2,976)
128,658 179,351
R R EE TS Less: Discontinued operation - 868
S P B RIS Consolidated profit before taxation 128,658 180,219
R=EZBZEAF | RZZEZTNF
ARA=Z+H |[tZH=+—H
At At
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
AR FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets
7 Eb AR B Total assets for reportable segments 1,918,603 1,905,293
53 50 [ e Uk SR T MY 3 H Elimination of inter-segment receivable (47,274) (92,426)
E"Eﬁﬁ%’&jﬁ’ﬂ%m Interest in an associates 13,737 13,868
=R /NET L= p s Interest in a jointly controlled entity 27,353 30,674
ﬁﬁﬁ%lﬁé}% Deferred tax assets 38,542 34,301
ROBEHAE QT Unallocated head office and
Hu&EE corporate assets 17,941 17,810
mEE Consolidated total assets 1,968,902 1,909,520
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R-BE2ENF RZEENF
REEFE |T=ZE=F—E
At At
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
AR¥TFx AREFr
RMB’000 RMB’000

afE Liabilities
DEBREE Total liabilities for reportable segments 835,536 904,718
73 28 6 FE A FRIB RV L8 Elimination of inter-segment payable (47,274) (92,426)
FERFTISH Current tax liabilities 8,570 1,392
EftatE Consolidated total liabilities 796,832 813,684

RIERE Z¥K 4. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

M2008F12A  AEE#H —XKRFA
A—ALRABREEERFRAA
(TBJR]) 78.03% Mk EEHRAL
RBAEBRBEEAERIEAR - BIRER
RAEEEEERDB(AAREI) &
D EA2008F 12 A31B & D AR IFE
BER ZEBENFEAAEEFEE
BT AR¥6,055,0000T 0 HREAE
RGN A R S,546,9007T °

HEaHMBERER TR EEBETT
Bt o s - TITRAR IERE X
PRSEIRERENET T EM

In December 2008, the Group disposed of its 78.03% equity
interest of a subsidiary — Xi'an Jiaotong University Siyuan
Intelligent Electric Apparatus Company Limited (“Siyuan”)
to Xi'an Jiaotong University Science and Technology Park
Company Limited. Siyuan represented the Group’s entire
intelligent electrical appliances segment (see note 3) and was
considered a discontinued operation as at 31 December 2008.
The effect of the transfer was a decrease in the net assets of
the Group of RMB6,055,000, excluding cash consideration of
RMB8,546,900.

The comparative consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated cash flow information is re-presented
for discontinued operations.
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HE-TZN\FAA=1TH BBRKRL Losses attributable to the discontinued operation for the six
REEBHERBROT months ended 30 June 2008 were as follows:

BEAB=1tHILAEA
—EENE

Six months ended

30 June 2008

RSB
Unaudited
AREFT
RMB’000
RIMREEBRNEE Results of discontinued operation
WA Revenue 2,616
=3 Expenses (3,484)
S Results from operations (868)
P Income tax -
Z<HEA R E Loss for the period (868)
AR : Attributable to:
ZAN/NS )3 Equity shareholders of the Company (677)
DERE Minority interests (191)
(868)
EXGREAEF Basic loss per share 0.002
RIEREERFTANREFE Cash flows used in discontinued operation
LEEEPTAMIR & )F 5 Net cash used in operating activities (2,385)
WEEEAEHIREIFEE Net cash from investing activities 1,806
BIHEEETFFTAIR & 358 Net cash used in discontinued operation (579)
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The effect of the disposal on the financial position of Group
as at 31 December 2008 is as follows:

R-ZEZNEF

TF=EEP=E

At 31 December

2008

BEX

Audited

ARMTF T

RMB’000

Mz - WEREE Property, plant and equipment (1,454)
EETRE Construction in progress (1,751)
BRYMEHRES Prepaid property lease rights (57,632)
FE Inventories (2,631)
FEULER TR N B I R 4R Trade and bills receivable (2,249)
Ed - HAth e YR R TER R Deposits, other receivables and prepayments (3,530)
ReRReEEY Cash and cash equivalents (203)
FET SRIE R ER R 1B Trade and bills payable 4,844
H th FE AT 3R Other payables 49,881
RHEIE TR Long-term payables 7,200
AERNFEERAE Net identifiable assets and liabilities (7,525)
LER R ER Minority interests 1,470
HAEBFEENTE Effect on net assets of the Group (6,055)

H 1 2 5. OTHER REVENUE
BEXA=+THLAEA
Six months ended 30 June
—EBhEF ZEENFE
2009 2008
RGEZX REEEZ
Unaudited Unaudited
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HERE Continuing operations
H|ITHIF B WA Interest income from bank deposits 839 1,408
BRISHEL (2ZHE0)) Government grants (i) 17,738 27,186
B T B AD Sales of prototype machines
R RHIE A and raw materials 19,815 14,106
HAth Others 513 3,758
38,905 46,458
Hiat - Notes:
(i) T 8 Bh#8 P B 3 5 BR AT 45 B2 K &2 [ (i) Government grants represent various forms of incentives and

BB TETE S RO R B R EE -

subsidies given to the Group by the local PRC government.
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(i)

(i)

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

HiEH (i) Other operating expenses
BEAA=+tHLAXEA
Six months ended 30 June
“®BAE| -—TT %
2009 2008
RCER REEZ
Unaudited Unaudited
AREFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BERE Continuing operations
HEME - BER Loss on disposal of property, plant
BEEEIEE=ES and equipment 62 1,249
Y BENBRERERE  Impairment loss of property, plant
and equipment 123 1,578
EERFE Other net expenses 99 504
284 3,331
BRILELE Discontinued operation
HtmBRFHE Other net expenses - 15
B EH (ii) Finance costs
BEANA=+HLXEA
Six months ended 30 June
“®BAE | -—TTN4
2009 2008
RCER ReEZ
Unaudited Unaudited
AREFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BERE Continuing operations
RITERFH A Interest on bank loans 2,233 3,884
B BERAE e Less: borrowing costs capitalised* - (2,624)
2,233 1,260
BEEEAENMEER Finance charges on obligations
under finance leases 64 64
PR AT 8 A B % B Finance charges in respect of early
M B E R retirement benefits obligation 245 482
2,542 1,806
BE_FEENFNA=1THINE * The borrowing costs have been capitalised at an annual
A RITEAXERNEFFEE57% ° rate of interest of 6.57% for the period ended 30 June

2008.
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(iii) HfEE

(iii) Other items

BEAA=tHILAEA

Six months ended 30 June

—EENE ZTTENF
2009 2008
RESEX R EZ
Unaudited Unaudited
AR¥TFr ARETT
RMB'000 RMB’000
HERE Continuing operations
T&&HMEFR Salary and staff related costs 95,492 93,807
Yz - BEREENE Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 17,879 16,451
RIRE HEEK Early-retirement benefits obligation = 12
B Warranty expenses 6,811 8,054
HEEH Research and development costs 33,951 39,030
B A EE Amortisation of intangible assets 582 989
AN T E B Amortisation of lease prepayments 310 302
BEEE Impairment losses
— JRE YR TR B L Ath JIE U R — trade and other receivables 15,715 17,357
— W - BB NEE — property, plant and equipment 123 1,578
FEMEREE SN Amortisation of prepaid property
lease rights 46 46
ERILRE Discontinued operation
IT&ERHEAMER] Salary and staff related costs - 819
ME - BERRBETE Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment - 285

7. ®iE 7. INCOME TAX
BEAB=1+HIAEA
Six months ended 30 June

—EENEF —EENEFE
2009 2008
RIBERZ REEEZ
Unaudited Unaudited
AR¥FT AR FT
RMB’000 RMB’000

HERE Continuing operations
REEHIE Current tax — PRC 16,515 30,789
EEFIR Deferred taxation (4,241) (4,882)
12,274 25,907

WERBEF - B KRB EF SR
STIREHE - ARRIRADRANAENTF
NBMHMEEBRIS%E25%H F &
Fr8Fi % R (20084F : 15%%25%) °

to 25%).

No provision has been made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as
the Group did not have assessable profits subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax during the period. Profits of the Company
and the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to PRC
income taxes at rates ranging from 15% to 25% (2008: 15%
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BREF
(a) EXBRER

H E2009F6 A308 (618 A M= M &
ABFEREARR L RBBESE
A FEAE & F) B A R #116,107,0007T
(20084 : AR #147,940,0007T) M &
Z£2009F6 H308 IF6A A AR AE
B 17 A% N £ 19 81424,865,000 %
(20084F : 424,865,0000% )5t & -

(b) HESRER

HZE2009F6A308 Ik * AR FINTE
EEEWERGD  ALESRBER
FERIHE(20084F « ) -

(a) EMEEE

7200946 A30H k6@ AR - K&
BV BELESHLZE(RIEHRT
ETIREEA)ABARM20,189,0007T
(20084 [A HA : A R #35,309,000
JL ) ° B, £2009%F6H30R 161 A
W ERENYME - BEREHER
HFEAS*AEARM26250005T
(20084 A H#3: A R 1,255,000
L) EHE BB AR ®62,0005T
(20084 A Hi : A K %1,249,000
JL) °

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax
Law of the PRC (“new tax law") which takes effect on 1 January
2008. As a result of the new tax law, the statutory income
tax rate currently adopted by the Group, except that for the
Company and certain of its subsidiaries which are entitled to
preferential tax policies mentioned below, changed to 25%
from 1 January 2008.

Based on Notice [2007] No.183 dated 25 December 2007
issued by the Kunming State Tax Bureau, the Company is
entitled to a corporate income tax rate of 15% commencing
from 2004 under the Preferential Tax Policies for the Extensive
Development of the Western Regions because the proportion
of the Company'’s sales of digital machine tools exceed 70%
of its total revenue. This preferential tax policy is subject to
annual assessment and renewal, and the policy will officially
expire in 2011.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
certain subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to a state
income tax rate of 15% under the preferential tax policies for
Advanced and New Technology Enterprises.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the six
months ended 30 June 2009 is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB116,107,000 (2008: RMB147,940,000)
and the weighted average number of 424,865,000 ordinary
shares (2008: 424,865,000) of the Company outstanding
during the six months ended 30 June 2009.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share information has been
presented because the Company does not have any
potential dilutive shares in issue during the period ended
30 June 2009 (2008: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

(@) Acquisitions and disposals

During the six months ended 30 June 2009, the addition
of property, plant and equipment (including transfer
from construction in progress) of the Group amounted
to RMB20,189,000 (six months ended 30 June 2008:
RMB35,309,000). Items of property, plant and equipment
with net book value totalling RMB2,625,000 were disposed
of during the six months ended 30 June 2009 (six months
ended 30 June 2008: RMB1,255,000), resulting in a loss
on disposal of RMB62,000 (six months ended 30 June
2008: loss of RMB1,249,000).
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(b) REERX

M2009F6 8308 IE6fE AR A&
EREAEKSES —HoBEE -
PREMKBIZBRIIR T REERBA
R #123,0007C(2008% @ A R #
1,578,000t ) (B A Em & A |
A) e REBEFHEEN KE S
EHFEERFHEEMETNRS
oo ERMEEAEER - EEARKRR
ERECHINRMERMSHER
BB & & E T R /9 51 M B A
BRIRR - BRIRZEHIRME -

(b) Impairment losses

During the six months ended 30 June 2009, a number of
machines were physically damaged. The Group assessed
the recoverable amounts of those machines and as a
result the carrying amount of the machines was written
down by RMB123,000 (2008:RMB1,578,000) (included in
“Other operating expenses”). The estimate recoverable
amount is the greater of net selling price and value in
use, discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.

10. & 10. INVENTORIES
RZBEIE | RZZEZTNF
ANA=+H8 |t—A=+—H
At At
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
RBER KEAZ
Unaudited Audited
AREFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R A1 Raw materials 143,210 115,216
& Work in progress 268,793 393,762
SURK M Finished goods 198,921 154,318
610,924 663,296

7R2009F6 A30H L6 AR - AR
1,317,00070(20084F : #&)MF ERE
EHERZBOERERNPEALEM T
LA EH o

1. BEREREREEREZRE 11.

FERKE SRR RER(EMHRRE
OB EEE) BRI N —FRYE -

During six months ended 30 June 2009, there was reversal of
a write-down of inventories of RMB1,317,000 (2008: Nil) to

estimated net realisable value.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

All of the trade and bills receivable (net of impairment losses
for bad and doubtful debts) are expected to be recovered

within one year.
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12.

JFE M B SR % B M SR 4 (2 0B SRS R R (A

An ageing analysis of trade and bills receivable (net of

BRERESITAT ¢ impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts) is as follows:

R-BBAE | RZZEZTNF

ANA=+H |+ =—A=+—8H

At At

30 June 31 December

2009 2008

RIBEZ K%

Unaudited Audited

AR¥TFix ARETF T

RMB'000 RMB’000

Z 1k Current 256,481 | 223,677

# R DR 1E A Less than 1 month past due 13,754 10,701

BE1 E31E A 1 to 3 months past due 4,263 3,126
wHI3E 1218 A More than 3 months but

less than 12 months past due 8,431 1,147

AHEI12ME AN Past due over 12 months 1,906 1,971

BHREE Amounts past due 28354, 16,945

284,835 240,622

FEM R K R R IE TR R A X — F A
B - —KRME - BRTERSIH  FEEK
FIGENREBBAEELE BN < &
HER - BOBEARERS RN REH
MEPAZEREIER —E==E AN
EEH - EAREFRLEAA-FRK

g o

Trade and bills receivable are expected to be recovered within
one year. In general, debts other than amounts relating to
quality guarantee deposits are due for payment upon billing.
Subject to negotiation, credit terms within a range of one to
three months are available for certain customers with well-
established trading and payment records on a case-by-case
basis. The quality deposits are due for payment upon one year
from date of installation.

EE - Hit EWHRERENRE 12. DEPOSITS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS

R-BZEAF RZZEEN\F

ANA=+H |+t=ZA=+—H

At At

30 June 31 December

2009 2008

RCEZ 1Az

Unaudited Audited

AR¥EFT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

TERT AR K Advances to suppliers 58,495 36,849
HGE - TREER Deposits for bidding, construction work

HERBEEHANTER and equipment purchase 3,574 14,663

JRE s Bk T 5k 1E Staff advances 4,715 4,619

Al RIEF G Taxes recoverable 1,831 9,399

HAith Others 12,563 10,991

81,178 76,521
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13 ZRFIBRITER 13. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS
REERARNFFANIRERITERR The amount represents restricted bank deposits for performance
=& A LAE B ER A AR AR 75 & FNER1T A guarantees and bills payable with maturity of more than three
[EEREFR o months.

14. BERREZEY 14. CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND

R-ZBZEAF | RZZEZNF

ANA=+H |tZA=+—H

At At

30 June 31 December

2009 2008

REEX BEZ

Unaudited Audited

AREFT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

& RIEEER Cash at bank and in hand 362,284 322,699
15. RITEXK 15. BANK LOANS

RIZBZBAE | RZZZTNF

ANA=+H |+tZA=+—H

At At

30 June 31 December

2009 2008

RBEX LEZ

Unaudited Audited

AR¥EFT AREFIT

RMB’'000 RMB’000

—FLRR B IRITER Bank loans — due within 1 year 70,000 70,000

R2009F6H30H r B TR LM EK -
REEBMNEEEZEYAERR  HE5K
HEE A R25,603,0007T(R2008412
H318H : AR#15,499,00000) - REZE

200946 A308 IE61E A @ $RITE R

B & )

K /35.02%%5.31% (2008 R : 6.57%

E7.47%) °

16. BNRARENRE

16.

At 30 June 2009, the bank loans of the Group were secured by
mortgages over land and buildings with an aggregate carrying
value of RMB25,603,000 (2008: RMB15,499,000). The annual
rate of interest charged on the bank loans ranged from 5.02%
t0 5.31% for the six months ended 30 June 2009 (six months
ended 30 June 2008: 6.57% to 7.47%).

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLE

RZBEAE | RZEZNF

ANA=Z+H |[+t—A=+—H

At At

30 June 31 December

2009 2008

RBEX LRI

Unaudited Audited

ARBFr ARETF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

FETBR X Trade payables 154,191 151,116
AN Bills payable 19,794 14,226
173,985 165,342
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17.

REEENERRREN B RE D0
F :

An ageing analysis of trade

is as follows:

and bills payable of the Group

R-ZBEBEAFE | RZZEZNF

ANA=1+H |[+=ZA=+—H

At At

30 June 31 December

2009 2008

KRIBEX KEZ

Unaudited Audited

ARBFT ARBEFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

1AARB AR EREFEE Due within 1 month or on demand 34,726 45,032
1MEAZE3[EA Due after 1 month but within 3 months 74,043 78,077
31E A =61E A Due after 3 months but within 6 months 65,216 42,233
173,985 165,342

FrBEREMERRENRERE/N —F
NEE -

[ g=\

1R #2009F6 H19H & 17 0 ik 3 B8
FREg 2 E - B E2008F12AH31
HIEFFEMBHRBREASBRARKE
0.09437T * & & A R #40,150,0007T
2 & #t £E(2008%6830H 1 AR ¥
114,714,0007T) °

(a) REEEEXRBAMENEIK
R AN B IR R #Y2A H RR F
mE

BEEORFETREEZ2009%F6
A308 - FE /M H ik 8 (2008
F6H30H : &) o

17.

All of the trade and bills payable are expected to be settled

within one year.

DIVIDENDS

Pursuant to the shareholders’ approval at the Annual General
Meeting held on 19 June 2009, a final dividend of RMB0.0943
per share amounting to RMB40,150,000 in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2008 was approved (six months ended
30 June 2008: RMB114,714,000).

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

Company attributable to the period

The Directors of the Company did not recommend the
payment of an interim dividend for the six months ended
30 June 2009 (six months ended 30 June 2008: Nil).
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(b) AAHAMELRKETFAQXARR

18.

M AT ERAMT

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,

approved and unpaid during the period

BEAA=tHILAEA

Six months ended 30 June

—EENE T N\F
2009 2008
RICER R EZ
Unaudited Unaudited
AR¥TFr AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’'000
A ERHE I B B A Final dividend in respect of the
BT ERRE previous financial year, approved
iR AR®0.09437T during the following interim
(200846 A301 : period of RMB0.0943 per share
FIRARE0.277T) (six months ended 30 June 2008:
RMBO0.27 per share) 40,150 114,714

BIEFREEBEER ARAZFRARE
40,150,000 3 & IR M W R R B AT 15
AR #1,023,0005T » I #% 72200947
A308 ZF 30k il FriS BB AR FIIA R &
39,127,0007T °

Of the dividend of RMB40,150,000, RMB1,023,000
had been withheld by the Company for payment
of withholding tax on dividend, and the remainder
of RMB39,127,000 had been paid to the equity
shareholder of the Company on 30 July 2009.

R-ZBEAREANA=TBHXRRPEHH 18. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS OUTSTANDING NOT
BmERENEREE PROVIDED FOR IN THE INTERIM FINANCIAL
REPORT

R-ZEZENF R-ZTEENF

ANA=+H |[+tZA=+—H

At At

30 June 31 December

2009 2008

REBEZ AL

Unaudited Audited

AR¥TFT ARBFT

RMB’'000 RMB’000

SES) Contracted for 121,424 84,779
ERERRITAN Authorised but not contracted for 69,811 49,104
191,235 133,883
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19. EXBEEIRS

(a)

(b)

HEETNRS

19. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Transactions with related parties

BEAA=1THILAKEAR
Six months ended 30 June

—EEBhEF —ZETNF
2009 2008
RICERZ REEZ
Name of party Nature of transactions Unaudited Unaudited
BELER REME AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
Jointly controlled entity
/\,L,/'\FU
TOS Kunming Machine Sales () 4,508 6,309
Tool Company HE
Limited (“TOS") Consultancy fees 360 697
ERBHEKAR AR BB
( &8 ) Purchases (ii) 51,337 6,966
g
g Notes:
(i) WXSDHEERMEGKESARE (i)  These mainly represent the sale of materials to TOS for

B o production purposes.
(i WXHDHEHBEREELRE (i)~ These mainly represent the sale of machine tools by TOS
H o to the Group.
EHBEEL NGRS (b) Balances with related parties
R-ZEZENF R-ZZEZNF
ANAB=+H |+t=ZA=+—H
At At
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
RBCERK L'z
Name of party Nature of transactions Unaudited Audited
BEFEE XEME AR¥T T ARMFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TOS Balance due from/(to)
EHT — trade payables (i) (15,228) (47,692)
—EREERFE SNIE
— trade receivables (i) 2,747 10,177
—EEENRIESHFIE
(12,481) (37,515)
TR Notes

() BB HBHBEEKLESRA
SETRNEZENK

(i) UHRBHIHERMBGLBEHA
REETZRH) S 5 FE WK

(i)  These mainly represent the sale of machine tools by TOS to
the Group.

(i)  These mainly represent the sale of materials to TOS for
production purposes.
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() RHABNEMBEEEEXNRS

ARBR—KEBELE  YHE—
B E KA ESERFHE -
RIE BEARNMEMEBEBER
FHEEEFNNEER(RERE])
PAIXECE AR ERE D N ETTEE -
HEMBBELENRZEEET
R -

- BE LERHEEVERREE
wEE &

- REREAAIBRSRHEAD
AR%5 ©

BURG IR AEENRAEER
BRERPAEUABRREFEALE
ETRZDIROIETET - A%
BIRE M EEE MK RS SR
EBEBRRLREHLEN - ZFEE
BRMEBEHBEAL TBURRE P
EEBRBLE - ERIZFHE
MIEE  ARFEEFRRELR
2 8T B L FE A B B
X5 e

20. HEERE

2008F  AKEBEHMRXFRAAAL
ERERN)SERTHNTERERKE
RRPEF BEFEXERETEAR
#2,900,0007T I BE E 18 k A R ¥
700,0007T © AFREAR - AR IELH — 8]
Hiok o IBIE—FHRER  ALERN
ENVERARBSUEERFIBRA
R #581,0007T ° M TR R —FHIR
R LR BERY GRS IR
H A REBRLAEERRAT  SEE
B8 B AR o

AEEEEEBRASBENTHEERNAE
BEAHFHBREAME TEA - Bt
RAE B 75 R o e SR A e SR R A A R
MK

21. LFEHBEF

REBFBGAEYNFEVR—MBHRET
RQO007MEF] ) BB M HmE LR E
8 —RRENE - AT EMBAENL
B AR R IR R 2008 E K
REBERETTEF VR HREE
20

(c) Transactions with other state-owned entities in the
PRC

The Group operates in an economic regime currently
dominated by entities directly or indirectly controlled by
the PRC government through its government authorities,
agencies, affiliations and other organisations (”state-
owned entities”). Transactions with other state-owned
entities include but are not limited to the following:

- purchase, sale and leases of property and other
assets; and

- rendering and receiving of utilities and other
services.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business on terms similar to those that would
have been entered into with non-state-owned entities.
The Group has also established its pricing strategy and
approval processes for major products and services. Such
pricing strategy and approval processes do not depend on
whether the customers are state-owned entities or not.
Having due regard to the substance of the relationship,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
none of these transactions are related party transactions
that require separate disclosure.

20. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

21.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, Xi'an Ser and
Changsha Ser were sued by a customer for late delivery
of goods. The customer sought for the refund of deposits
paid of RMB2,900,000 and compensation of RMB700,000.
During the six months ended 30 June 2009, the PRC Court
has made judgements for the first instance. According to the
judgement made by the PRC Court, Xi‘an Ser and Changsha
Ser should refund the deposits and compensate the customer
RMB581,000. Xi’an Ser and Changsha Ser had lodged an appeal
against the first instance judgement. Up to the date of issue of
this interim financial report, the two subsidiaries are awaiting
the handing down of final judgement by the PRC Court.

The directors consider the amounts concerned are not material
to the Group's interim financial report. As such, no provision
has been made in the interim financial report for any losses
which the two subsidiaries may incur in respect of such legal
action.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the application of HKAS 1 (revised 2007),
Presentation of financial statements, and HKFRS 8, Operating
segments, certain comparative figures have been adjusted
to conform to current period’s presentation and to provide
comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed for the
first time in 2009. Further details of these developments are
disclosed in note 2.
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VII.DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

1. Original copies of all documents and the announcements
as disclosed in newspapers as designated by the CSRC
during the Reporting Period;

2. Original copies of the announcements and all documents
disclosed in the newspapers designated by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission during the reporting
period;

3. 2009 Interim Report;

4. Written confirmation for the 2009 Interim Report by the
Directors and senior management officers;

5.  Written approval by the Supervisory Committee for the
2009 Interim Report prepared by the Board.

By Order of the Board
Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
Gao Minghui
Chairman
12th August 2009

Note: Written confirmation by the Directors and senior management officers
for the 2009 Interim Report

DECLARATION

The Board, Directors and senior management officers of the Company
confirmed that no false information, misleading statements or
material omissions were contained in the 2009 Interim Report
and they jointly and severally accepted full responsibility for the
truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of its contents.

Signature of declaratory persons:

Directors:

Gao Minghui  Zhang Xiaoyi Li Zhenxiong Sun Kai
Wang Xing Wang Sheng Pi Jianguo Zhang Tao
Wayne Yu Liu Minghui Chen Ying Li Dongru

Senior management officers:
Ye Nong Zhu Xiang Zhou Guoxing Luo Tao

Board of Directors
Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
12th August 2009

Note: Written approval by Supervisory Committee for 2009 Interim Report
prepared by the Board.
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3. ERBABREAN REZRRSEFR
REMEBZNABGERRERTOT
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AR RER S

EEEEREKROERA
EFE
2009%8H12H

OPINIONS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

In connection with the 2009 Interim Report prepared by the Board,
we have the following opinions:

1.

The preparation of the 2009 Interim Report and the review
procedures were in compliance with laws and regulations,
the articles of association and requirements of the Company'’s
internal management system;

The content and format of the 2009 Interim Report were in
compliance with the regulations of the CSRC and the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. The information included in the 2009 Interim
Report truly reflected the Company’s operating management
and financial conditions of the Company for the year;

Prior to the issuance of the opinions, we were not aware of
any violations of confidentiality requirements by any persons
engaged in the preparation and review of the 2009 Interim
Report.

Supervisors:

Shao Li Zhang Weiming Gao Xingang
Fan Hong Xiang Rong

Supervisory Committee
Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited
12th August 2009
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